FY 2017

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE STATE OF ILLINOIS
REPORT COMPTROLLER
SUSANA A. MENDOZA

Name of Municipality:  Village of Romeoville Reporting Fiscal Year: 2017
County: Will Fiscal Year End: 4/30/2017
Unit Code: 099/107/32
[ TIF Administrator Contact Information

First Name: Kirk Last Name: Openchowski

Address: 1050 W. Romeo Rd. Title: Village Treasurer

Telephone: (815) 886-5250 City: Romeoville Zip: 60446
E-mail-

required kopenchowski @ romeoville.org

| attest to the best of my knowledge, that this FY 2017 report of the redevelopment project area(s)

in the City/Village of: Romeoville

is complete and accurate pursuant to Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] and
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]

/L;(/ () p s fi IR ) 4

Written signature of TIE Adnflinistrator Date

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)")
FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT

Name of Redevelopment Project Area Date Designated Date Terminated
Marquette Center Redevelopment Project 6/6/1989
Downtown Area Redevelopment 1/10/2005
Romeo Road Redevelopment Project Area 9/19/2007

*All statutory citations refer to one of two sections of the lllinois Municipal Code: The Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]



SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for each redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.)
FY 2017

Name of Redevelopment Project Area (below}:
Romeo Road Redevelopment TIF

Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area*: Retail

- Types include: Central Business District. Retail, Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed.

If "Combination/Mixed" List Component Types:

Under which section of the lllinois Municipal Code was Hedevelopment Project Area designated? {check one}):
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law

I

No Yes

Were there any amendments to the redevelopment plan, the redevelopmenl prorect area or lhe State Sales TaxBoundarW [65

ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1)] X
se enclose the amendment labeled Attachment &

Certrfrcatrcm of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all of the requirements of the

Act during the preceding fiscal year. {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (3) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (3)] X

Please enclose the CEO Certification labeled Attachment B

Opinion of legal counsel that municipality is in compliance with the Act. {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d} (4)]

Please enclose the Legal Counsel Qpinion labeled Attachment C X

§Stalemenl setting forth all activities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan including any project
implemented and a description of the redevelopment activities.? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) {7) {A X
and B))
If yes

please ant

Were any agreemenrsenlered mlo by the munrc:palrty with regard to the disposition or redevelopment of any property within the
redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) {C) and 5/11-74.6-22 {d) X
(7Y (C))
If yes,

Is there addrtronal mformatron on lhe use o!all lunds recewed under this Division and steps taken by the municipality to achieve the
objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7} (D) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (D)] X

if yes, please enclose the Additional Information labeled Attachment F

Did the municipality's TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have received or are receiving
|payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7)
(E)l

5 hment G
Were there any repens or meenng mrnules submrlled to lhe munrcrpamy by rhe |ornt revrew board') {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (7) (F)
and 5/11-74.6-22 {d) (V) (F)] X
If yes, ple ncl i eview Board Report labeled Attachment H

Were any obligations issued by the municipality? (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) {8) (A) and
5/1 1-74 6-22 (d) (8) {(A)] X
If lease enclo atement labeled Attachment | and Attachment J MUST be Yes

An analysrs prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of obligation and projected debt service
including required reserves and debt coverage? {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (B} and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) {(8) (B)] X
If attachment | is yes, Anal M ed and labeled Attachment J

Has a cumulative of $100,000 of TIF revenue been deposited into the special tax allocation fund? &5 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (2) and
5/11-74.6-22 {d) (2) X
If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund

Cumulatively, have deposits of incremental taxes revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made into the special tax
allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9} and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (9))

If yes, The audit report shall contain a letter from the independent certified public accountant indicating compliance or
noncompliance with the requirements Qf subsection (g} of Section 11-74.4-3 labeled Attachment L

A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect to which the municipality is a part, and an accounting of any money transferred
or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to those intergovernmental agreements. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)

(10}




SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)(5}{a)(b)(d)) and (65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(a)(b)(d))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2017
TIF NAME: Romeoville Romeo Road TIF
Special Tax Allocation Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period ER 202,414 |
Cumulative
R:veniu?(iash Totals of
SOURCE of Revenue/Cash Receipis: eé:e pis tor Revenue/Cash
Re :;;':nv ar Receipts for life
R of TIF % of Total

Property Tax Increment $ 32,688 | § 265,201 40%
State Sales Tax Increment 0%
Local Sales Tax Increment 0%
State Ulility Tax Increment 0%
Local Utility Tax Increment 0%
Interest $ 830 [ % 1,085 0%
Land/Building Sale Proceeds 0%
Bond Proceeds 0%
Transfers from Municipal Sources 0%
Private Sources $ 28,578 4%
Other (identify source ; if multiple other sources, attach
schedule) % 371,484 56%
All Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation by source

B 33,518 |
Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts | $ 666,348 | 100%|
Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from $ -
Section 3.2)
Distribution of Surplus |
Total Expenditures/Disbursements B I

3 33,518

Net/iIncome/Cash Receipts Over/(Under) Cash Disbursements
FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD* [$ 235,932 |

" If there is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3



SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) (c) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5){c))
FY 2017
TIF NAME: Romeoville Romeo Road TIF

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment project costs )

PAGE 1

Category of Pesmissible Redevelopment Cost [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 (g) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10
LC)J] Amounts Reporting Fiscal Year
1. Cost of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications. Implementation and
administration of the redevelopment plan, stalf and professional service cost

[3 -
2. Annual administrative cost

g 5
3. Cost of marketing sites.

s =
4. Property assembly cost and site preparation costs.

3 B
5. Casts of renovation, rehabilitation, reconsiruction, relocation, repair or remodeling of existing public
or private building, leasehold Improvements, and fixtures within a redevelopment project area.

3 2
6. Costs of construction.

g 3




SECTIONJ3.2 A

PAGE 2

7. Cos!s of sliminating or removing contaminants and other impediments.

8. Cosl of job training and retraining projects.

9. Financing cosis.

10. Capital costs.

11. Cost of reimbursing school districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing
projects.

12. Cost of reimbursing library districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing
projects.




SECTION 3.2 A
PAGE 3
13. Flelo'cgllon costs. Sl
3 k
14. Payments in liew of taxes. LEE i
3 *
15. Costs of job training, retraining, advanced vocatlonal or career education. s, %

5 .
16. Interest cost incurred by redeveloper or other nongovermmental persons In conneclion with & {§
redsvelopment project. i =
%
17. Cost of day care services. il e
5
18, Ciher. ¥ ERs it
=g
= 1
$
(TOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES B




Section 3.2 B
FY 2017

TIF NAME: Romeoville Romeo Raod TIF
Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in creating fiscal
transparency.

List all vendors, including other municipal funds, that were paid in excess of $10,000 during the current reporting year.

Name Service Amount

NONE




SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5d) 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 {d) (5d)

Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period by source

FY 2017
TIF NAME:

FUND BALANCE BY SOURCE

1. Description of Debt Obligations

Romeoville Romeo Road TIF

B

235,932 |

Amount of Original
Issuance

Amount Designated

Total Amount Designated for Obligations $ -1% -
2. Description of Project Costs to be Paid

Romeo Road TIF Projects - Road Improvements $ 235,932
Total Amount Designated for Project Costs [ $ 235,932 |
TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED B 235,932 |
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) [ $ - |




SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) {6} and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2017

TIF NAME: Romeoville Romeo Road TIF
Provide a description of all property purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within lhe
redevelopment project area.

Check here if no property was acquired by the Municipality within the
X Redevelopment Project Area.

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

Property (1):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property {2):

Street address:

Approximate size or descriplion of property:

Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (4):

Street address:

Approximale size or description of properly:

Purchase price:

Seller of praperty:




SECTION 5 - 20 ILCS 620/4.7 (7)(F)

FY 2017
TIF Name:

PAGE 1

Page 1 is to be included with TIF report. Pages 2 and 3 are to be included ONLY if projects are listed.
Select ONE of the following by indicating an 'X":

1. NO projects wera undariaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

2. The Municipality DID undertake projects within the Redevelopment Project Area. (If selecting this

oplion, complete 2a.)

2a. The number of projects undertaken by the municipality within the Redevelopment Project Area:

LIST the projects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

Estimated Investment
for Subsequent Fiscal

Total Estimated to

TOTAL: 11/1/99 to Date Year Complete Project
Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) -8 -8 &
Public Investment Undertaken 430,416 | $ 33,000 | S 448,000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 1*: TIF Administration

*PROJECT NAME TO BE LISTED AFTER

PROJECT NUMBER

Privale Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

2,475

5 1,000

5 43,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investiment

Project 2*: Walgreens Developer Incentive

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions})

Public Investment Undertaken

350,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

0

Project 3*: Romeo Road Improvements

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

77,941

5 32,000

5 405,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

0

Project 4*:

Private Invesiment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 5*;

Private Investment Underiaken (See Insiructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 6*:

Privale Investment Undertaken {See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment




Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the
performance of TIF in lllinois. *even though optional MUST be included as part of complete TIF report

SECTION &
FY 2017
TIF NAME: Romeoville Romeo Road TIF
Provida the base EAV (al the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment
project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designated Base EAV EAV
i 2006} $ 282,000 | $ 622,153 |

List all overlapping tax districts in the redevelopment project area.
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

x Check if the overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus.

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment
Overlapping Taxing District project area to overlapping districts
Will County Forest Praserve

Will County Building Commission
Dupage Township Town Funds
School District 365U

Community College District 525
Village of Romeoville Fire

Village of Romeoville

| aln| ||| ] || n]on | oy
.

White Oak Library District &
Romeo Mosquito Abatement District -
Will County -
SECTION 7

Provide information about job creation and ratention:

Description and iype
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs (Temporary or
Retained Created Permanent) of Jobs Total Salaries Paid

||| n| vk
'

SECTION 8

Provide a general description of the redevelopment project area using only major boundaries:

The Area contains 4 parcels at the northeast corner of 135th Street (Romeo Road} and lllinois Route 53
{Independence Blvd). The address of the property is 347 N. Independence Blvd.

Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area X

Map of Districl X




TIF Amendment Area (BP Property) - Legal Deseription

Parcel 12

Lot [ in Unit Mo, ) of Mikan's Romeo Estates, a Subdivision of part of the South ¥ of the South
1 of Scction 34, Township 37 Morth, Range 10, East of the Third Principal Meriding, according
to the Plal thereof recorded April 19, 1954, in Plat Book 28, Page 32, as Document Mumber

748172, in Will County, lilinols.

Parcel 2:

Lot 2 in Unit Na. | of Mikan's Romeo Eslates, a Subdivision of part of the South ¥ of the South
¥; of Scction 34, Township 37 Nerih, Range 10, Gas! of the Third Principal Mcridian, according
1o the Plat thereof recorded April 19, 1954, in Plat Book 28, Page 32, as Document Mumber
748172, in Will County, Hlinoks.

Parcel 3;

That part of the Soulh % of the South % of Section 34, Townshlp 37 North, Rangs 10, East of the
Third Principal Meridian (except that part dedicated to the County of Will, staje of lllinois, for the
public road purposes in Document 698507), bounded and described as lollows: Degiuning st a
point on the North right-of-way line of Romeo Road, distant 125.00 fect East of the Bast cight-of-
way line of Route #66; thenco continuing Norih .01 degrocs 29 minutes 54 sceonds East along the
last descyibed line, for a distance of 295.00 feetto o poing; thence Noth 89 degrees 37 minutes 54
seconds Bast, for a distance of 170.20 feot to n point; thence 5.01 deprees 29 minules 54 scconds
West, for n distance of 295.20 feet to a point oit the North right-of-wdy linc of said Romeo Rond;
thenceo 5.89 degrees 37 minutes 54 seconds West, on the lost described line, for adistance of

170.20 feet to the point of beginning, all in Will County, 1linois,

Parcel 4;

. That pact of the South % of the South ¥; of Section 34, Township 37 North, Range [0, Gast of the
“Third Principal Meridian (except that part dedicated to the County of Witl, State of Hiinois, for
public road purposes in Document 698507), which lies East ol the Highway knows a3 U.S. Route
66, bounded and describod as follows: Beginning at a point where the Zasl line of U.S. Route
66, distant 30.00 foet North of the North line of the highway known s omeo Road {sald point of
beginning also being the Nostherly comner of Parcel 003 as shown on Plat of Highways, State of
Illinois, Depariment of Transportation Job R-91-023-93); thence continuing North 01 degrees, 29
minutes, 54 scconds East along said East line of said Route 66, for a distance of 265.20 feet to 0
point; thence north 89 degrees, 37 minutes, 54 seconds East, for a distance of 125.00 feetton
poinl; thence sauth 01 degrees, 29 minutes, 54 seconds West, on a line 125.00 feet East of and
paralle] with the East right-of-way line of said Route 66, for a distance of 295,02 fect to a poinl
on West, on the last described line, for  distanec of 90,00 fect toa point distance 35.00 fect Bast
of the Cast right-of-way linc of said Route 66 {said point alsa being the Easterly comer of the
aforesaid Parcel 003) thence North 48 degrees, 58 minules, 4d seconds West, along the North
casterly line of snid Parcel 003, for & distunce of 45.35 fee! to the point of beginning, in Will

County, linois.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE TAX
INCREMENT ALLOCATION REDEVELOPMENT ACT

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and
acting President of the Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois (the
“Village™), and as such chief executive officer of the Village, 1 do hereby
further certify to the best of my knowledge, that, according to the records of
the Village in my official possession, the Village has now complied, for the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2017, with all of the requirements of the Tax
Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, as amended, Division 74.4 of
Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1 through 11-
74.4-11) for that certain redevelopment project area known as the Romeo
Road Redevelopment Project Area. Compliance requirements, if any, brought
to the attention of the undersigned have been addressed as of the date of this
certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF 1 have hereunto affixed my official

signature at Romeoville, [llinois, this L&f day of March, 2018

ent Village of Romeoville
1ll County, Illln01s
TTEST:
3@- W Yobeda




TRACY, JOHNSON & WILSON

Attorneys at Law
First Community Bank Building
2801 Black Road, Second Floor

Joliet, lllinois 60435

Raymond E. Meader
A. Michael Wojtak

Kenneth A, Carlson

e rareNc TELEPHONE (815) 723-8500
Richard E. Vogsl FAX (815) 727-4846

John G. Foreman

Megan M. Olson

March 14, 2018

Or CounseL
James B. Harvey

Louis R. Bertani (1928-1999)
Thomas R. Wilson {1929-2001)
Donald J. Tracy (1926-2003)
Wayne R, Johnson (1930-2008)
Richard H. Teas (1930-2008)

Mr. Kirk Openchowski
Village of Romeoville
1050 West Romeo Road
Romeoville, IL 60446

Re:  Romeo Road Redevelopment Project Area
Dear Mr. Openchowski:

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that we are the Village Attorneys for the Village
of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois {the “Village™). We have reviewed all the information
provided to us by appropriate Village officials, staff, and consultants and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, further certify that the Village has conformed for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2017, with ail of the requirements of the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment
Act, as amended, Division 74.4 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
1 through 11-74.4-11) as of the date hereof for that certain redevelopment project area known as
the Marquette Center Redevelopment Project Area (the “Project”).

In rendering this certification, we have relied upon certifications of the Village with
respect 1o certain material facts solely within the Village's knowledge relating to the Project.
Compliance requirements, if any, brought to the attention of the undersigned have been
addressed as of the date of this certification.

Tracy, Johnson & Wilson

Village Aftorneys

Village of Romeovil ill County, lllinois



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FY 16-17

The projects meet the Romeoville Road TIF General Economic Development Goals and
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Goals and Objectives.

The Romeo Road TIF District project area goals and objectives are attached.

TIF FORMATION/ENGINEERING/ADMINSTRATION

The TIF Financial Compliance Report and audit for the prior year was completed.

ROUTE 53 AND ROMEO ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

The Village may construct and improve the right turn lanes from 135" Street onto North
Bound Route 53.



Village of Romeoville
Joint Review Board Meeting
Romeo Rd TIF District
February 22, 2017

Present:

Village Staff:
Steve Gulden
Kirk Openchowski

Village Consultants:
Dave Silverman, Mahoney, Cross & Silverman

CALL TO ORDER
Roll Call
The meeting was called to order by Steve Gulden at 11:06 a.m.

Upon calling roll, the following members were present:
Terri Bethune, DuPage Township
Gary Grizaffi, Valley View School District
Jeff Heap, Community College District 525
Karen Hennessy, Will County

PUBLIC MEMBER

Mr. Gulden reported that the JRB is required to consider the appointment of a Public
Member. The Village has recommended Jerry Capps as the Public Member. The JRB is
asked to vote on this recommendation.

A motion was made by Member Hennessy, second by Member Heap to appoint Jerry
Capps as the public member. The motion carried unanimously.

NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF PERMANENT CHAIRPERSON
Mr. Gulden advised that he will serve in the capacity of permanent chairperson of the
JRB meeting.

A motion was made by Member Capp and second by Member Grizaffi to appoint Steve
Gulden as the Chairperson. The motion carried unanimously.

ROLE OF JOINT REVIEW BOARD
Mr. Silverman reviewed the role of the Joint Review Board.




OVERVIEW OF TIF
Steve Gulden provided an overview of the Romeo Rd TIF, stating that it consisted of the
Walgreens located at Rt. 53 and Romeo Road, that the Walgreens replaced a closed old

gas station and was perfect example of development that would not occur “but for” the
TIF.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES-DECEMBER 17, 2015 MEEETING

The minutes were reviewed. A motion was made by Member Grizaffi, seconded by
Member Heap to approve the December 17, 2015 meeting minutes. The motion carried
unanimously.

PRESENTATION AND REVIEW OF ANNUAL REPORTS
Mr. Openchowski reviewed the FY 2015-16 annual report for the Romeo Rd TIF.

DISCUSSION

Steve Gulden commented that while funds being reserved for Rome Rd improvements,
that there are complications with improvements to Route 53 as it is controlled by the
State and their of Right-of-Way issues.

COMMENTS FROM JOINT REVIEW BOARD
None.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Member Bethune, second by Member Grizaffi to adjourn at 11:12
a.m. The motion carried unanimously.




New Issue Invesument Ratings: Moody's Investors Service ... Aa2
Fitch Ratings ... AA/Stable

Final Official Statement

Subject to compliance by the Village with certain covenans, in the opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel, under present law,
interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income 1ax purposes, is not included as an item of rax preference in
computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations, and is not taken into account in computing adjusted current earnings,
which is used as an adjustment in determining the federal alternative minimunt tax for certain corporations.  Interest on the Bonds is not exempr from
present State of Hlinois income taxes. See “TAX EXEMPTION ™ herein for a more complete discussion,

$5,105,000
AHAE vill VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE
Oﬂ.'lgp -E Will County, Illinois

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A

Dated Date of Delivery Book-Entry Due Serially December 30, 2016-2029

The $5.105.000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A (the “Bonds™) are being issued by the Village of Romeoville, Will County,
llinois (the “Village™). Interest is payable semiannually on June 30 and December 30 of each year, commencing December 30, 2016,  Interest is
calculated based on a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. The Bonds will be issued using @ book-entry system. The Depository Trust Company
("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The ownership of one fully registered Bond for each maturity will be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC and no physical delivery of Bonds will be made to purchasers. The Bonds will mature on
December 30 in the following years and amounts.

AMOUNTS, MATURITIES, INTEREST RATES, YIELDS AND CUSIP NUMBERS

Principal Due Interest cusie Principal Due Interest gus1P
Amount Dec.30 Rate Yield Number (1) _ Amount Dec. 30 Rate Yield Number (1)
$35000...... .. 2016 2. 000% 0. 700% 776154 UX2 $405 000 ... ... 2023 2. 000% 1. 550% 776154 VE3
60,000........ 2017 2. 000% 0. 750% 716154 UY0 420,000 .. .. .. 2024 2. 000% 1. 700% 116154 VFQ
360.000........ 2018 2. 000% 0. 830% 7176154 UZ7 435, 000....... 2025 2. 000% 1. 900% 176154 V&8
370,000.. ... ... 2019 2. 000% 0. 900% 776154 VA1 445,000, .. ... 2026 2. 000% 2.050% 776154 VH6
375.000........ 2020 2. 000% 1. 000% 776154 VB9 465,000 . ... .. 2027 2. 000% 2.150% 776154 VU2
385,000........ 2021 2. 000% 1. 150% 776154 VC7 470.Q00. ... .. . 2028 2.125% 2. 250% 776154 VK9
400,000., ...... 2022 2. 000% 1. 350% 776154 VD5 480,000 ... . 2029 2. 250% 2. 350% 176154 YL7
OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

The Bonds due on or before Decemnber 30. 2025 are non-callable. The Bonds due an or after December 30, 2026 are callable in whole of in
part on any date on or afier December 30, 2025, at a price of par. If less than all the Bonds are called, they shall be redeemed in such principal amounts
and from such maturities as determined by the Village and within any maturity by lot. See “OPTIONAL REDEMPTION” herein.

PURPOSE, LEGALITY AND SECURITY

The Bond proceeds will be used to (i} advance refund a portion of the Village's General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 (the “2009 Bonds™) and
(i} pay the costs of issvance of the Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCING” herein,

In the opinion of Chapman and Cwtler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, Bord Counsel. the Bonds will constitute vatid and legally binding obligations of
the Village payable both as o principal and interest from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property therein without limitation as to rate or
amount, except that the righis of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium,
reorganization and other similar laws affecting creditors” rights and by equitable principles, whether considered at law or in equity. including the exercise
of judicial discretion.

The Village does not intend to designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations™ pursuant 1 the small issuer exception provided by
Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

This Final Official Sttement is dated August 22, 2016, and has been prepared under the authority of the Village. An electronic copy of this
Final Official Statement is available from the www.speerfinuncial.com web site under “Debt Auction Center/Competitive Final Official Statement Sales
Calendar™.  Additional copies may be obmined from Dr. Bernice E. Holloway, Village Clerk, Village of Romeoville, 1050 West Romeo Road,
Romeoville, Illinois 60446, or from the Independent Public Finance Consultants to the Village:

fSpeer Financial, Inc.
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No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Village to give any information or to
make any representations with respect to the Bonds other than as contained in the Official Statement or the Final
Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having
been authorized by the Village. Certain information contained in the Official Statement and the Final Official Statement
may have been obtained from sources other than records of the Village and, while believed to be reliable, is not
guaranteed as to completeness. THE INFORMATION AND EXPRESSIONS OF OPINION IN THE OFFICIAL
STATEMENT AND THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE, AND NEITHER THE
DELIVERY OF THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR THE FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT NOR ANY SALE
MADE UNDER EITHER SUCH DOCUMENT SHALL CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN
NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE VILLAGE SINCE THE RESPECTIVE DATES THEREOF.

References herein to laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, resolutions, agreements, reports and other documents
do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references to such documents are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the particular document, the full text of which may contain qualifications of and exceptions to statements
made herein. Where full texts have not been included as appendices to the Official Statement or the Final Official
Statement, they will be furnished on request. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell, or solicitation
of an offer to buy, any securities to any person in any jurisdiction where such offer or solicitation of such offer would
be unlawful.

The tax advice contained in this Official Statement is not intended or written by the Village, its Bond Counsel,
or any other tax practitioner to be used, and it cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties
that may be imposed on the taxpayer. The tax advice contained in this Official Statement was written to support the
promotion or marketing of the Bonds. Each taxpayer should seek advice based on the taxpayer’s particular
circumstances from an independent tax advisor,

(1)
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BOND ISSUE SUMMARY

This Bond Issue Summary is expressly qualified by the entire Final Official Statement, which is provided for the
convenience of potential invesiors and which should be reviewed in their entirety by potential investors.

Issuer:
Dated Date:
Interest Due:

Principal Due:

Optional Redemption:

Authorization:

Security:

Credit Rating:

Purpose:

Tax Exemption:

Bond Registrar/Paying Agent/
Escrow Agent:

Delivery:

Book-Entry Form:

Denomination:
Verifier:

Municipal Advisor:

Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois.
Date of delivery, expected to be September 12, 2016,
Each June 30 and December 30, commencing December 30, 2016.

Serially each December 30, commencing December 30, 2016 through December 30, 2029,
as detailed on the front page of this Final Official Statement.

The Bonds due on or before December 30, 2025 are non-callable. The Bonds due on or
after December 30, 2026 are caflable in whole or in part on any date on or after December
30, 2025, at a price of par. If less than all the Bonds are called, they shall be redeemed in
such principal amounts and from such maturities as determined by the Village and within
any maturity by lot. See “OPTIONAL REDEMPTION" herein.

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to a bond ordinance (o be adopted by the President and
Board of Trustees of the Village on August 17, 2016, as supplemented by the Bond Order
and Notification of Sale authorized therein and executed in connection with the sale of the
Bonds. The Village is a home rule unit and under the 1970 Illinois Constitution has no debt
limitation or referendum requirements for the issuance of bonds.

The Bonds will constitute valid and Jegally binding obligations of the Village payable both
as to principal and interest from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property therein
without limitation as to rate or amount, except that the rights of the owners of the Bonds
and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptey, insolvency, moratorium,
reorganization and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable principles,
whether considered at law or in equity, including the exercise of judicial discretion.

The Bonds have been rated “Aa2” from Moody’s Investors Service and “AA/Stable” by
Fitch Ratings. See “INVESTMENT RATINGS" herein.

The Bond proceeds will be used to (i) advance refund a portion of the Village’s General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 (the “2009 Bonds™) and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the
Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCING” herein.

Chapman and Cutler LLP will provide an opinion as to the federal tax exemption of the
interest on the Bonds as discussed under “TAX EXEMPTION?” in this Final Official
Statement. Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present State of Illinois income taxes.

Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, Chicago, Iltinois.
The Bonds are expected to be delivered on or about September 12, 2016.

The Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC"), New York, New York. DTC will act as securities depository of
the Bonds. See APPENDIX B herein.

$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.
Sikich, LLP, Naperville, Illinois.

Speer Financial, Inc., Chicago, Illinois.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE
Will County, Illinois

John D. Noak
Village President

Board of Trustees

Jose (Joe) Chavez Ken Griffin Linda S. Palmiter

Brian A. Clancy, Sr. Sue A. Micklevitz Dave Richards
Officials
Steve Gulden Dr. Bernice E. Holloway
Village Manager Village Clerk

Dawn Caldwell Kirk Openchowski

Assistant Village Manager Finance Director

Richard Vogel Speer Financial, Inc.
Corporation Counsel Financial Advisor

AUTHORIZATION, PURPOSE AND SECURITY

The $5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A (the “Bonds™), are being issued pursuant
to the home rule powers of the Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois (the “Village"), under Section 6 of Article
VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Iilinois, and pursuant to a bond ordinance adopted by the President and
Board of Trustees of the Village on the 17th day of August, 2016 (as supplemented by the Bond Order and Notification
of Sale authorized therein and executed in connection with the sale of the Bonds, (the “Bond Ordinance”). Bond
proceeds will be used to advance refund a portion of the Village’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009
(the “2009 Bonds™), and to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. See “PLAN OF FINANCING™ herein. The Bonds
constitute valid and legally binding full faith and credit general obligations of the Village, and are payable from any
funds of the Village legally available for such purpose, and all taxable property in the Village is subject to the levy of
taxes to pay the same without limitation as to rate or amount. The Bond Ordinance provides for the levy of ad valorem
taxes, unlimited as to rate or amount, upon all taxable property within the Village in amounts sufficient to pay, as and
when due, all principal of and interest on the Bonds. The Bond Ordinance will be filed with the County Clerk of Will
County, and will serve as authorization to said County Clerk to extend and collect the property taxes as set forth in the
Bond Ordinance.

THE VILLAGE

The Village, incorporated in 1895, is located in Will County (the “County™), approximately 26 miles southwest
of Chicago. The Village encompasses approximately 20 square miles and is bordered by the Village of Bolingbrook to
the north, unincorporated Will County to the west, south and east, the City of Lockport to the southeast, and the City of
Crest Hill to the South. Recent annexations have totaled over 2,000 acres. Population at the time of the 2000 Census
was 21,153, a 50% increase from the 1990 report of 14,101. In 2006, a Special Census was conducted and the
population increased 73% from 2000 to 36,709. The population of the Village as reporied by the 2010 Census is
39,680.
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Home Rule Status

The Village acquired home rule status in 2003 when its population exceeded 25,000. Pursuant to the authority
granted by Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, any municipality which, according to the most
recent official U.S. Census, has a population of more than 25,000, is a home rule unit. The Village may exercise
broad powers pertaining to its government and affairs.

Village Organization and Services

The Village has a President and Board of Trustees and has a Village form of government. The Village Board is
composed of the Village President and six trustees who are elected at large for staggered four year terms. The Village
has an elected Clerk who is elected to a four year term at the same time as the Village President.

The Village provides police, fire, and paramedic service; water and sewer system services; public works;
refuse collection; road and bridge maintenance; and general administrative services. The Village employs
approximately 450 persons providing the following services:

Full-time Part-time
Police.....ovoviiiiii 85 20
Fire oo 23 102
Administrative and Other................. 9% 125
Total ..o 203 247

Of the 85 full-time staff of the Police Department, 62 are sworn officers. Fire department staff includes
approximately 49 firefighters, of which all are firefighter/paramedics. There are 20 full-time sworn staff and 29 part-
time sworn staff.

Northern Illinois Gas Company and Commonwealth Edison provide gas and electric service for the Village,
respectively. The Village provides water and sewer services.

Library services are provided by White Oak, and Plainfield Library Districts. White Oak maintains a recently
renovated library facility within the Village.

Transportation

The Village has accessibility via highway, rail, water and air transportation, serving its residents and its large
industrial base. It is situated along Illinois Route 53. Directly to the north is Interstate 55, which leads to Chicago;
three full interchanges serve the Village. The completion of Interstate 355 to Interstate 55 has improved access to the
northern and western suburbs. [Interstate 355 completed its extension south to Interstate 80 which leads to Indiana to
the east and Iowa to the west.

Mass transit services include the Metra Heritage Corridor line in nearby Lockport and Joliet. Passenger service
is also available via Amtrak in Joliet and Chicago. The Village is currently working with Metra to develop a station in
Romeoville. The Village has agreed to provide land for the station. Federal funding has been secured for the project.
The Santa Fe, Elgin and Eastern and the Illinois Central Gulf Railroads supply rail freight service.

The Chicago Shipping Canal provides water transportation to Chicago harbors, the Great Lakes and the Illinois-
Mississippi River waterways. The Joliet Regional Port District operates the Canal. Air transportation service is
available at Chicago’s O’Hare International Airport (25 miles) and Midway Airport (15 miles). In addition, the Lewis
University Airport, which is located within the Village, is owned and operated by the Joliet Regional Port District and
has plans for further expansion.
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Community Life

The Village provides recreation opportunities. O'Hara Woods is a 60 acre nature center with a fishing lake and
hiking trails and an adjoining 30 acre recreation center complex with a health club, lighted tennis courts and ball fields.
The Village provides a total of 31 parks with 31 playgrounds. Total park space is over 301 acres. The Lockport
Township Park District and the Plainfield Township Park District serve part of the Village. Also, in or near the Village
are the Romeoville Prairie Nature Preserve (314 acres), Veteran Woods (77 acres) and the Isle a la Cache Museum
(101 acres), which are maintained by the Will County Forest Preserve District.

Education

The Village's public education needs are met by School Districts 92, 202-U, 365-U and High School District
Number 205. The Village is located within Community College District Number 525, the Joliet Community College.
The Community College has a satellite campus located in the Village. Lewis University, a privately owned higher
educational institution, is located in Romeoville. Rasmussen College's Romeoville Campus opened its doors in January
2010.

Current Economic Development Programs

The Village is aggressively pursuing economic development to expand its already diverse tax base and to attract
jobs for its residents. Key strengths of the Village in attracting development are its location advantages and land
availability. The Village is using these strengths to market iself to light manufacwrers and small and medium
wholesale and service industries.

Interstate 55 with three interchanges, along with Interstate 355, makes the Village accessible to Chicago and its
southern and western suburbs by road as well as by rail, water and air transportation as outlined above. The Village
was instrumental in gaining cooperation among area governments and developers to fund part of the construction and in
succeeding in getting the Illinois Department of Transportation to accelerate the scheduling for the construction of one
of these interchanges as part of its list of planned highway improvements. The Village, in conjunction with the Villages
of Bolingbrook and Plainfield, has started the engineering study for new interchanges off of Interstate 55 at Airport
Road and at Illinois Route 126. Plans have also started for improvements to the Interstate 55/Weber Road interchange.

Industrial Park Activity
Highlighting the years berween 2011-2015

The Village is at the heart of the 1I-55 industrial corridor. The Village has seen exponential growth in the
industrial warehouse sector in the past decade and it continues to dominate the development landscape today. Currently,
there are over 28 million square feet of industrial space and the Village is on the way to approximately 32 million
square feet at approved build out. Of the current space, 5.7 million square feet was built since 2007, during the peak of
the recession. Throughout this time, the Village not only added square footage but high quality jobs and businesses.
Not all of the Village’s success can be measured in new development, but rather from the quality leases in our mature
industrial parks happening throughout the community. A few examples stand out: Synnex Corporation, Sleepy’s,
Peacock Engineering and PAE Applied Technologies.
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In early 2012, Ryan Companies began construction of a 604,000 square foot spec industrial and warehouse
facility at 1060 Crossroads Parkway. DCT of Denver took ownership of the building once construction commenced on
one of the first and largest spec buildings in the Chicagoland area in several years. Valspar Paint, sole contractor for
paint at Lowe’s leased the first 400,000 square feet in mid-2013 and RJW a freight forwarding company for Walmart
finalized a lease for the remaining 200,000 square feet on November 1, 2014.

Ryan Companies constructed a 422,000 square foot facility beginning in 2014. The site is located at 1045 West
Crossroads Parkway in the Boldt Business Park. Ashley Furniture purchased the warehouse and opened the first retail
outlet for the Chicagoland area in July of 2015.

In September 2014, Magid Glove and Safety, a national leader in the manufacture, import, distribution and
direct sales of hand protection, protective clothing, first aid and personal protective equipment moved their
headquarters and manufacturing operations from Chicago to the former 600,000 square foot Sharp Building located on
a 35-acré campus at 1300 Naperville Drive in Marquette Business Park. Magid has brought over 600 jobs to the
Village.

In 2015, Duke Realty constructed a 324,000 square foot speculative distribution facility on an 18-acre parcel
being redeveloped by demolishing a 90,000 square foot Panduit facility in the Marquette Business Park. This building is
now 75% leased by Midwest Air Technologies, while the remaining 70,000 square feet is actively being marketed.

Molto Properties finished construction of a 200,000 square foot speculative industrial building in the fourth
quarter of 2014. This building located in Windham Lakes Southwest Quad is now leased by Hellerman Tyton
employing 100.

The Land and Lakes third and final 525,000 square foot distribution facility in the Bluff Point Industrial Park
was completed in early 2011 and sold to MAT Holdings, a major supplier of fencing, ladders and many other hardware
supplies. MAT Holdings also leased 227,000 square feet from Duke Realty in 2015.

The Pinnacle Business Park added a 238,000 square foot state-of-the-art facility for Fed Ex Ground. An
extremely modern and multi-million-dollar custom package handling system was installed and operations began in early
2013. In 2014, Fed Ex Ground expanded with a 40,000 square foot distribution addition along with 100 more
employee car spaces and 38 more truck bays. Fed Ex Ground had hired nearly 400 employees in 2013 and the addition
added 200 more new hires in 2015.

Neovia Logistics Distribution leased a 650,000 spec building for Samsung employing nearly 300 workers in
2011. With its 300 skylights and LEED Gold certification, the Samsung building remains one of the greenest and most
energy efficient buildings in the Chicagoland area. In 2012 and 2013, Samsung added 120 parking spaces and now
employs 250 persons.

WBS Equities annexed 34 acres and had a General Development Plan approved by the Village Board on April
2, 2014 for a farm on Airport Road west of Chicago Tube and Iron. The first phase of 188,000 square foot, 80-foot-tall
state of the art freezer distribution sister facility for Aryzta’s Great Kitchen complex in the South Creek Industrial Park
is nearly finished. This will bring Aryzta’s holdings to over 600,000 square feet with current employment exceeding
600. Site construction started in June 2014 with foundations laid in September 2014. The site construction will be
completed in the first quarter of 2016.
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The Opus Group is finishing up its Paragon Business Park development. Construction is complete on two
speculative buildings, 133,803 square feet and 121,236 square feet, respectively. They are actively pursuing tenanis and
anticipate starting to secure tenants in the first quarter, 2016. They also anticipate starting construction on a third and
final building in 2016 that would accommodate up to 113,690 square feet.

In the Pinnacle Business Park, two large warehouse buildings broke ground in 2013. The first building is
898,560 square feet and is occupied by Pactiv Corporation, which also operates in several other buildings in the
Village. The second building was constructed as a speculative 672,000 square foot facility by Pizzuti. This 100,000
square foot building is the site of the second location in the Village of Ozburn-Hessey Logistics (OHL), a global supply
chain management provider.

The Pizzuti Companies purchased the 79-acre Spangler farm on Taylor Road. The Board approved a plan that
will allow the development of up to 1.2 million square feet of industrial space. Pizzuti has nearly completed the mass
grading and taken the site to market for development.

Molto Properties annexed 15.4 acres of land previously owned by the Elmhurst Stone Company at 1881 W.
Normantown Road in Windham Lakes Southwest Business Park and received approval for the development of a
226,000 square foot speculative warehouse building. The building was completed in Spring 2016 and is being marketed
by the developer.,

Hillwood Investment Properties is moving forward with the development of four new industrial buildings on
38.8 acres off South Pinnacle Drive in the Pinnacle Business Park. The property was part of the original Pizzuti
annexation and the proposal totals 632,950 square feet, but there is a deed restriction that limits Hillwood to no more
than 200,000 square feet in a single building. Construction on two of the buildings is underway with completion
scheduled for Fall 2016.

Panattoni Development received Village Board approval on August 5, 2015 for a speculative 670,000 square
foot warehouse building on the east side of Southcreek Parkway on Lewis Airport property. Panattoni will lease 37.8
acres from the Joliet Regional Port District to accommodate the development. All regulatory agencies have granted
approvals for the Lewis Airport lease and construction is expected to begin Fall 2016.

Panattoni Development received approval on January 20, 2016 on its proposal to build a 723,200 square foot
building on the 76-acre Mostyn Farm property south of Airport Road. A future building of approximately 400,000
square feet is also shown for the rear of the property. The extension of Pinnacle Road, south of Airport Road is also
part of this project.

Seefried Properties has a new speculative industrial building under construction in the Airport Industrial Center
off Airport Road with occupancy expected Spring 2017.

With over 28 million square feet of the Village's industrial and distribution space built in the last ten years,
these new facilities represent well in excess of $600,000,000 of taxable assets that continue to enable the Village to
grow at a manageable and very stable pace.

Its continued availability as one of only a handful of communities on the I-55 corridor for vacant speculative
space has been one of the major factors assisting the Village through the current recession with no plant closings and
relatively few layoffs. In fact, the community has had a net positive influx of over 4,000 jobs during the last three
years. With more projects in construction today, the Village expects that its assessed value will continue to expand.
Developers Duke, Molto Properties, Prologis, Opus Group, DCT and Pizzuti built at least one speculative 500,000 plus
square foot facility in the past five years during the worst part of the recession.
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Commercial Activity

With new large employers and over 4,000 homes added since 1999, the need to develop commercial projects
really came to fruition in 2006. With only 333,000 square feet of retail development in place at the beginning of 2006
(and approximately 100,000 of that occurring between 2004 and 2006) over 1,350,000 square feet of retail is planned,
under construction, or open at the intersection of Airport and Weber Roads today. The Target Center opened with its
128,000 square foot Target store in October 2007 and the 50,000 adjacent square feet of the Shops of Romeoville
opened in February of 2008. A 90,000 square foot Kohl's opened in October 2008 following a summer opening of a
5,000 square foot Chili’s. Two 15,000 square foot strip centers and a Fifth Third Bank also opened with full tenancy in
2008. In Spring of 2010, permits were issued to Pop’s Beef, AT&T Mobile and a 10,000 square foot Deal$ store.

The second largest Wal-Mart in North America, a 208,000 square foot modern design opened its doors in
January 2008. First year sales of $59 million quickly ballooned to a $79 million budget for year two. The Romeoville
Crossings Wal-Mart development is intended to contain at least three restaurants, a 30,000 square foot Presence Senior
Health Pavilion and Family Immediate Care Center medical facility and the recently constructed Sam’s Club Member
Store. Sam’s Club opened in the fall of 2013 and has brought over 200 jobs and retail sales tax to the Village.

Presence Health started construction on a 28,000 square foot Presence Senior Health Pavilion and Family
Immediate Care Center. The medical facility is located on a 2.7 acre outlot, immediately north of Firestone and in front
of Sam’s Club at Romeoville Crossings. The facility is scheduled to open in August, 2016.

A 15,000 square foot center that includes a Panda Express quick serve restaurant opened in January 2010 after
the developer Barr Group sold land to a local developer in 2009. This facility joined Auto Zone that opened in 2009
and the 10,000 square foot Firestone Tire facility that opened in late 2010,

Although the Village has evaluated 14 proposed “strip centers” that contain another 300,000 square feet of
retail space, the economic recession put many on hold. This slowdown permitted Village staff to utilize demographic
and GIS information in combination with community expendable income tables to avoid overbuilding.

North Rock Development constructed a 20,000 square foot retail end cap for TJ Maxx that opened in October
2014. This center replaced the designed but not built Circuit City facility that was planned in 2008 before the
company’s bankruptcy.

On the same North Rock owned The Shops of Romeoville shopping center at the intersections of Airport and
Weber Roads, a 12,000 square foot strip center finished its build out. Sleepy’s Mattress Store, Chipotle Mexican Food
and Dunkin’ Donuts opened in the fourth quarter of 2014.

On the west side of the intersection of Airport and Weber Roads, a new Goodwill Retail and Donation center
completed its 22,000 square foot company store. Goodwill opened in October of 2014 in a custom designed space
complete with a drive thru drop off and a stone and glass veneer with an advertising turret.

A little further south on the west side of Weber Road, Lenny’s Car Wash located in the Romeoville Crossings
shopping center between Sam’s Club Fueling Station and the Auto Zone, started a construction project in June 2014.
The car wash was completed and opened for business in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Mistwood Clubhouse/McWethy’s Tavern and Great Hall at Mistwood opened its 32,000 clubhouse complete
with a banquet facility and restaurant and bar in November of 2015.



Village of Romeovidle, Will County, Hiinois
Creneral (bliganion Refunding Bomds, Seres 20464

Car Care Collision Center purchased and completed a $2.2 million renovation of the former Skate USA
property that was built in the 1970s. The site was converted into a Car Care Collision Center and Hertz rental car
facility which opened for business in October of 2015. The property was recently sold to Service King Collision, one
of the largest independently owned and operated provider of collision repair services in the United States.

Woodspring Suites completed construction on its 4-story, 116-room extended-stay hotel in the Windham Lakes
Business Park along [-55. The hotel opened in February of 2016.

VNA Health Care finished construction on the 10,340 square foot medical clinic on the 3.8-acre property
located in front of Romeoville High along Route 53. VNA opened to the public in January of 2016.

Blain’s Farm and Fleet, has a 122,000 square foot store in construction with its grand opening scheduled for
October 21, 2016. Annexation and development approval was granted by the Village Board on January 6, 2016.

Thomas Toyota is acquiring 6 acres in Rose Plaza to construct a 40,000 square foot, $10 million dollar, state-
of-the art dealership that will be named Romeoville Toyota. The store is expected to generate between $40-50 million
dollars in annual sales.

Commercial real estate developer Troutman and Dams is under contract to acquire 10.7 acres from the Diocese
of Joliet for a retail development at the northwest corner of Route 53 and Romeo Road. Development plans have been
submitted for a Thorntons gas station that includes a 4,400 square foot convenience store at the hard corner and an
express car wash on the lot immediately north of Thorntons. The development will support approximately 30,000
square feet of retail space and is expected to start construction in the summer of 2016.

Heartland Dental has submitted plans for an 8,000 square foot dental office building. Construction should start
on this site in Spring 2017,

The Village is actively attempting to attract sit down restaurants to complement the few that are already
established in the community. Also, several specialty facilities such as American Sale’s 60,000 square foot recreation
store, Brunswick Zone’s 55,000 square foot recreational center, the 108,000 square foot International Ice Center and
the 21,000 square foot Créme de la Créme, a children’s learning center, opened in the last five years.

Residential Activity

Over the last twelve years, the Village’s housing stock became more varied and of higher value. With less than
1000 homes to be built before the community reaches a total build-out of 42,000 persons and 13,500 houses, the
development of higher end housing is a welcome sign of maturity and stabilization.

In 2006, Misty Ridge by Beechen and Dill (“B&D”), began construction of 168 single family homes. The
initial phase of 70 homes saw an average closure price around $300,000.

This was nearly double the median price for the entire community in 2008. During the economic downturn,
B&D developed a large energy efficient ranch model with high ceilings that had a closing price average near $250,000.
Also, the Village received a $100,000 federal grant allowing it to offer $5,000 to purchasers to apply towards their
closing.

Ten families took advantage of this new program in 2011-12. The Village also decided to grant a $5,000
discount on the building permit fees which slightly impacted the figures on the Building Permit Table presented later in
this document. In 2012, Misty Ridge closed nearly 30 new homes which doubled the previous year’s output. In 2013,
B&D constructed 30 new homes. In 2014, Misty Ridge closed 22 new homes and the entire subdivision has just 22 lots
left until completion. The final 6 building permits for the subdivision are approved and final build-out should occur in
2016.
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The Greenhaven Duplex project on Normantown and Birch was purchased in September 2014 after being
dormant for five years. WK Development purchased the rights to 22 homes while First Eagle Development will build
the remaining 12 duplex units. The build-out of the remaining buildings continues in 2016.

William Ryan Homes closed on December 3, 2015 with Sharp Homes on the remaining 167 lots at Stone Bluff.
William Ryan Homes starts construction on a mode! home in February, 2016. William Ryan Homes expects to build at
least 20 homes in 2016.

Continental Properties acquired 18.5 acres from U.S. Bank for the development of a 292-unit “Class A"
apartment community located at the northwest corner of Weber Road and Renwick Road. Nine buildings are in varying
stages of completion. The club house is scheduled to open August 2016 and two apartment buildings shortly thereafter.

The Village escaped the residential development slow down with only two vacant subdivisions. The Viliage has
been able to gain control over these residential subdivisions by remaining diligent in respect to the developer’s
obligations. Both subdivisions have streets, sidewalks, lighting, and other infrastructure improvements due to the
Village’s persistent efforts.

In 2009, Senior Star of Romeoville headquartered in Tulsa, Oklahoma, completed development of a 500 unit
senior citizens complex at Grand Haven Boulevard and Weber Roads. This development offers a complete continuum
of care for elderly adults, which includes a 50,000 square foot Memory Care facility across from the assisted living
portion of the site.

Uptown Activity

Although there is no “traditional” downtown area, the Village has obtained a 40-acre area of land in the older
part of the Village that is defined as the “uptown”. The site was originally developed in the mid-1960’s but over the
years has seen disinvestment and high vacancies. Much of the retail development moved westward to locate along
Weber Road, the retail corridor in the Village. To date, the Village has demolished the deteriorating shopping center to
make way for the 76,000 square foot Edward Hospita! Athletic and Events Center which opened in early 2014. The
center is owned by the Village but is operated independently by a facility management partner.

There is an Uptown Square Plan in place that anticipates a future small scale grocer, restaurants and retail, all
of which are under construction or soon will be. The Village intends the Uptown Square area to be a place for residents
to gather, shop and dine.

BG Investments has started construction on the 10,000 square foot restaurant and retail building that will be
home to Fat Ricky’s Restaurant and Franconi’s Grocery Store at the southwest corner of Illinois Route 53 and Phelps
Avenue in front of the new Edward Hospital Athletic and Events Center in Uptown Square. Construction is expected to
be complete towards the end of 2016.

Plans for a 9,000 square foot retail center at the northwest corner of lllinois Route 53 and Alexander Circle in
front of the new Edward Hospital Athletic and Events Center in Uptown Square are approved. The developer, the Pal
Group, should start construction in the spring or summer of 2016.

McDonald’s opened their fourth restaurant in the Village at the northeast corner of Illinois Route 53 and
Greenwood Avenue in October of 2015.

The Edward Hospital Athletic and Events Center and other uptown revitalization projects, funded solely
through TIF dollars and/or tax increment bonds include storm water improvements, land acquisition, streetscape
improvements, road improvements, economic incentives and building renovations. The Village spent most of 2009 and
2010 preparing a Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy, updating its 2001 Comprehensive Plan, adopting a
new Transportation Plan and updating a Marketing Strategy to attract investment as the credit crisis waned.
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SOCIOECONOMIC INFORMATION

Employment

Substantial employment is available in surrounding communities and throughout the Chicago metropolitan area.
Numerous employers are located within the Village and in surrounding communities.

The following employment data shows a consistently diverse and strong growth trend for employment in Will
County. This data is NOT comparable to similar U.S. Census statistics, which would include government employment,
and establishments not covered by the Illinois Unemployment Insurance Program, and could classify employment
categories differently.

Will County Private, Non-Agricultural Employment
Covered by the Illinois Unemployment Insurance Act(/)

[Data as of March for each Year)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Farm and Forestry ... ... 0vvvvirviiiniin e eennnns 233 263 248 240 261
#ining and Construction........... ... ... .. ... .. ... ..., 9,500 9, 802 10, 000 10, 836 11,047
Manufacturing . ... . . e 19, 544 19.512 19, 887 19171 19,138
Transportation, Communications, Utilities............... 14. 366 14, 616 15, 659 17, 456 18, 203
Wholesale Trade .. ... ... ... . .00 ittt 12. 854 13.141 12,928 14, 721 15, 693
Retail Trade .. ... it 26.716 21,673 26.571 26, 601 27.753
finance, Insurance, Real Estate......................... 7.638 8. 052 6. 996 6,943 6. 648
SErvices () L e 70.479 74. 280 79. 063 82,127 83, 757

Total ... ... ... %5 L. . o0 b BT 161, 330 167, 339 171,353 178, 695 182, 500

Percent Chamge . ... ... ... . i i (3. 75%) 3.72% 24.0% 4.28% 2.13%

Notes mn Source: |llinois Department of Employment Security.
{2) Ineludes unclassified establishments.
3 Percent increase based on 158, 494 employment in 2010.

Following are lists of large employers located in the Village and the surrounding areas. Additional employment
opportunities are available to Village residents throughout the Chicago metropolitan area.

Major Village Employers(!)

Approximate
Name Product, /Service Emp loyment
Velley View School District ... ........ .. .. ... ... . . ... ..., Education : 1300
Peacock Englineering ssni s il s o bl o Ana s sl natlinpite s . Food Manufacturer ... . . .. ... . 1200
POV Midwest Rafining GITGD. ... ... . ... ... . ... ... .. ... . ... Fuels Refifery-ciu e vl @imasaeat Ui ieniny 803
Aryztars. .. ... .. kb e S W W e Food Manufacturer 600
Uta . ...oiiinn .. Dffices/Distribution 543
Walmart ..o Retail Store . ot YR A g P T B SR 537
RTC synin. oo e i e e n St o s T s L Ay P oot .. Distribution/Manufacturing 530
Kagid Glove and Safaty ... Headquarters/Manufacturing 529
Lewis University ... .... Education Sy B 525
Kehe Foods ... ..... . ... Headquarters/Food Distributor 605
FedEx Ground ...... e .. Distribution . ... 500
Village of Romeavilie .. ... ....MWumicipal Govermment ... ... .. . . ... .. .. 450
Innotrac ......... i a5 T T T g bae TV R RS o wo DUSERBUEION ;15 0 e i 4w e el Vi b s 300
Lifetime Fitness.. =icisisinimidiironad e odeta lun e ey .. Fitness Center il 215
SemSUNE . .........coouvin.. .... Electronic Distribution ... 250
Targetia. . ... oo Seian o e e P .oRetail Store ... . L. 220
ALG Dirsct . ... .o . ciGiidinG s a i ainens .. Logistics 204
Kimberly Clark ... ... . e Distribution .. o 200
Christian Brothers., .. . .. .. . . . .. .. Hon=for-Profit Orgenization Offices. ... .. ... . ... 183
Pactiv Corporation .. ... .............oiiiiin... .. Distribution . .. T e i T P R I 181
Midwest Genmeration. i oy i e v amr o e e A o WU e o s Electrical Generation .. 178
Readerlink .........;gechcsc e cnn it ol o, iz Distribution . .. .. . ... 166
Florstar ............... . ... ... CoBistribution .. o 161
Kole Constructlion. . | i svaii i s e i Construction .. 160
Sam's Club ... .. ... s o s s R G Bt sl finiq .. Wholesale Retail Store .. ... ... ..... .. ........ ..... 160
Chicago Tube and lron. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... Corporate/Metal Processing 159
Comecast ........... Pt T .. Distribution Center .. e R e L L AT 150
Metropolitan Industries vo.. Industrial Pump Manufacturer .. ... . .. ... ... ... ... 150

Notes {3)  Source the Village
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Major Area Employers(/)

Approximate
Location Name Product/Service Emp loyment
Maperville................ ... Edward-Elimhurst Healthcare................ General Hospital ... .. ... ... ...l 4,500
APEONNG. ...t itevineeranns Argonne National Laboratory............... Research and Development ... ................. . 3,350
Naperville................... Alcatel Lucent Technologies............... Telecommunications . .........coveveveieiirennnnns 3.000
Joliet. ... .. oo Presence St. Joseph Medical Center........ Regional Medical Center ... ... .............. ... 2.430
Joliet. ... it Will County.. ... ieiaeans County Government . .............veiveriiiiiiinis 2,400
Joliet........... i State of (ihimois(2)...........cciiiiinns State Government Offices. ... .................... 2,350
New Lenox. ................... Silver Cross Hospital..................... General Hospital .. ... .. ... .. coiiiiiiiivnines 2,200
dJoliet. ..o i Caterpillar. Inc........... .o viinnvnn. Heavy Tractors and Earth Moving Equipment....... 2,000
Jaliet. . ... . i Hol lywood Casino........ ... Casinos, Hotels, Resorts and Riverboats ......... 2,000
AUFOPE. ... ieeeeeenns Rush Copely Medical Center................ Hospital ... i 2.000
Naperville................... BP Naperville Complex..................... Chemical and Petrochemical Research............. 1. 600
Naperville................... Office Max., Inc...........oviiiiiiiiinas Stationary and Office Supplies.................. 1. 500
AUFOra. . ..o i Presence Mercy Medical Center............. HoSPital ... ... o Ediit e o e e s fbiina s oy : 1,300
Naperville................... Nalco Co. ..otireie i Research and Development . ....................... 1,200
AUTOFA. . ..o Dreyer Medical Clinic.................ois Medical Services............covvvevrriareinsennnns 1,200
dJoliet. ... e University of St. Francis................. University...... Spdashac. o8 .00 L E 1.100

Notes: (1) Source: 2016 1llinois Manufacturers Directory. 2016 1l)inois Services Directory and a selective telephone survey.
(2) Includes all of Will County.

The following tables show employment by industry and by occupation for the Village, the County and the State
of Illinois (the “State™) as reported by the U.S. Census Bureau 2010-2014 American Community Survey 5-year
estimated values.

Employment By Industry(/)

The Village The County The State

Classification Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting, and MWining..... 40 0.2% 1.330 0. 4% 63,558 1.1%
CONSErUG LI OM. .. e ettt it it r e s 1,161 6. 3% 19,030 5.8% 308, 760 8. 1%
ManufactUr iME. . oottt e s et 2. 360 12.7% 38,475 i1.8% 756, 747 12.5%
Wholesale Trade. . . ... it erae s aiiaians 904 4,9% 10,573 3.2% 181,835 3.0%
Retail Trade.. ... ..ottt e enineaianananon 2,284 12.3% 39, 827 12.2% 663, 401 11.0%
Transportation and Warehousing. and Utilities.............. 1,506 8. 1% 25,040 7.7% 353,089 5.9%
[T 0 T L TSP A 375 2.0% 6. 740 2. 1% 124, 634 2.1%
Finance and Insurance, and Real Estate and Rental and

[T 112 1,037 5. 6% 21,722 6. 6% 442, 01 7.3%
Professional, Scientific. and Management, Administrative.

and Waste Management Services............coeeioienronanins 1,581 8.5% 36, 102 11, 0% 681, 276 11, 3%
Educational Services and Health Gare and Social Assistance. 3. 714 20. 4% 73, 100 22.3% 1,391,310 23.1%
Arts, Entertainment and Recreation and Accommodation and

FOO SIVICES. . oottt e e 2,299 12. 4% 27.754 8.5% 544,222 g.0%
Other Services, Except Public Administration............... 697 3.8% 15108 4,6% 288, 596 4. 8%
Public Adminiskration. .. ... ..o ieemomniiiiiiiiiinnenes 503 27 12. 469 3. 8% 232, 492 3.9%

)12 P P 18, 521 100. 0% 327.2710  100.0% 6,032, 03§ 100, 0%

Note: (1) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census., American Community Survey S-year estimates 2010 to 2014,
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The Village The County The_State

Classification Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Management, Business, Science and Arts ..................... 5 314 28 7% 118, 255 36. 1% 2,204, 363 36. 5%
Sorvice ;. .S, SoriErTEE. G5 i L eEeTE L T T s - T 3401 18. 4% 51,201 15. 6% 1,048, 478 17. 4%
Sales and Office ......... ... iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaeee... 4740 25 6% 84, 609 25, 9% 1, 500, 220 24.9%
Natural Resources, Construction, and Maintenance ........... 1,908 10 3% 28,241 8. 6% 441, 705 7.3%
Production, Transportation, and Material Moving.... ......... 3. 158 17.1% 44,964 1375 837, 265 13. 9%

Tokalgs. oibeinirimmag V= L EERL L CEESERD VS 18,521 100.0% 321,270 100, 0% 6,032,031 100. 0%

Employment By Occupation(/)

Note: {1) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census. American Community Survey 5-year estimates 2010 to 2014.

Unemployment Rates

Unemployment rates for the Village, the County and the State as shown below.

Building Permits

Calendar

Year

2005 .......
2006 ... ...
2007 .......
2008 ... ...
2009 ... ...
2010 ... ...
2000 .......
2012 .. ..

Annual Average Unemployment Rates(/)

Calendar The The The
Year Village County State
2006, ... ... 00t 4.2% 4 3% 4.5%
2007, s o viine ene.. TR 4.7 5 0%
2008.................0....  B2% 6. 1% 6. 4%
2009, .. ... 0. 3% 10.2% 10 1%
20000 .. ... . ... 10. 5% 10.7% 10. 5%
2000, wt e LT L 9, 8% 10.1% 9.8%
2012, 2l sl e v e et 9 0% 9.0% 81%
2003, caioais - et oo m e v s 9.3% 9 45 9. 4%
2004, 8. 5% 7.4% 7.1%
2018. . - - 6. 0% 5. 9%
2016 (2)na. Dl g, L L i 6 7% 6. 4% 6.2%

Notes: {1} Source: |Illinois Department of Employment Security.

{20 Preliminary rate for the month of April 2016.

Village Building Permits(/}
(Excludes the Value of Land)

Single-Family(2) Multi-Famiiy(3) Miscel laneous Total

Units Value Units Value Value (4) Value
55 $4,928,375 135 $12. 378, 736 $12.552, 454 $29, 859, 565
54 8, 648,892 5% 4,939,301 1,929, 333 15,517,526
42 9,723.433 14 3. 668, 467 2. 809, 854 16,201,754
20 4,027,479 347 35, 890. 503 2,349,933 42,267,915
10 2.070,293 0 0 1,761, 448 3.831.741
1 2,548,853 0 0 1. 829, 483 4,378,336
5 1,085,427 0 0 1,714, 681 2,770,108
10 2.169, 469 0 0 2,051, 287 4,220,756
24 4,140,235 0 0 2,740,550 6, 880,785
14 2,750,408 0 0 4,844,675 7,595, 083
21 3. 988, 407 5 9500, 000 4,439,131 17,927,540

Source: Village of Romeoville Community Development Department.

Single-Fami|ly includes detached units and duplexes.

Multi-Family includes townhomes with more than 2 attached units, apartment
buildings. and group guarters.

Miscellaneous wvalue includes residential remodels, garages. and accessory
structures |ike sheds, decks. pools. porches, patios and driveways.
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Housing

The U.S. Census Bureau 5-year estimated values reported that the median value of the Village’s owner-
occupied homes was $167,300. This compares to $212,700 for the County and $175,700 for the State. The following
table represents the five year average market value of specified owner-occupied units for the Village, the County and
the State at the time of the 2010-2014 American Community Survey.

Home Values(/)
The Yillage The County The State

Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Under $50.000.............. 183 1.8% 5,962 3.3% 243,163 7. 6%
$50,000 to $99.99G6......... 579 5. 8% 10,978 6.0% 508. 867 15. 9%
$100,000 to $149,999. . ... .. 2.920 29.2% 26,026 14. 2% 525, 634 16. 5%
$150.000 to $199.999....... 3,382 33.8% 40,657 22.2% 533, 202 16. 7%
$200,000 to $299.699....... 2,697 26, 5% 53, 751 28 4% 663,672 20. 8%
$300,000 to $499,999. . ..... 280 2.8% 36, 360 19, 9% 486. 000 15.2%
$500,000 to $999.999....... 0 0.0% 8.618 4.7% 188, 718 5%
$1,000, 000 or more......... 12 0.1% 561 0.3% 45451 1. 4%

Total.................... 10,013 100. 0% 182.913 100. 0% 3,194,707 100. 0%

Note: (1) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census. American Community Survey 5-year estimates 2010 to 2014.

Mortgage Status(/)
The Village The_County The State
Value Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Housing Units with a Mortgage...... 7,985 79.7% 140, 090 76. 6% 2,146, 363 67. 2%
Housing Units without a Mortgage... _2.028 20.3% 42.823 23, 4% 1,048, 344 32. 8%
Totalivimes: ||l i5a . ... 10,013 100. 0% 182,913 100. 0% 3. 194,707 100, 0%

Note: (1) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census, American Community Survey S-year estimates 2010 to 2014,

Income

Per Capita Personal Income
for the Eleven Highest Income Counties in the State(/)

Renk 2010-2014
| I DuPage County ............... $38. 931
2 i Lake County ................. 38, 459
. J McHenry County .............. 33.118
A Monroe County ............... 33.059
- T Piatt County ................ 31,750
6. ... Kendall County .............. 3.1o
T e Will County ................- 30,7191
A Mclean County ............... 30. 728
0 Kane County ................. 30. 645
10, Sangamon County ............. 30.594
| S Gook Gounty ................. 30. 468

Note: (1)} Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census. 2010-2014
American Community 5-Year Estimates.
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The following shows a ranking of median family income for the Chicago metropolitan area from the 2010-2014
American Community Survey,

Ranking of Median Family Income(/)

The Family

County I ncome Rank
DuPage County .............. $96, 330 1
Lake County ................ 92,910 2
Kendal| County ............. 92,794 3
McHenry County ............. 88, 699 4
Will County ................ 87,503 5
Kane County ................ §1.273 8
Cook County ................ 66,712 25

Note: (1) Source: U5, Bureau of the Census. 2010-
2014 American Community 5-Year Estimates.

The U.S. Census Bureau 5-year estimated values reported that the Village had a median family income of
$74,299. This compares to $87,503 for the County and $70,967 for the State. The following table represents the
distribution of family incomes for the Village, the County and the State at the time of the 2010-2014 American
Community Survey.

Family Income(/)

The Viilage The County The State

Income Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Under $10,000,............. 240 2.5% 4,435 2. 6% 138, 048 4, 4%
$10,000 to $14,999......... 100 1.1% 2,365 1. 4% 84,725 2.7%
$15,000 to $24,999, . ....... 448 4.7 8, 246 4. 8% 222.412 7.1%
$25.000 to $34,999, .. ... .. 610 6. 5% 9,314 5. 5% 252,033 B.0%
$35,000 to $49,999,........ 1. 155 12. 2% 16,073 g 4% 376, 290 12, 0%
$50,000 to $74.999.,....... 2.4 23.8% 30, 345 17.7% 577,132 18. 4%
$75,000 to $99,999.. ... ..., 1.832 19. 4% 29, 306 17.1% 465, 095 4. 9%
$100,000 to $149,9099....... 2,249 23.8% 39, 903 23.3% 553,083 17.7%
$150,000 to $199,999....... 433 4. 6% 17, 748 10. 4% 230,525 7. 4%
$200,000 or more........... _ 124 1.3% 13. 423 7.8% 231,782 1. 4%

Total........oovvinintt. 9,432 100, 0% i7n.217 100. 0% 3,131,125 100. 0%

Note: {1} Source: U.S. Bureau of the Gensus. American Community Survey S-year estimates 2010 to 2014

The U.S. Census Bureau 5-year estimated values reported that the Village had a median household income of
$66,705. This compares to $76,142 for the County and $57,166 for the State. The following table represents the
distribution of household incomes for the Village, the County and the State at the time of the 2010-2014 American
Community Survey.

Household Income(/)

The Vil lage The County The State

| ncome Nuimber Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Under $10,000.............. 364 3 1% 8.129 3. 6% 3N, 784 1.2%
$10,000 to §14,999......... 248 2.1% 5317 2.4% 218.422 4, 6%
$15,000 to $24,999......... 555 4.7% 15, 759 7.1% 479, 384 10. 0%
$25.000 to $34,999......... 875 1.4% 15, 651 7.0% 455, 890 9. 5%
$35,000 to $49,999.,....... 1,677 14, 3% 24,324 10. 9% 614, 706 i2.9%
$50,000 to $74,995. ... ... 2,812 23.9% 40, 497 18.1% 852, 342 17.8%
$75,000 to $99,999......... 2,252 19, 2% 35,127 15. 7% 612, 247 12. 8%
$100,000 to $149,999 ... .. 2,332 19. 9% 44,739 20, 0% 671,103 14. 0%
$150.000 to $199,099....... 494 4.2% 19,213 8. 6% 265, 693 5. 6%
$200.000 or more........... 138 1.2% 14. 563 6. 5% 2617, 062 5. 6%

Total.................... 11,747 100, 0% 223,319 100. 0% 4,778,633 100. 0%

Note: (1) Source: U. S Bureau of the Census. American Community Survey 5-year estimates 2010 to 2014.

14
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Retail Activity

The table below shows the distribution of the municipal portion of the Retailers’ Occupation, Service
Occupation and Use Tax (“Sales Tax”) collected by the Illinois Department of Revenue from retailers within the
Village. The table indicates the level of retail activity in the Village.

Retailers’ Occupation, Service Occupation and Use Tax(/)

State Fiscal Year State Sales Tax Annual Percent

Ending June 30 Distributions(2) Change + (=)
2006. ... ... .. e e.. $3,484,081 (3. 40%) (3
2007 oo . . i TR v e e e ST e s 3,513, 645 0. 85%
2008 . ... i 4,252,547 21.03%
20005, .t et . B - 4,224,703 (0. 65%)
20005 s s P edin, ... 4,011,997 (5. 03%)
2000 i L i i ST e e 0o SRR 4, 208, 452 4. 90%
2012 e 4,315,415 3.97%
20135, Eomilpediiginn L L, S, 4,284 329 (2.08%
2014 5; 0 g LN L L L S 4,551.438 6. 23%
2015 i: 5o bt e+ e e oo i e e B 5,334,243 17.20%

Growth from 2006 to 2005, ... .. ... .o 53. 10%
Notes: (1 Source: |llinois Department of Revenue
(2) Tax distribution are based on records of the |Illinois

Department of Revenue relating to the 1% municipal portion of
the Retailers’ Occupation. Service Occupation and Use Tax
col lected on behalf of the Village, less a State
administration fee. The municipal 1% includes tax receipts
from the sale of food and drugs which are not taxed by the
State.

(3 The 2006 percentage is based on the 2005 sales tax of
$3. 606, 5B7.

PLAN OF FINANCING

Bond proceeds will be used to fund an escrow to advance refund a portion of the Village’s outstanding 2009
Bonds, as listed below (the “Refunded Bonds”):

The Refunded Bonds

Outstanding Amount Redemption Redemption
Maturity Amounts Refunded (1) Price Date
12/30/2016,,.......... $ 270,000 $ 0 NA NA
12/30/2017............ 285, 000 0 NA NA
12/30/2018, . .......... 300, 000 300. 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2019............ 315, 000 315,000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2020............ 330, 000 330. 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2021............ 345, 000 345,000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2022............ 365, 000 365. 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2023............ 380. 000 380, 000 100, 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2024. . .......... 400, 000 400. 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2025............ 420, 000 420,000 100, 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2026............ 440, 000 440, 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2027............ 465, 000 465, 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2028............ 4490, 000 490, 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017
12/30/2029............ 510, 000 510, 000 100. 00% 12/30/2017

Total............... $5, 315, 000 $4, 760,000
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Bond proceeds will be used to purchase direct full faith and credit obligations of the United States of America
(the “Government Securities™), the principal of which together with interest to be earned thereon will be sufficient (i) to
pay when due the interest on the Refunded Bonds as stated above, and (ii) to pay principal of and call premium, if any,
on the Refunded Bonds on their respective redemption dates. The remaining bond proceeds will be used to pay the
costs of issuing the Bonds.

The Government Securities will be held in an escrow account created pursuant {0 an escrow letter agreement
(the “Escrow Agreement”) dated as of the day of delivery, between the Village and Amalgamated Bank of Chicago,
Chicago, Illinois, as Escrow Agent (the “Escrow Agent”).

All moneys and Government Securities deposited for the payment of Refunded Bonds, including interest
thereon, are required to be applied solely and irrevocably to the payment of the Refunded Bonds.

The Securities will be deposited into the Escrow under an escrow agreement between the Village and the
Escrow Agent to accomplish the advance refunding of the Refunded Bonds. The accuracy of (a) the mathematical
computations of the adequacy of the maturing principal of an interest earnings on the Securities together with any initial
cash deposit in the Escrow to pay the Refunded Bonds through and including the Redemption Date and (b) the
mathematical computations supporting the conclusions that the Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds™ under Section 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 will be verified by Sikich, LLP, Independent Certified Public Accountant, 1415
Waest Diehl Road, Naperville, Illinois. Such verification will be based upon information supplied by the Underwriter,
as hereinafter defined.
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Village of Romeoville, 1Vdl County. Himors
Generad Obligaton Refumding Bonds, Series 20064

General Obligation Bonded Debt(/)
(After the Refunding - Principal Only)

Outstanding Less: Tatal
Calendar Bonded The Refunded Banded __Cumulative Retirement
Year Debt (2) __Bonds Bonds __Debt Amount Percent
2006............ $ 7.850.000 $§ 35.000 § 0 § 7.885, 000 $7.885.000 9.17%
W07 i sniadn 8, 350, 000 60. 000 0 8, 450, 000 16, 335, 000 19. 00%
2008 s i s 7.220, 000 360, 000 {300, 00} 7,280, 000 23.615.000 27.47%
2009 s e iannmivna 6. 600. 000 370. 000 (315, 000) 6. 655, 000 30. 270, 000 35 21%
2020, ............. 6. 950, 000 375, 000 (330, 000} 6. 995, 000 31, 265, 000 43 34%
201 4,829,425 385, 000 (345, 000} 4, 869, 425 42,134,425 49004
2022550 L Ry e 4.961. 160 400, 000 (365, 000} 4,996, 160 47,130, 585 54, 82%
20230 mris L v 4, 855, 040 405. 000 (380, 000) 4. 880. 040 52,010,625 60. 49%
L1/ E— 4,676, 740 420,000 (400, 000} 4,696, 740 56. 707, 365 65, 954
2025, ... ..., 4,415, 205 435, 000 (420, 000) 4, 430, 205 61,137,570 L%
2026, . .............. 2,830,830 445, 000 {440, 000} 2,835,830 63,973, 400 74.40%
200750 N 2,708, 605 465, 000 {465. 000) 2,708, 605 66, 682, 005 77.55%
2028z iy Ly 2,593, 400 470.000 (490, 000} 2,573,400 69, 255, 405 80.55%
2029, cviien s 2.484,180 480, 000 {310, 000} 2,454,180 71,709, 585 83. 40%
2030, ... ... 1,851, 460 ] 0 1,851, 460 73.561, 045 85, 56%
200 1.739.010 ] 0 1,739,010 75. 300, 055 B7. 58%
2032 T 1.640.210 0 0 1,640, 210 76. 940, 265 89 49%
2033 s e R 1, 546, 740 0 ] 1, 546, 740 78. 487, 005 91. 28%
03 e e gy 1,458,215 0 0 1,458,275 79. 945, 280 92.98%
2035.. ..., 1,374, 620 ] 0 1,374,620 81,319, 900 94 58%
2036, ..., 1,295,515 0 ] 1,295 515 82,615, 415 96.09%
203 1,220, 765 0 0 1,220, 765 83.836. 180 97.51%
03B, | s i 1,136, 460 0 Iy} 1, 136. 460 84,972, 640 98. B3%
2009, oy 1. 008, 244 ¢ 0 1.008 244 85, 980. B84 100, 00%
Total...... .. ... $85.635, 884 $5. 105, 000 ${4, 760, 000} $85, 980, 884
Hotes: {1} Source: the Village

(2) See Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Debt table herein.

General Obligation Bonded Debt - By Issue(/)

Issue
Series 20074

Series 2008C . ..........
Series 2009(2){3) .......
Series 2002A . ...........
Series 20128 . ...........
Series 2013A
Series 2013B ............
Series 2014 .

Series 20016 ..............

Notes: (1) Source:

Series 2008A . ............
Series 20088 .............

Source of Debt

the ¥illage

Amount Service Payments
........ $ 1,315,000 Property Taxes
........ 5, 350, 000 Property Taxes
........ 36, 335, 884 Property Taxes
......... 2,750, 000 Property Taxes
......... 555, 000 Property Taxes
......... 380, 000 Property Taxes
......... 1. 240, 000 Property Taxes
....... 10. 640, 000 Property Taxes
........ 2,175,000 Property Taxes
....... 8. 185, 000 Property Taxes
....... 11. 950, 000 Property Taxes
....... 5, 105, 000 Property Taxes
........ $85. 980, 884

(2} Does not inciude bonds to be refunded
(3} General obligation bonds but expected to he paid from the
Real Estate Transfer Tax.
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Viltege of Romeoville, Will County, Hinos
CGeneral Obigution Refunding Bonds, Seres 20164

Detailed Overlapping Bonded Debt(/)

Outstanding Applicable to Village
Debt (2} Percent (3} Amount

Schools: E—
Schoo! District Number 88-A. ... .. .. .. . ...................... $ 24920 000 18, 48% $ 4,605,216
School District Number 92.. ... .. ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... 7. 180, 000 19. 91% 1,429, 538
School District Number 202. ... ... . .. .. . . . .. . i 262, 665, 000 9. 04% 23,744, 916
School District NMumber 365-U.. . ..... . .. ... .....c0oov oo, 122,274,518 27.82% 34,016, 71
High School District Number 205. . . ... ... ... ... . ..... .. ... ... 6, 735, 000 8. 29% 558, 332
Comunity College District Number 525 . . ... ............. ... 191, 235, 000 5, 88% 11.244. 618

Total Sehools. o o St F i L e e e o e e $75, 599, 390
Others:
Will County (4. .. .. .. .. 8 0 5.77% $ 1
Will County Forest Preserve District. ................... ... 125,014, 710 5.71% 7,213, 349
Fountaindale Library District... ... . ... .. .0 oooeiie . 34, 250, 000 0. 14% 47,950
Lemont Park District..... ... ... ... ..o i 11, 345, 000 0. 05% 5,673
Lockport Park District. . ... ........ . .. .. . . . i 6, 108, 000 26.09% 1,583,577
Plainfield Park District 3,419,000 5. 40% 184. 626

L g e e oy S 9,045.174

Total Schools and Other Overlapping Bonded Debt................ o i $84, 644, 565
Notes: (1) Source: Will County Clerk

(2)  As of May 25. 2016.
(3)  Overlapping debt percentages based on 2015 EAY, the most current available.
{4} Will County debt of $122,235 000 is self-supporting. so it is not included in the table

Statement of Bonded Indebtedness(/)

Ratio To Per Capita
Amount Equal i zed Estimated (2010 Census
Applicable Assessed Actual 39, 680)
Village EAV of Taxable Property, 2015................ $1.065, 515, 505 100. 00% 33.33% $26,852. 11
Estimated Actual Value, 2015.... ... ................ $3. 196, 546, 515 300. 00% 100, 00% $80, 558 13
Total Direct Debt (2)................. ... ............ $ 85,980,884 8.07% 2, 69% $ 2 166. 86
Over lapping Bonded Debt (3):
Schools. ... oo $ 75,599 390 7.10% 2.37% $1,905.23
Other. ... 9,045.174 0. 85% 0. 28% 227. 485
Total Overlapping Bonded Debt...................... $ 84,644 564 7. 94% 2, 65% $2133.18
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt ... ... $ 170,625, 448 16.01% 5. 34% $ 4,300.04
Notes: (1) Source: Will County Clerk and the Village.

{2) The Village plans to use property taxes to pay the Series 2012A and 20128 bonds. Water and sewer funds will be
used to pay the 2007A, 2008C bonds and a portion of the 2014 bonds. General corporate funds, excluding property
taxes. will pay the Series 2008A, 20088. 2009, = portion of the 2014. 2016 bonds and the Bonds. The Village will
use Downtown Tax Increment Finance bonds to pay the Series 2013A and 20135 bonds.

{3} Debt as of May 25. 2016.

Default History

The Village has never issued any obligations to avoid default; nor has the Village ever defaulted in the payment
of any of its corporate obligations.



Village of Romeovidte, Will Cowney, ffurois
Crewreral Obligetion Refimding Bonds, Series 20164

PROPERTY ASSESSMENT AND TAX INFORMATION

For the 2015 levy year, the Village’s EAV is comprised of approximately 47% residential, 41% industrial,
11% commercial, and less than 1% farm and railroad property valuations.

Village Equalized Assessed Valuation(/)

Levy Years
Property Class 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Residential............... $ 593,012,119  § 536, 896,483 $ 489 085, 405 § 479,245, 446 $ 506, 065, 090
Farm.zs:. .. ixacisa s & 311, 695 362, 892 335. 369 426, 230 1. 415, 006
Commercial.._............. 114,159, 834 107, 944, 426 103,124,075 113, 584, 962 116,055, 318
Industrial................ 456, 400. 661 449, 467, 441 440, 699_411 444,332,719 441,647, 788
Railroad. .. .............. 271,276 286, 429 306. 855 306, 468 332, 303
Total. ... icwccoios . fan $1.164,155 585  $1,094, 957,671 $1,033,551, 111 $1.037, 895, 885 $1. 065, 515, 505
Percent Change +(-).... .. 8.81%) (2} (5, 94%) (5.61%) 0.42% 2. 66%
Notes: (1) Source: Will County Clerk.
{2) Percentage change based on 2010 EAV of $1.276, 684, 761.
Representative Tax Rates(/)
(Per $100 EAV)
Levy Years
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Village Rates:
Corporate.y iiin, . i iEwiSni L IsE . e $0. 2610 $0.2723 $ 0 3016 $ 0.3027 $ 0 2497
Street & Bridge:. ... ocicos siiiinic . .. Siibivem s 0. 0271 0. 0288 0. 0305 0.0304 0. 0296
Special Recreation. ........c.cviviineeinuriiioeennnss 0. 0200 0.0200 0. 0200 0, 0200 0 9200
Police Protection. . . u.sasvimys - smies « o« e o Subsiiamtio. 0. 0490 0.0521 0. 0552 0. 0550 0.0535
Fire Protection. ... ... .. ..o, 0.0417 0.0375 0. 0442 0. 0442 0. 0000
Ambulanee. ............ ... ... . ... N = 0. 0883 0.0794 0, 0982 0. 0980 0. 0000
Recreation,..........ccoveiiiniiiintoiae e aiinness 0. 1401 0. 1501 0. 1601 0. 1654 01770
T O N L S e 0. 0069 0.0074 0. 0049 0. 0049 0. 0047
Garbage Disposal.................cccoiiiuiiian. 0.0524 0. 0558 0. 0591 0. 0588 0.0573
Social Security....... e 017 0.1188 0.1258 0. 1253 0.1221
Palice Pension, ..........couvrinuinina e, 0.1173 0.1328 0. 1477 0. 1635 0. 1869
INSMPANCE, it o v e o i e e i e i 0. 1203 0.1279 0.1355 0. 1349 0.1314
Bonds & Interest............c.o0iieiniiii i 0.0835 0, 0858 0. 0809 0.0754 0.0786
Firemen Pension. ........ ..., 0.0400 0. 0606 0. 0449 0. 0453 0. 0000
Total Village Rates{2).................ccocovvinn.. $1.1593 $1,2293 $ 1.3086 $1.3278 $ 1.1108
Wildl County. .. ... i 0. 5551 0. 5696 0. 5994 0. 5210 C.6140
Will County Forest Preserve District................. 0. 1693 0. 1859 0.1970 0.1977 0.1937
Will County Building Commission...................... 0. 0200 0.0212 0. 0222 0.0223 0.02i8
Romeoville Mosquito Abatement District............... 0. 0096 0.0102 0.0109 0.0112 0.9114
DuPage Township(3)..............c i 0.0708 0.0769 0. 0805 0, 0824 0.0823
White Oak Library District........................... 0 2214 0.2422 0. 2638 0 3236 03168
Unit School District 365-U.................coovevnn.. 5. 9062 6. 7687 7. 3668 7.6318 7.5388
Romeoville Fire District............................. 0.0000 0.0000 0. 0000 0. 0000 0.1873
Community College Distriet 525....................... 0. 2463 0. 2758 0. 2955 0.3085 0. 3065
Total Rates(3)... ... ... i, $8.3580 $9.3808 $10. 1447 $10. 5263 $10.3834

Notes: (1)  Source: Will County Clerk,
(21 As a home rule unit. the Village does not have limits on its levies.
(3) Representative tax rates for other government units are from DuPage Township tax code 1208



Village of Romeovile, Will County, filinois
CGeneral Obligation Refunding Bumds, Series 20161

Village Tax Extensions and Collections(/)
(Includes Road and Bridge Levy)

Levy Co!l. Taxes Total Collections(3)
Year Year Extended (2) Amount Percent
20010 ... .. 201 $12, 852, 966 $12, 803, 539 99, 62%
11........ 2012 12,852, 637 12,791,222 99, 524
2012 ........ 2013 12, 852, 253 12,767,370 99, 344
2013 ........ 2014 12,924, 565 12,891,285 99, 74%
2014 ........ 2015 13, 160, 007 13,147.704 99.91%
2005 ........ 2016 11,835, 746 —~=-—|N COLLECT|ON-——-
Note: (1) Source: Will County Treasurer and the Village
Includes Romeoville Fire and excludes Road and Bridge
levy.

(2} Tax extensions have been adjusted for abatements.
(3) Total collections include back taxes, taxpayer refunds,
interest, ete

Principal Village Taxpayers(/)

Taxpayer Name Business/Service 2015 EAV(D)
PDV Midwest Refining......................................Refinery-Petroleum Products ............ooovsovronnonor... $132.583.871
Hart 155 Industrial LLE |isosev. i niihnsifmiae TReal Propertysi, ., . rcecd S0 sirabaitin g i i S bRty 21,892 729
Duke Secured Fin 2009-1ALZ LLC. ..... ..................... Real Property ........ ... T e e e e o e e TR 15, 549, 600
PLDAB LLC. . el { - e R L A et i RGBT Property T o A L RS + e BT e e e st e e e e o 14, 305, 000
Prologis- I|I|n0|s LLC e ieiiiataiaineverown.... Owner, Qperator and Developer uf Industrlal Real Estate...... 13, 343, 600
BAEV LaSalle.. L e e L e T i a i  m RBA . PrODRI LY, oo s cor e svie s moion min s pomsmommsre, Areemmas bomen s o+ = oep s o = s o0 9,798, 897
Pactiv Corp.. L e e e e s . Food Servicest DireBt Sales il i sl m i sams e it 9,591,571
J&J Romeovnlle Property el - - nnerseirer e Real Proper iy s e e e e 9,121,748
JRC Remington/Et AL LLC s..... ... . .. . o oo Real PrOPertY o 8,522, 800
LPF 740, .. CReal PropertY s 8. 330. 405
Total. ..o e, $243.040, 221
Ten largest as a percent of the Village's 2015 EAV (SI 065 515 505] RN S T i e s s e e e 22 81%

Notes: (1) Source: Will County Clerk
(2} Every effort has been made to seek out and report the largest taxpayers. However, many of the taxpayers listed contain
multiple parcels, and it is possible that some parcels and their valuations have been overlooked. The 2015 EAV is the
most current available

REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT, TAX LEVY AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES

Tax Levy and Collection Procedures

Local assessment officers determine the assessed valuation of taxable real property and railroad property not held
or used for railroad operations. The Illinois Department of Revenue (the “Department™) assesses certain other types of
taxable property, including railroad property held or used for railroad operations. Local assessment officers’ valuation
determinations are subject to review at the county level and then, in general, to equalization by the Department. Such
equalization is achieved by applying to each county’s assessments a multiplier determined by the Department. The
purpose of equalization is to provide a common basis of assessments among counties by adjusting assessments toward the
statutory standard of 33-1/3% of fair cash value. Farmland is assessed according to a statutory formula which takes into
account factors such as productivity and crop mix. Taxes are extended against the assessed values after equalization.



Pitlage of Romeovitle, Will Cownty, Hinens
Crenerel Oblazation Refimedge Bonds, Sertes 20640

Property tax levies of each taxing body are filed in the office of the county clerk of each county in which territory
of that taxing body is located. The county clerk computes the rates and amount of taxes applicable to taxable property
subject to the tax levies of each taxing body and determines the dollar amount of taxes attributable to each respective
parcel of taxable property. The county clerk then supplies to the appropriate collecting officials within the county the
information needed to bill the taxes attributable to the various parcels therein. Afiter the taxes have been collected, the
collecting officials distribute to the various taxing bodies their respective shares of the taxes collected. Taxes levied in
one calendar year are due and payable in two installments during the next calendar year. Taxes that are not paid when
due, or that are not paid by mail and postmarked on or before the due date, are subject to a penalty of 1-1/2% per month
until paid. Unpaid property taxes, together with penalties, interest and costs, constitute a lien against the property subject
to the tax.

Exemptions

An annual General Homestead Exemption provides that the EAV of certain property owned and used for
residential purposes (“Residential Property™) may be reduced by the amount of any increase over the 1977 EAV, up to a
maximum reduction of $6,000 for tax year 2012 and thereafier.

The Homestead Improvement Exemption applies to Residential Properties that have been improved or rebuilt in
the 2 years following a catastrophic event. The exemption is limited to $45,000 through December 31, 2003, and $75,000
per year beginning January |, 2004 and thereafier, to the extent the assessed value is attributable solely to such
improvements or rebuilding.

The Senior Citizens Homestead Exemption annually reduces the EAV on residences owned and occupied by
senior citizens. Beginning with tax year 2013, the maximum exemption is $5,000.

A Senior Citizens Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption freezes property tax assessments for homeowners,
who are 65 and older and receive a household income not in excess of the maximum income limitation. The maximum
income limitation is $35,000 for years prior to 1999, $40,000 for assessment years 1999 through 2003, $45,000 for
assessment years 2004 and 2003, $50,000 from assessment years 2006 and 2007 and for assessments year 2008 and after,
the maximum income limitation is $55,000. In general, the Senior Citizens Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption
limits the annual real property tax bill of such property by granting to qualifying senior citizens an exemption as to a
portion of the valuation of their property. For those counties with a population of less than 3,000,000, the Senior Citizens
Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption is as follows: through assessment year 2005 and for assessment year 2007 and
later, the exempt amount is the difference between (i) the current EAV of their residence and (ii) the base amount, which
is the EAV of a senior citizen’s residence for the year prior to the year in which he or she first qualifies and applies for the
Exemption (plus the EAV of improvements since such year). For assessment year 2006, the amount of the Senior
Citizens Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption phases out as the amount of household income increases. The amount
of the Senior Citizens Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption is calculated by using the same formula as above, and
then multiplying the resulting value by a ratio that varies according to household income.

The Natura) Disaster Homestead Exemption (the “Natural Disaster Exemption™) applies to homestead properties
containing a residential structure that has been rebuilt following a natural disaster occurring in taxable year 2012 or any
taxable year thereafter. A natural disaster is an occurrence of widespread or severe damage or loss of property resulting
from any catastrophic cause including but not limited to fire, flood, earthquake, wind, or storm. The Natural Disaster
Exemption is equal to the equalized assessed value of the residence in the first taxable year for which the taxpayer applies
for the exemption minus the base amount. To be eligible for the Natural Disaster Exemption, the residential structure
must be rebuilt within two years after the date of the natural disaster, and the square footage of the rebuilt residential
structure may not be more than 110% of the square footage of the original residential structure as it existed immediately
prior to the natural disaster. The Natural Disaster Exemption remains at a constant amount until the taxable year in which
the property is sold or transferred.

[
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Village of Romeoville, Wit County, o
Cieneral Obliganon Refunding Howds, Seeies 20064

Another exemption available to disabled veterans operates annually to exempt up to $100,000 of the assessed
valuation of property owned and used exclusively by such veterans or their spouses for residential purposes. Also, certain
property is exempt from taxation on the basis of ownership and/or use, such as public parks, not-for-profit schools and
public schools, churches, and not-for-profit hospitals and public hospitals. However, individuals claiming exemption
under the Disabled Persons’ Homestead Exemption or the Disabled Veterans Standard Homestead Exemption cannot
claim the aforementioned exemption.

Furthermore, beginning with assessment year 2007, the Disabled Persons’ Homestead Exemption provides an
annual homestead exemption in the amount of $2,000 for property that is owned and occupied by certain persons with a
disability. However, individuals claiming exemption as a disabled veteran or claiming exemption under the Disabled
Veterans Standard Homestead Exemption cannot claim the aforementioned exemption.

In addition, the Disabled Veterans Standard Homestead Exemption provides disabled veterans an annual
homestead exemption starting with assessment year 2015 and thereafter. Specifically, (i) those veterans with a service-
connected disability of 30% or more but less than 50% are granted an exemption of $2,500, (ii) those veterans with a
service-connected disability of 50% or more but less than 70% are granted an exemption of $5,000 and (iii) if the veteran
has a service-connected disability of 70% or more then the property is exempt from taxation under the code. Furthermore,
the veteran’s surviving spouse is entitled to the benefit of the exemption, provided that the spouse has legal or beneficial
title of the homestead, resides permanently on the homestead and does not remarry. However, individuals claiming
exemption as a disabled veteran or claiming exemption under the Disabled Persons” Homestead Exemption cannot claim
the Disabled Veterans Standard Homestead Exemption.

Beginning with assessment year 2007, the Returning Veterans’ Homestead Exemption is available for property
owned and occupied as the principal residence of a veteran in the assessment year the veteran returns from an armed
conflict while on active duty in the United States armed forces. This provision grants a homestead exemption of $5,000,
which is applicable in all counties. In order to apply for the Returning Veterans® Homestead Exemption, the individual
must pay real estate taxes on the property, own the property or have either a legal or an equitable interest in the property,
“or a leasehold interest of land on which a single family residence is located, which is occupied as a principle residence of
a veteran returning from an armed conflict involving the armed forces of the United States who has an ownership interest
therein, legal, equitable or as a lessee, and on which the veteran is liable for the payment of property taxes.” Those
individuals eligible for the Returning Veterans” Homestead Exemption may claim the Returning Veterans’ Homestead
Exemption, in addition to other homestead exemptions, unless otherwise noted.

Property Tax Extension Limitation Law

The Property Tax Extension Limitation Law (the “Limitation Law™) limits the amount of the annual increase in
property taxes to be extended for certain Illinois non-home rule units of government. In general, the Limitation Law
restricts the amount of such increases to the lesser of 5% or the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index during
the calendar year preceding the levy year. Currently, the Limitation Law applies only to and is a limitation upon all
non-home rule taxing bodies in Cook County, the five collar counties (DuPage, Kane, Lake, McHenry and Will) and
several downstate counties.

Home rule units, including the Village, are exempt from the limitations contained in the Limitation Law. If the
Limitation Law were to apply in the future to the Village, the limitations set forth therein will not apply to any taxes
levied by the Village to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS”
herein.



Viflage of Romeovalte, Will Cenmiy, HHinois
CGeneral Obligation Refunding Bonds. Series 20164

Mlinois legislators have introduced several proposals to modify the Limitation Law, including freezing property
taxes and extending tax caps to all taxing bodies (including home rule units) in the State (the “Property Tax Freeze
Proposal™). Specifically, Senate Bill 318 passed the lilinois Senate on August 4, 2015. This legislation includes,
among other items, a State-wide property tax freeze for levy years 2016 and 2017 for taxing districts located in counties
other than Cook County and levy years 2017 and 2018 for taxing districts located in Cook County. If the Property Tax
Freeze Proposal or similar legislation were to become law, such reform may have a impact on the finances of the
Village and the ability of the Village to issue non-referendum bonds. The Village cannot predict whether, or in what
form, any change to the Limitation Law, including the Property Tax Freeze Proposal, may be enacted into law, nor can
the Village predict the effect of any such change on the Village’s finances.

Truth in Taxation Law

Legislation known as the Truth in Taxation Law (the “Law™) limits the aggregate amount of certain taxes which
can be levied by, and extended for, a taxing district to 105% of the amount of taxes extended in the preceding year
unless specified notice, hearing and certification requirements are met by the taxing body. The express purpose of the
Law is to require published disclosure of, and hearing upon, an intention to adopt a levy in excess of the specified
levels.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

General

The accounting policies of the Village conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governments. The Village accounts for its financial resources on the basis of funds or account groups, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The General Fund is the general operation fund of the Village. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Special Revenue Funds
are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expandable trusts or
major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Enterprise Funds are established to account for the financing of self-supporting activities of the Village which
render services of a commercial nature on a user-charge basis to the general public. An enterprise fund is used to
account for water and sewer service of the Village.

Trust and Agency Funds are established for the purpose of accounting for money and property held by the
Village as trustee, custodian or agent.

Cash Management

The Village is authorized by State statute to invest in the following: obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S.
Government Agencies and instrumentalities and Certificates of Deposit and deposit accounts of banks and savings and
loan associations covered by federal depository insurance, and money market accounts.

The Village President and Board of Trustees designate depositories on an annual basis. The Village invests

operating funds in certificates of deposits and money market accounts. Each individual fund is responsible for its own
businesses.
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Budgetary Procedures

The President and Board of Trustees adopt an annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year. The ordinance
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them for the upcoming year. In addition, more detailed line
item budgets are prepared for administrative control. The level of control for the detail budgets is at the department
head/function level. The budget is prepared on a cash basis.

Quarterly reports are issued to the President and Board of Trustees to monitor revenues and expenditures. The
Village Manager and department heads receive quarterly reports. The Elected Officials, Village Manager and
Department heads all have the ability to generate financial reports any time they wish. Department heads may transfer
funds between line items within their budgets with the approval of the Village Manager and Treasurer, The President
and Board of Trustees may authorize supplemental appropriations or restrict departmental expenditures during the fiscal
year. Budgets lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

Operating Results and Fund Balances

The Village follows a modified accrual basis of accounting for all governmental funds and expandable trust
funds. All proprietary, non-expandable trust and pension trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis for
accounting. See APPENDIX A herein.

Financial Reports

The Village's financial statements are audited annually by certified public accountants. The Village's financial
statements for governmental funds are completed on a modified accrual basis of accounting consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental entities. See APPENDIX A for more detail.

No Consent or Updated Information Requested of the Auditor

The tables contained in this “FINANCIAL INFORMATION?™ section (the “Excerpted Financial Information™)
are from the audited financial statements of the Village, including the audited financial statements for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2015 (the “2015 Audit”), which was approved by formal action of the Village Board and attached to
this Final Official Statement as APPENDIX A. The Village has not requested the Auditor to update information
contained in the Excerpted Financial Information or the 2015 Audit; nor has the Village requested that the Auditor
consent to the use of the Excerpted Financial Information or the 2015 Audit in this Final Official Statement. Other than
as expressly set forth in this Final Official Statement, the financial information contained in the Excerpted Financial
Information and 2015 Audit has not been updated since the date of the 2015 Audit. The inclusion of the Excerpted
Financial Information and 2015 Audit in this Final Official Statement in and of itself is not intended to demonstrate the
fiscal condition of the Village since the date of the 2015 Audit. Questions or inquiries relating to financial information
of the Village since the date of the 2015 Audit should be directed to the Village.

Investment Policy

The Village deposits and invests all its monies in investments allowed by State Statutes. The Statutes authorize
the Village to make deposits in commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, and make investments in obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares,
repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating
services, and the Hlinois Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool. Pension funds may also invest in certain non-U.S.
obligations, mortgages, veteran’s loans, mutual funds, stocks and life insurance company contracts.
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The overall direction of the Viilage’s investment program may be found in the following objectives:

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the Village. Each investment transaction shall seek first
to insure that capital losses are avoided, whether they be from securities default or the erosion of
market values.

Liguidity is considered most important to enable the Village to meet all operating requirements.

Maximum raie of return. The Village’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the purpose of
regularly exceeding the average rate of return on the six month United States Treasury bills. The
investment program shall seek to augment returns above this threshold consistent with constraints
imposed by its safety objective, cash flow considerations and State starutes.

Diversification. In order to further guarantee asset safety, investments shall be diversified to avoid
incurring unreasonable risks from the practice of concentrating investments in specific security types
and/or individual financial institutions.

Public confidence. Investment officials shall recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public
review and evaluation. The overall program shall be designed and managed with a degree of
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. Investment shall be made with judgment and care,
under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs.

Responsibility. In accordance with 65 ILCS 5/3.1-35-50 the responsibility for conducting investment
transactions resides with the Village Treasurer. The Treasurer shall direct the investment transactions
program operations consistent with this policy and will identify those staff positions having investment
responsibility. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms
of this policy and procedures developed by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken, and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate
staff members.

The standard of prudence to be used by the Village officials and employees responsible for the investment of
public funds shall be the “prudent person” standard. Investments shall be made with judgment and care under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons knowledgeable on investment practices, and persons of prudence,
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment,
considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the possible income to be derived.

Summary Financial Information

The following tables are summaries and do not purport to be the complete audits, copies of which are available
upon request. See APPENDIX A for the Village’s 2015 Audit.
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Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets/Net Position(/)

Functions/Programs (2} :

General government. ... ... ........ ... ... ..ie..s

Public safety.

Audited Years Ended April 30

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

$1(11,350, 257
(13, 500, 026}

$(10.864. 174)
(14,353, 672)

${15,311,871}
(14, 456. 039}

${14,703, 606)
{10. 773. 697}

$(14, 904, 830)
(15,725, 126)

Public works. .........oo e 1208, 064) (4, 639, 060) (4, 090, 256) (3, 851, 996} (6, 400, 056)
Culture and recreation.......................... {2,575, 976) (2.677.603) (3. 127, 006) (3. 000, 854) (3, 294, 068)
Interest and fees .. .. .... (4. 264, 055) {4, 342, 536) (4. 289, 449) (4. 959, 369) (4. 794, 913}

Total Governmental Activities........ ........

General revenues

$131, 898, 378)

$(36. 917, 045)

$141,274, 621}

$(37, 289, 522)

${(45, 118,993}

Taxes:
Propertyis d s iaimed@Tvamn i, L, Eer BT AT $ 15,032,052 $ 15.279 544 $15,722,079  § 15,546,578 $ 15,269,501
Other. . . o roEpmalusutnm, . 2 . . et e 5 20, 710,929 21,731,694 21,567,039 23,454,923 25, 436, 286
Interest............. 246, 285 45,020 40,976 35, 369 64, 959
Miscel laneous. ... .. 78, 056 550, 066 80, 452 130, 520 165, 667
Special ltem...... e 0 0 0 ] 4, 288. 965
Total General Revenues and Transfers.. . ...... $ 36.067, 322 $ 37.606, 324 $ 37.410.546  § 39.167,390 § 45,225 448
Change in Net Assets/Net Position {1)... $ 4,168 944 $ 689. 279 $ (3,864,075 $§ 1,877,868 $ 106, 455
Net Assets/Met Position - Beginning (1}......... 264909, 1581(3) 269. 126, 524 (3} 267, 845, 803 (3) _270.105.375(3) _271.983. 243

Net Assets/Net Position - Ending (1)...........

$269.078.102

$269. 815. 803

$263.081,728

$271.983 243

Notes: (1} Format changed from Net Assets to Net Position in 2013,
(2) Expenses less program revenues of Charges for Services and Operating Grants and Contributions.
(3) Restated.

$272. 089. 698
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Statement of Net Assets/Net Position(/)
Governmental Activities

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash And Cash Equivalents ......................
Investments .. .. ... .. e
Receivables: . e T T T B S
Property Taxes .. ... ... iiiiniiiniiinnss
Accounts .. .. dda. L SanilFE LT URRATRSE. L L
Interestis; sirsdiommo s bidnitan | mlamme s
DthBraz . s - oo i Tl 75+« S N« o
Internal Balamces .. . .............. ... ... .....s
fue from Fiduciary Funds ... ... ................
Due from Other Governmental Units ..............
Total Current Assets .........................
Noncurrent Assets:
Net OPEB Asset ... . ... ... .. ....ccvviiiiiiinnnn.
Unamortized Bond Costz and Discounts ...........
Capital Assets. Not Being Depreciated ... ......
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (2):

As of April 30

2011 2012 2013 (2} 2014 2015
$ 22,549,609  § 24,243,292 § 24,241,771 § 25.298.279  § 27.884.219
5,589,013 2.888. 985 1,013, 690 4,322,982 4, 249, 366
12,852, 962 12, 852, 637 12, 852, 245 12,924, 566 13, 160, 007
966, 487 1. 579, 963 919, 181 625, 747 553,993
0 1,174 ] 1,219 10, 839
1,126,701 998, 178 844, 616 1. 248,075 1,131,815
(3.019, 829) 0 0 0 0
0 115, 868 130, 081 157, 890 114, 986
4. 396, 665 3. 649. 624 2,939, 685 3.678. 871 3. 646. 366
$ 44,461,608  $ 46,329,721  § 42,941,269  § 48,255,629  § 50.751.591
79.715 140, 935 156, 451 181, 417 184, 747
2,080, 291 1. 970. 000 ] 0 0
189, 128, 724 191, 045, 583 185, 209, 979 204, 967, 422 192,677,793
147.120. 528 145, 360, 335 152, 651, 650 153. 949, 224 159. 162. 196

$382. 870. 866

$384. 846,574

$380. 959. 349

Unamortized Loss on Refunding . ....... ... ... .ot ieieannan,
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources ... ........ . vt vnnn.

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable. ... ........................
Accrued Liabilities .o vvain e it ibivuteedss
Accrued Interest ...:iionims st et i 2
DepOSItS ..ttt e

Deferred Revenue . ...................cccviin...

Total Current Liabilities................c....

Noncurrent Liabilities (2):

Due Within Gne Year .............ovvvrianenn..

Due In More Than One Year ......................

Total Moncurrent Liabilities .................
Total Liabilities.........cov i iiiinns,

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES (2):

$407. 353, 692

$402.776.321

$ 95.661 § 67,156 § 34. 237

$ 95.661 § 67.156 § 34. 237

§ 1,900,580 § 2,247,260 § 3,326,527 § 3.611,526 § 2,732.54
1.046, 660 1, 656, 287 2,560,120 5, 050, 464 1,615,530
642, 421 614, 339 569. 104 688, 338 615,477
1,698, 751 2.157.780 1, 700, 994 2,080,048 2.346.998

12, 998, 580 12,871, 136 18, 305 22,273 17. 668
$18.287.001 $ 19.546.802 § B.175.047 § 11.452,649 § 7. 328 267
3,585, 540 3,984,512 4,313,986 § 6,041,422 § 6,363,894
91.920.214 91. 499. 457 91.732. 004 105. 018. 968 103. 619.012

$ 95.505. 754  § 95,483 969 96. 045. 990 111.060.390  §$109. 982 606

$113.792. 7155

$115.030. 771

$104. 221. 037

$122.513. 039

$117.311.113

Deferred RevemuUe ... ... .. .. et e
Unamortized gain on refunding ...... ..o e
Total Deferred Infiows of Resources ....... ... .o it iiiiiiiriennns

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows OFf Resources

NET ASSETS/NET POSITION (1}:

Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for Other Purposes ..................

Unrestricted Deficit) ........oovvvrereninveens
Total Net Assets/Net Position (1) ............

Total Liabilities and Net Assets .............

Notes:
(2) Change in reporting format.

$250,373.273
12,901, 961
5. 802. 877

$251,491.187
7,228,622
11.095.994

$ 12,852,245  § 12,924,566  § 13,160,007
0 0 262. 558
12. 852, 245 12. 924, 566 13. 422, 565

$117.073. 282

$135. 437. 605

$130, 733. 738

$256. 850, 797
2,513, 686
4.517. 245

$266. 143,014
4,815, 450
t.024. 779

$263. 931,875
3.288.122
4. 856. 829

$269. 078. 311

$269, 815, 803

$263, 981 728

$271.983. 243

$382. 870. 866

$384 846.5714

{i) Format changed from Net Assets to Net Position in 2013

$272,076.8%6
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General Fund
Balance Sheet

Audited as of Apri! 30

2011 2012 2013 2014

ASSETS:

Cash and Cash Equivalents.. ................. $15, 342, 462 $14, 961,976 $18.140. 569 $21, 189, 938

Receivables:

Property Taxes ........... c.oivveiiiiunnns 10, 233, 205 10,016, 754 10, 050, 248 10, 226, 997
ACCOUNES. ...t 558. 488 1,119, 690 800, 227 615, 648
1141 1,037,027 909, 152 743,275 1, 105, 593

Due from Other Governmental Units........... 3, 506, 068 3,567,532 2, 856, 657 3,275,048

Due from Other Funds........................ 196. 324 346. 627 0 241,524
Total Assets............. ..., $30.873.574 $30, 921, 731 $32, 590,976 $36. 654, 748

L1ABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES(1)

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable,........................... $ 1,261,651 $ 1,725,062 $ 1.404.138 § 1,600, 951

Accrued Expenses.............o.iiiiiiiiienes 930,228 1,596, 619 2.507.159 4,5%, 670

Due to Other Funds.......................... 3,019 828 0 354, 366 0

DeposSits. .o e 1,378,438 1,832,792 1.349. 205 1,972,637

Advances from Other Funds................... 1,021,633 760, 333 499,033 231,733

Deferred Revenue........... . ... ............ 10, 348, 140 10, 035, 253 i8.305 22,273
Total Liabilities....... e iiieee.. §17.959.919 $15, 950, 059 $ 6132, 207 $ B.428, 264

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES {1}

Unavailable Revenue. .. ... ... ... . it iiiainia e aaannaaannns $10.051.794 $10, 230, 245
Total Deferred [nflow of Resources. ........ ..o, $10. 051,794 $10. 230, 245
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources... ................. $16. 184, 001 $18. 658, 509

FUND BALANCES:

Unreserved (Deficitsh,...................... $12, 913, 655 $i4.971.672 $16. 406, 975 $17.996, 239
Total Fund Balances....................... $12, 913, 655 $14.971.672 $16. 406. 975 $17. 996, 239

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES(1) ........... $30, 873,574 $30. 921,731 $32 590.976 $36. 654, 748

Note: (1} Change in reporting format.

2015

$21,077,474

10,483,175

525, 968
1,028,036
3,478,570

214,012

$36.777.235

$ 1.897,355
1,507,271
8,425
2,217,870
0

17. 668

§ 5,648,389

$10.4583.175
$10.453. 175

$16. 101, 564

$20. 675. 671
$20. 675. 671

$36.777.205
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General Fund
Revenues and Expenditures

Audited Years Ending April 30

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
REVENUES:
Property Taxes.............................. § 9 206, 609 $ 9.582. N4 $ 9182573 $ 9,130,029 $ 9,298, 756
Other Taxes. ................cooviiviiinnee. 16,739,422 17. 284, 346 16, 876, 666 18, 296, 219 15, 980, 126
Interest Income...............ccoovviinnens, 66, 637 23,929 27.102 3t 107 62,489
Fines. Licenses, Permits, and Fees....... ... 1. 744,180 1,614,519 2.163. 567 2,898,341 2,765, N1
Charges for Services........................ 4,519, 639 4,524,330 5,106, 752 5,303, 284 5, 599, 897
Intergovernmental........................... 4,725 073 5,003, 856 5. 186,592 b, 366, 944 5, 461, 886
DEhOr. . .. itess <t ATt v 55 » Siriaimin, e shomeis 725. 154 1,307, 798 2,388, 587 1. 336. 399 1,937 377
Total Revenues............................ $§37.726.714 $30, 341, 492 $40, 931, 839 $42, 362, 323 $45, 106, 242
EXPEND I TURES:
General Government.......................... § 9,259 331 $ 9,695 035 $ 9 779,785 $11, 448,475 $10, 000, 473
Public Safety. .. v, .. ceive cih vt o atciougin 16, 104, 041 16, 459, 782 16,884,123 17, 657,940 17,878, 688
Public Works, ..................... ... ... 7.412.143 7.901, 566 8. 119,009 B8, 165, 580 8. 139,070
Allocations to Water and Sewer Fund. . ....... (2,710,0003 {3} 12,790,000} (3} (2, 845, 000) {3) (3, 000, 000} (3) (3. D60, 000) (3)
Principal and Interest...................... 251,837 226, 306 168 010 279, 054 t, 202, 984
Capital OQutlay....................coovnun 1,432,124 1. 653. 062 3.619.147 1, 645. 487 5. 710,782 (5)
Total Expenditures...................... $31.755. 476 $33. 145, 751 $35,725.074 $36. 196, 536 $39, 880, 997
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures.............................. §$ 5971, 238 $ 6,195 741 $ 5. 206. 765 $ 6,165, 787 $ 5,225,245
OTHER FINANGING SQURCES (USES):
Capital Lease Proceeds. . .................... § 1] $ 0 $ 818 206 $ 86, 741 $ 0
Notes Payable Issued. .. ..................... 0 0 0 0 2,747,915
Operating Transfers InC1). .. ... ............ 30. 000 30, 000 30,000 30. 000 30,000
Operating Transfers (Qut) (2)................ (3. 992, 950) (4,172, 550) 4,634, 150) (4. 732, 640) (9, 627, 668) (6)
Sale of Capital Assets.................... 37.691 4,826 14,482 39,376 14,975
Special ltem ...t 0 0 0 0 4.288.965 (T}
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures................. $ 2.045, 979 $ 2,088,017 $ 1,435,303 $ 1,589 264 $ 2.679, 432
Beginning Fund Balance...................... 10, 867,676 (4) 12,913, 655 14,971,672 16. 408. 875 17,996, 23¢9
Ending Fund Balance......................... $12.913, 655 $14,.971,672 $16, 406, 975 $17.996, 239 $20. 675,671
Notes: (1} Transfers from Water and Sewer fund and Wotor Fuel Tax Fund
(2) Transfer to Debt Service Fund and Recreation Fund
(3) Water and Sewer Fund related expensed previously shown as a transfer in
{4) Restated.

{5

{6)

n

Capital outlay expenditures were over budget by $2.3 million due to the inclusion of greater than anticipated non-
capital outlay contributions to the county for road improvements ($1.8 million), the unbudgeted purchase of land
($0.2 million) and additional street resurfacing ($0.6 million) which was offset by some grant related public
safety purchases that were not made, as the grant funding was not obtained ($0.2 million)

$1.236,850 to the Recreation Fund to support recreation department projects and costs: $4,101,853 to the Debt
Service Fund to lessen the property tax burden on residents; $4. 288,965 to the Facility Construction Fund to limit
the fluctuation of the General Fund balance and to support capital and construction projects including
construction of the new Fire Station.

Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased by $4.7 million which can be attributed to the resalution
of the Will County/Citgo Refinery Equalized Assessed Value {(EAV) issue. The refinery, in 2010, lost an EAV
challenge by the schoo! districts at the county level. The refinery filed to challenge the county ruling on the
state level with the Property Tax Appeal Board (PTAB). PTAB has a backlog of cases which delayed the hearing
During the delay the county and other taxing bodies continued to negotiate the EAY. A settlement with the county
was reached during FY 14-15 and taxing bodies were allowed to keep the taxes they collected during the dispute
period. During this time period, the Village placed the additional property taxes gensrated from the disputed EAV
into an escrow/accrued lisbility account in the General Corporate Fund. The taxes totaled $4.3 million. |f the
case was heard by PTAB and the refinery won their appeal, the Village would have to pay the taxes generated from
the disputed EAV back to the refinery. The Village transferred the funds to a capital project project fund and
will use the funds to construct a Fire Station,
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General Fund
Budget and Estimated Year-End Financial Information

Budget Budget
Twelve Months Estimated Twelve Months
Ending Year Ending Ending
4/30/2016 4/30/2016 4/30/2017
REVENUES -
Property TaxXes. .... .. et e b tayiie i - $10. 749, 300 $10.728. 700 $10, 568, 000
Other Taxes. ........... o uiriiiiirnrnnns 21,400, 100 23,510, 000 24, 256, 700
Grants, 72, . 55 .. .. .- e L e e i 899,500 268, 400 546, 500
Licenses and Permits... . ..................... 1,988. 200 1. 803. 900 2, 458, 200
o R T T A 418, 500 411, 200 500, 700
Fees for Services...... . ... ... .. .......... ... 5,903, 700 6, 168, 700 6. 359, 000
Miscellaneous. .......... oo, 1.993. 000 2, 646, 900 2,041, 600
Transfers. .58 .. .. .. e s os Bty « 3,151, 000 3. 151, 000 3. 213. 000
Total Revenues..................coiiiiiinns $46, 503, 300 $48. 688, 800 $49,943, 700
EXPEND | TURES:
General Government. ... ... ..........ciaiiiiin $ 5 849, 250 $ 9 404, 400 $ 9,990, 450
Public Safety;: ...... isciss e antdae soany 19. 503, 600 19, 248, 000 20, 262, 150
Publdc Works.in...... cicisiiismon e i oenaiod . 10,619, 450 10,025, 300 11, 199, 200
Transfers/Reserves. .... ... 7,531, 000 9. 706. 400 8. 491,900
Total Expenditures....... $46. 503, 300 $48, 384,100 $49, 943, 700

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF),
an agent multiple-employer public employment retirement system; the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer
pension plan; and the Firefighters’ Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit
levels, employee contributions and employer contributions for all three plans are governed by the Illinois Compiled
Statutes and can only be amended by the Illinois General Assembly. None of the pension plans issue separate reports
on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly available report that includes financial statements and
supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained from
IMRF, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by state statute. Participating members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary to IMRF.
The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund IMRF as specified by statute. The
employer contributions for the calendar year ended December 31, 2014 was 11.88% of covered payroll.

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Covered
employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. The Village is required to
contribute the remaining amounts necessary (o finance the Police Pension Plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled
actuary. Effective Janvary 1, 2011, the Village has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past service cost for the
Police Pension Plan. For the year ended April 30, 2015, the Village’s contribution was 27.42% of covered payroll.

The Firefighters” Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Covered
employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Firefighters’ Pension Plan. The Village is
required to finance the Firefighters’ Pension Plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective January
1, 2011, the Village has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past service costs for the Firefighters’ Pension Plan.
For the year ended April 30, 2015, the Village’s contribution was 19.77% of covered payroll.
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In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides postemployment health care
benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single-employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit
levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village and can be amended by the
Village through its personnel manual and union contracts. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an
irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The
activity of the Plan is reported in the Village’s governmental and business-type activities. The retirees pay a blended
premium. The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of benefits that will become due
and payable in the future.

See APPENDIX D herein for a discussion of the Village’s employee retirement and other postemployment
benefits obligations.

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE

See also APPENDIX for information on registration, transfer and exchange of book-entry bonds. The Bonds
will be initially issued as book-entry bonds,

The Village shall cause books (the “Bond Register”} for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be
kept at the principal office maintained for the purpose by the Bond Registrar in Chicago, [llinois. The Village will
authorize to be prepared, and the Bond Registrar shall keep custody of, multiple bond blanks executed by the Village
for use in the transfer and exchange of Bonds.

Any Bond may be transferred or exchanged, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations, and upon
payment of the charges as set forth in the Bond Ordinance passed by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village
to authorize the issuance of the Bonds. Upon surrender for transfer or exchange of any Bond at the principal office
maintained for the purpose by the Bond Registrar, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument or
instruments of transfer in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar and duly executed by the registered owner or such
owner’s attorney duly authorized in writing, the Village shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate, date
and deliver in the name of the registered owner, transferee or transferees (as the case may be) a new fully registered
Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate of authorized denominations, for a like aggregate principal
amount.

The execution by the Village of any fully registered Bond shall constitute full and due authorization of such
Bond, and the Bond Registrar shall thereby be authorized to authenticate, date and deliver such Bond, provided,
however, the principal amount of outstanding Bonds of each maturity authenticated by the Bond Registrar shall not
exceed the authorized principal amount of Bonds for such maturity less Bonds previously paid.

The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond following the close of business on
the fifteenth day of the month in which an interest payment date occurs on such Bond (known as the record date), nor to
transfer or exchange any Bond after notice calling such Bond for redemption has been mailed, nor during a period of
fifteen days next preceding mailing of a notice of redemption of any Bonds.

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner
thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal of or inierest on any Bonds shall be made only to or upon the
order of the registered owner thereof or such owner’s legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.
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No service charge shall be made for any transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the Village or the Bond Registrar
may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
connection with any transfer or exchange of Bonds except in the case of the issuance of a Bond or Bonds for the
unredeemed portion of a bond surrendered for redemption.

TAX EXEMPTION

Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions which apply to the Bonds, including
investment restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, requirements regarding the proper
use of bond proceeds and the facilities financed therewith, and certain other matters. The Village has covenanted to
comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the interest on the Bonds to be excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of such covenants could cause interest on the
Bonds to become includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the
Bonds.

Subject to the Village's compliance with the above-referenced covenants, under present law, in the opinion of
Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds (i} is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income
tax purposes, (ii) is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for
individuals and corporations and (iii) is not taken into account in computing “adjusted current earnings” as described
below.

In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certifications of the Village with respect to certain
material facts within the Village’s knowledge and upon the mathematical computation of the yield on the Bonds and the
yield on certain investments by Sikich, LLP, Naperville, Illinois, Certified Public Accountants, Bond Counsel’s
opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of the law and the facts that it deems relevant to render such
opinion and is not a guarantee of a result.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), includes provisions for an alternative minimum
tax (“AMT™) for corporations in addition to the regular corporate tax in certain cases. The AMT for a corporation, if
any, depends upon the corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income (*AMTI"), which is the corporation’s taxable
income with certain adjustments. One of the adjustment items used in computing the AMTI of a corporation (with
certain exceptions) is an amount equal to 75% of the excess of such corporation’s “adjusted current earnings™ over an
amount equal to its AMTI (before such adjustment item and the alternative tax net operating loss deduction). “Adjusted
current earnings” would generally include certain tax-exempt interest, but not interest on the Bonds.

Ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers,
including, without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, financial institutions, certain insurance
companies, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits and
taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt
obligations. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to applicability of any such
collateral consequences.

The issue price (the “Issue Price”) for each maturity of the Bonds is the price at which a substantial amount of
such maturity of the Bonds is first sold to the public. The Issue Price of a matrity of the Bonds may be different from
the price set forth, or the price corresponding to the yield set forth, on the cover page hereof.

If the Issue Price of a maturity of the Bonds is less than the principal amount payable at maturity, the difference

between the Issue Price of each such maturity, if any, of the Bonds (the “OID Bonds™) and the principal amount
payable at maturity is original issue discount.
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For an investor who purchases an OID Bond in the initial public offering at the Issue Price for such maturity
and who holds such OID Bond to its stated maturity, subject to the condition that the Village complies with the
covenants discussed above, (a) the full amount of original issue discount with respect to such OID Bond constitutes
interest which is excludable from the gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes; {(b) such
owner will not realize taxable capital gain or market discount upon payment of such OID Bond at its stated marurity;
(c) such original issue discount is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the alternative minimum tax
for individuals and corporations under the Code; (d) such original issue discount is not taken into account in computing
an adjustment used in determining the alternative minimum tax for certain corporations under the Code, as described
above; and (e) the accretion of original issue discount in each year may result in certain other collateral federal income
tax consequences in each year even though a corresponding cash payment rmay not be received until a later year. Based
upon the stated position of the Hlinois Department of Revenue under Illinois income tax law, accreted original issue
discount on such OID Bonds is subject to taxation as it accretes, even though there may not be a corresponding cash
payment until a later year. Owners of OID Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and
local tax consequences of original issue discount on such OID Bonds.

Owners of Bonds who dispose of Bonds prior to the stated maturity (whether by sale, redemption or otherwise),
purchase Bonds in the initial public offering, but at a price different from the Issue Price or purchase Bonds subsequent
to the initial public offering should consult their own tax advisors.

If a Bond is purchased at any time for a price that is less than the Bond’s stated redemption price at maturity or,
in the case of an OID Bond, its Issue Price plus accreted original issue discount (the “Revised Issue Price™), the
purchaser will be treated as having purchased a Bond with market discount subject to the market discount rules of the
Code (unless a statutory de minimis rule applies). Accrued market discount is treated as taxable ordinary income and is
recognized when a Bond is disposed of (to the extent such accrued discount does not exceed gain realized) or, at the
purchaser’s election, as it accrues. Such treatment would apply to any purchaser who purchases an OID Bond for a
price that is less than its Revised Issue Price. The applicability of the market discount rules may adversely affect the
liquidity” or secondary market price of such Bond. Purchasers should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
potential implications of market discount with respect to the Bonds.

An investor may purchase a Bond at a price in excess of its stated principal amount. Such excess is
characterized for federal income tax purposes as “bond premium” and must be amortized by an investor on a constant
yield basis over the remaining term of the Bond in a manner that takes into account potential call dates and call prices.
An investor cannot deduct amortized bond premium relating to a tax-exempt bond. The amortized bond premium is
treated as a reduction in the tax-exempt interest received. As bond premium is amortized, it reduces the investor’s
basis in the Bond. Investors who purchase a Bond at a premium should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
amortization of bond premium and its effect on the Bond’s basis for purposes of computing gain or loss in connection
with the sale, exchange, redemption or early retirement of the Bond.

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals, including some that
carry retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or affect
the market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or
whether, if enacted, it would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no
opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to
determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income
of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. It cannot be predicted whether or not the Service will
commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the Village
as a taxpayer and the Bondholders may have no right to participate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit
could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate
outcome.
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Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax-exempt obligations, including
the Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service. Additionally, backup withholding may apply to
any such payments to any Bond owner who fails to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification
Number and Certification, or a substantially identical form, or to any Bond owner who is notified by the Service of a
failure to report any interest or dividends required to be shown on federal income tax returns. The reporting and
backup withholding requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross income for federal tax
purposes.

The Bonds are treated as issued in 2009 or 2010 for purposes of Section 265(b)(7) of the Code relating to
interest expense deductibility for financial institutions. The treatment of interest expense for financial institutions
owning the Bonds may be more favorable than the treatment provided to owners of new money tax-exempt bonds
issued after December 31, 2010 or before January 1, 2009, but may be less favorable than treatment provided to
owners of bank qualified bonds. Financial institutions should consult their tax advisors concerning such treatment,

Interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present State of Illinois income taxes. Ownership of the Bonds may
result in other state and local tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any
such collateral consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult
their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Village will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking™) for the benefit of the
beneficial owners of the Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide notice of certain events to the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) pursuant to the requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12
(the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. No person, other than the Village, has undertaken, or is otherwise expected, to provide continuing
disclosure with respect to the Bonds. The information to be provided on an annual basis, the events which will be
noticed on an occurrence basis and a summary of other terms of the Undertaking, including termination, amendment
and remedies, are set forth below under “THE UNDERTAKING.”

The Village failed to file its final audited financial statements for the 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2015 fiscal years
within the time periods specified in prior continuing disclosure undertakings (“*CDUs™). Draft financial statements
were filed as required by the Village for fiscal years 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2015. The Village also failed to file bond
insurance rating changes and rating changes due to recalibration by rating agencies within the time periods specified in
prior CDUs. As of the date of this Final Official Statement, such disclosures are on file with the MSRB. A failure by
the Village to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute a default under the Bond Ordinance and beneficial
owners of the Bonds are limited to the remedies described in the Undertaking. See “THE UNDERTAKING -
Consequences of Failure of the Village to Provide Information.” The Village must report any failure to comply
with the Undertaking in accordance with the Rule. Any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer must consider
such report before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market. Consequently, such a
failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to whether the Undertaking complies with the requirements of Section
(b)(5) of the Rule.
THE UNDERTAKING
The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Undertaking of the Village and does not purport
to be complete. The statements made under this caption are subject to the detailed provisions of the Undertaking, a

copy of which is available upon request from the Village.
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Annual Financial Information Disclosure

The Village covenants that it will disseminate its Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial
Statements, if any (as described below) to the MSRB in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying
information as is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission at the time of delivery of such information within 210
days after the last day of the Village’s fiscal year (currently April 30). If Audited Financial Statements are not
available when the Annual Financial Information is filed, the Village will file unaudited financial statements. The
Village will submit Audited Financial Statements to the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA™)
system within 30 days after availability to the Village. MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-
searchable PDF format. This requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial
statements and other externally prepared reports.

“Annual Financial Information” means:

1. The table under the heading of “Retailers’ Occupation, Service Occupation and Use Tax”
within this Final Official Statement;

2. All of the tables under the heading “PROPERTY ASSESSMENT AND TAX
INFORMATION?” within this Final Official Statement;

3. All of the tables under the heading “DEBT INFORMATION” within this Final Official
Statement; and

4, All of the tables under the heading “FINANCIAL INFORMATION” (Excluding Budget and
Estimated Year-End Financial Information) within this Final Official Statement.

“Audited Financial Statements” means financial statements of the Village as audited annually by independent
certified public accountants. Audited Financial Statements are expected to continue to be prepared according to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as applicable to governmental units (i.c., as subject to the pronouncements
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and subject to any express requirements of State law).

Reportable Events Disclosure

The Village covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the
occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure to the MSRB in such manner and format and
accompanied by identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission at the time of delivery of
such information. MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format. This
requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial statements and other externally
prepared reports. The “Events” are:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties

4, Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations
of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting the tax
status of the security

7. Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers

9. Defeasances

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material
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11. Rating changes

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Village*

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Village or the sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Viilage, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into
a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating
to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

Consequences of Failure of the Village to Provide Information

The Village shall give notice in a timely manner to the MSRB of any failure to provide disclosure of Annual
Financial Information and Audited Financial Statements when the same are due under the Undertaking.

In the event of a failure of the Village to comply with any provision of the Undertaking, the beneficial owner of
any Bond may seek mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the Village to comply with its
obligations under the Undertaking. A default under the Undertaking shall not be deemed a default under the Bond
Ordinance, and the sole remedy under the Undertaking in the event of any failure of the Village to comply with the
Undertaking shall be an action to compel performance.

Amendment; Waiver

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Undertaking, the Village by resolution or ordinance authorizing
such amendment or waiver, may amend the Undertaking, and any provision of the Undertaking may be waived, if:

(a) {i) The amendment or the waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises
from a change in legal requirements, including, without limitation, pursuant to a “no-action” letter issued by
the Commission, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, or status of the Village, or type of
business conducted; or

(ii) The Undertaking, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the
Bonds, as determined by parties unaffiliated with the Village (such as Bond Counsel).

In the event that the Commission or the MSRB or other regulatory authority approves or requires Annual
Financial Information or notices of a Reportable Event to be filed with a central post office, governmental agency or
similar entity other than the MSRB or in lieu of the MSRB, the Village shall, if required, make such dissemination to
such central post office, governmental agency or similar entity without the necessity of amending the Undertaking.

«This event is considered 1o occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Village in a proceeding
under the U.S. Bunkruprcy Code or in any other proceeding under sute or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has asswmed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the Village, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing bodv and officials or officers in
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or govenmnental awthority, or the entry of an order confirning a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liguidation by a court or governmental authoriry having supervision or jurisdiction aver substantially afl of the assets or business of the Village.
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Termination of Undertaking

The Undertaking shall be terminated if the Village shall no longer have any legal liability for any obligation on
or relating to repayment of the Bonds under the Bond Ordinance. The Village shall give notice to the MSRB in a
timely manner if this paragraph is applicable.

Additional Information

Nothing in the Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the Village from disseminating any other information,
using the means of dissemination set forth in the Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including any
other information in any Annual Financial Information or Audited Financial Statements or notice of occurrence of a
Reportable Event, in addition to that which is required by the Undertaking. If the Village chooses to include any
information from any document or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event in addition to that which is specifically
required by the Undertaking, the Village shall have no obligation under the Undertaking to update such information or
include it in any future disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event.

Dissemination of Information; Dissemination Agent

When filings are required to be made with the MSRB in accordance with the Undertaking, such filings are
required to be made through its EMMA system for municipal securities disclosure or through any other electronic
format or system prescribed by the MSRB for purposes of the Rule.

The Village may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its
obligations under the Undertaking, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor
Dissemination Agent.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

The Bonds due on or before December 30, 2025 are non-callable. The Bonds due on or after December 30,
2026 are callable in whole or in part on any date on or after December 30, 2025, at a price of par. If less than all the
Bonds are called, they shall be redeemed in such principal amounts and from such maturities as determined by the
Village and within any maturity by lot.

The Bond Registrar will give notice of redemption, identifying the Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed,
by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60)
days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Bond (or portion thereof) to be redeemed at
the address shown on the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar. Unless moneys sufficient to pay the
redemption price of the Bonds to be redeemed are received by the Bond Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of
redemption, such notice may, at the option of the Village, state that said redemption will be conditional upon the receipt
of such moneys by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If such moneys are not received,
such notice will be of no force and effect, the Village wiil not redeem such Bonds, and the Bond Registrar will give
notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption has been given, that such moneys were not so received
and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. Otherwise, prior to any redemption date, the Village will deposit with the
Bond Registrar an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds which
are to be redeemed on the date.
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Subject to the provisions for a conditional redemption described above, notice of redemption having been given
as described above and in the Bond Ordinance, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed will, on the
redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and afier such date
(unless the Village shali default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to
bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds will be paid by
the Bond Registrar at the redemption price.

LITIGATION

There is no litigation of any nature now pending or threatened restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale,
execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings
of the Village taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof. There is no litigation now pending, or to the
knowledge of the Village, threatened against the Village that is expected to materially impact the financial condition of
the Village.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to the approving
legal opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, lllinois, as Bond Counsel (the “Bond Counsel”), who has been
retained by, and acts as, Bond Counsel to the Village. Bond Counsel has not been retained or consulted on disclosure
matters and has not undertaken to review or verify the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of this Final Official
Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds and assumes no responsibility for the statements or
information contained in or incorporated by reference in this Final Official Statement, except that in its capacity as
Bond Counsel, Chapman and Cutler LLP has, at the request of the Village, reviewed only those portions of this Final
Official Statement involving the description of the Bonds, the security for the Bonds (excluding forecasts, projections,
estimates or any other financial or economic information in connection therewith), and the description of the federal tax
exemption of interest on the Bonds. This review was undertaken solely at the request and for the benefit of the Village
and did not include any obligation to establish or confirm factual matters set forth herein.

FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT AUTHORIZATION
This Final Official Statement has been authorized for distribution to prospective purchasers of the Bonds. All

statements, information, and statistics herein are believed to be correct but are not guaranteed by the consultants or by
the Village, and all expressions of opinion, whether or not so stated, are intended only as such.
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INVESTMENT RATINGS

The Bonds have been rated “Aa2” from Moody's Investors Service and “AA/Stable” by Fitch Ratings. The Village has
supplied certain information and material concerning the Bonds and the Village to the rating services shown on the
cover page, including certain information and materials which may not have been included in this Final Official
Statement, as part of its application for investment ratings on the Bonds. Ratings reflect only the views of the rating
agencies assigning such ratings and an explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from such rating
agencies. Generally, such rating services base their ratings on such information and material, and also on such
investigations, studies and assumptions that it may undertake independently. There is no assurance that such ratings
will continue for any given period of time or that it may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by such rating services
if, in their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward change in or withdrawal of such ratings may have
an adverse effect on the secondary market price of the Bonds. An explanation of the significance of the investment
ratings may be obtained from the rating agencies: Moody’s Investors Service, 7 World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich
Street, New York, New York 10007, telephone 212-553-1658. Fitch Ratings, One State Street Plaza, New York, New
York 10004, telephone 800-753-4824. The Village will provide appropriate periodic credit information to the rating
service to maintain a rating on the Bonds.

DEFEASANCE

The Bonds are subject to legal defeasance by the irrevocable deposit of full faith and credit obligations of the
United States of America, obligations the timely payment of which are puaranteed by the United States Treasury, or
certificates of participation in a trust comprised solely of full faith and credit obligations of the United States of
America (collectively, the “Government Obligations™) with a bank or trust company acting as escrow agent. Any such
deposit must be of sufficient amount that the receipts from the Government Obligations plus any cash on deposit will be
sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds when due or as called for redemption.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds were offered for sale by the Village at a public, competitive sale on August 22, 2016. The best bid
submitted at the sale was submitted by Robert W. Baird & Co., Inc., Milwaukee, Wisconsin (the “Underwriter™). The
Village awarded the contract for sale of the Bonds to the Underwriter at a price of $5,064,698.60. The Underwriter
has represented to the Village that the Bonds have been subsequently re-offered to the public initially at the yields or
prices set forth in the Final Official Statement.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The Village has engaged Speer Financial, Inc. as municipal advisor (the “Municipal Advisor™) in connection
with the issuance and sale of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor is a Registered Municipal Advisor in accordance with
the rules of the MSRB. The Municipal Advisor will not participate in the underwriting of the Bonds. The financial
information included in the Final Official Statement has been compiled by the Municipal Advisor. Such information
does not purport to be a review, audit or certified forecast of future events and may not conform with accounting
principles applicable to compilations of financial information. The Municipal Advisor is not a firm of certified public
accountants and does not serve in that capacity or provide accounting services in connection with the Bonds. The
Municipal Advisor is not obligated to undertake any independent verification of or to assume any responsibility for the
accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information contained in this Final Official Statement, nor is the Municipal
Advisor obligated by the Village’s continuing disclosure undertaking.
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CERTIFICATION

We have examined this Final Official Statement dated August 22, 2016, for the $5,105,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A, believe it 10 be true and correct and will provide to the purchaser of the Bonds at the
time of delivery certificates confirming to the purchaser that to the best of our knowledge and belief information in the
Final Official Statement was at the time of acceptance of the bid for the Bonds and, including any addenda thereto, was
at the time of delivery of the Bonds true and correct in all material respects and does not include any untrue statement
of a material fact, nor does it omit the statement of any material fact required to be stated therein, or necessary to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

/s/  KIRK OPENCHOWSKI /s/  JOHN D. NOAK
Finance Director Village President
VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE
Will County, Illinois Will County, Illinois
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APPENDIX B
DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE

1. The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”™), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for
the Bonds (the “Securities”). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede
& Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for each issue of the Securities, each in the aggregate principal
amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.

2. DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the
New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of
the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and
municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct
Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and
other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges
between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct
Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation (“DTCC™). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard &
Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dicc.com.

3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which
will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each
Security (“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial
Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected
to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their
ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co.
or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.
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5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to
the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding
the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative,
Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Village as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy
assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited
on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit
Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Village or the
Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, or the Village, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and
dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC)
is the responsibility of the Village or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be
the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its
Participant, to any Tender/Remarketing Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct
Participant to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Securities, on DTC’s records, to any Tender/Remarketing Agent.
The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will
be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC’s records
and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to any Tender/Remarketing Agent’s DTC account.

10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the Village or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

11. The Village may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or
a successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
sources that the Village believes to be reliable, but the Village takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
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APPENDIX C
PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
[LETTERHEAD OF CHAPMAN AND CUTLER LLP]

[TO BE DATED CLOSING DATE]

We hereby certify that we have examined certified copy of the proceedings (the “Proceedings”) of the
President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois (the “Village”), passed
preliminary to the issue by the Village of its fully registered General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2016A (the “Bonds™), to the amount of $5,105,000, dated September 12, 2016, due serially on December 30 of
the years and in the amounts and bearing interest as follows:

YEAR AMOUNT RATE

2016 $ 35,000 2.000%
2017 60,000 2.000%
2018 360,000 2.000%
2019 370,000 2.000%
2020 375,000 2.000%
2021 385,000 2.000%
2022 400,000 2.000%
2023 405,000 2.000%
2024 420,000 2.000%
2025 435,000 2.000%
2026 445,000 2.000%
2027 465,000 2.000%
2028 470,000 2.125%
2029 480,000 2.250%

the Bonds due on or after December 30, 2026, being subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the
Village as a whole or in part in any order of their maturity as determined by the Village (less than all of the
Bonds of a single maturity to be selected by the Bond Registrar), on December 30, 2025, or on any date
thereafter, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date, as provided in the
Proceedings, and we are of the opinion that the Proceedings show lawful authority for said issue under the laws
of the State of Illinois now in force.

We further certify that we have examined the form of bond prescribed for said issue and find the same in
due form of law, and in our opinion said issue, to the amount named, is valid and legally binding upon the
Village and is payable from any funds of the Village legally available for such purpose, and all taxable property
in the Village is subject to the levy of taxes to pay the same without limitation as to rate or amount, except that
the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, moratorium, reorganization and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and by equitable
principles, whether considered at law or in equity, including the exercise of judicial discretion.

C-1



It is our opinion that, subject to the Village’s compliance with certain covenants, under present
law, interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax
purposes, is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the alternative minimum tax for individuals
and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is not taken into account in
computing adjusted current earnings, which is used as an adjustment in determining the federal alternative
minimum tax for certain corporations. Failure to comply with certain of such Village covenants could cause
interest on the Bonds to be includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date
of issuance of the Bonds. Ownership of the Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain
taxpayers, and we express no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds. In rendering our opinion on tax exemption, we have relied on the mathematical computation of the
yield on the Bonds and the yield on certain investments by Sikich, LLP, Naperville, Illinois, Certified Public
Accountants.

We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, adequacy or compleieness of any information
furnished to any person in connection with any offer or sale of the Bonds.

In rendering this opinion, we have relied upon certifications of the Village with respect to certain
malerial facts within the Village’s knowledge. Our opinion represents our legal judgment based upon our
review of the law and the facts that we deem relevant to render such opinion and is not a guarantee of a result.
This opinion is given as of the date hereof and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion to
reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or any changes in law that may
hereafter occur.



APPENDIX D
VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE
WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS
EXCERPTS OF FISCAL YEAR 2015 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATING TO THE VILLAGE’S PENSION PLANS
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Sources & Uses

Dated 09/12/2016 | Delivered 09/12/2016

Sources Of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds . - $5,05,000.00
Reofiering Premium ) ~ 71,164.65
Transfers from Prior [ssue Debt ServiceFunds R et s T et 3NS02.50
Total Sources fop e e e Ehet atis e T —— §5,214,667.15
Uses Of Funds

Total Underwriter's Discount {2.301%) _ B 117,466.05
Costs of Issyange - - o - ~ B0,000.00
Depasit to Net Cash Escrow Fund L i 5.015,978.21
Rounding Amount B TS o PR o 4 = ol e [ = g s 1,222.89
Total Uses $5,214.667.15

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 82272016 | 1-.18PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois

FINAL

Debt Service Comparison

$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A

Date Total P+] Existing D/S Net New DIS Old Net DIS Savings
12/30/2016 66,166.25 280,425.00 346,591.25 346,591.25 -
12/30/2017 163,187.50 296,400.00 459,587.50 493,737.50 34,150.00
12/30/2018 461,987.50 - 461,987.50 497,337.50 35,350.00
12/30/2019 464,787.50 - 464,787.50 500,337.50 35,550.00
12/30/2020 462.387.50 - 462,387.50 502,737.50 40,350.00
12/30/2021 464,887.50 - 464,887.50 504,537.50 39,650.00
1213012022 472,187.50 - 472,187.50 510,737.50 38,550.00
12/30/2023 469,187.50 - 469,187.50 511,137.50 41,950.00
12/30/2024 476,087.50 - 476,087.50 515,937.50 39,850.00

127302025 482,687.50 = - 482.687.50 51953730 36,850.00
1273072026 483,987.50 483,987.50 532,212.50 38,225.00
12/30/2027 495,087.50 - 495,087.50 528,512.50 33,425.00
12/30/2028 490,787.50 - 490,787.50 §33,750.00 42,962.50
12/30/2029 490,800.00 - 490,800 00 532,312.50 41,512.50

Total $5.944,216.25 $576,825.00 §6,521,041.25 $£7,019,416.25 $498,375.00

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net)

Gross PV Debt Service Savings 455,999.63

Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2 386%(AIC) 455,999 .63

Transfers from Prior Issuc Debt Service Fund {32,502.50)

Contingency or Rounding Amount 1,222 89

Net Present Value Benefit $£424,720.02

Net PV Benefit / $4,760,000 Refunded Principal 8§ 923%

Net PV Bencfit /_$5,105,000 Refunding Principal o S S _ 8320%

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date 9/12/2016

Refunding Delivery Date 9/12/2016

Speer Financial, Inc.

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 1:18PM

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$6,700,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009
Final

Debt Service To Maturity And To Call

Refunded Refunded

Date Bonds Interest D/S To Call Principa! Coupon Interest Refunded DIS
12/30/72016 - 98,668.75 98,668.75 . 3.500% 98,668.75 98 668.75
12/30°2017 4,760,000.00 197,337.50 4,957,337.50 - 4.000% 197,337.50 197,337.50
12/30/2018 . - - 300,000.00 4.000% 197,337.50 497,337.50
12/302019 - - - 315,000.00 4.000% 185,337.50 500,337.50
12/30/2020 - - - 330,000.00 4.000% 172,737.50 502,737.50
12/302021 - - - 345,000.00 4.000% 159,537.50 504,537.50
1273072022 - - . 365,000.00 4.000% 145,737.50 510,737.50
12/30/2023 - - - 380,000.00 4.000% 131,137.50 511,137.50
12/30/2024 - B B 400,000.00 4.100% 115,937.50 515937 50
12/30/2025 - - - 420,000.00 4.125% 99,537.50 519,537.50
12/30/2026 - - - 440,000.00 4.250% 82,212.50 522,212.50
12/30/72027 - - - 465,000.00 4.250% 63,512.50 528,512.50
12/30/2028 - - - 490,000.00 4375% 43,750.00 533,750.00
12/30/2029 - - - 510,000.00 4.375% 22,312.50 532,312.50

Total §4,760,000.00 $296,006.25 $5,056,006.25 $4,760,000.00 - $1,715,093.75 $6,475,093.75

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calculation N 8/12°2016
Average Life I o o i i _ B377 Years
Average Coupon 4.2024083%
Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) 8.377 Years
Weighted Average Maturity (Origina! Price Basis) 8.357 Years

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date ) 9/12/2016
Refunding Delivery Date 91212016

Seties 2009 at 3-30-16 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 3:18 PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois

FINAL

Escrow Fund Cashflow

$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A

State and Local Government Scrics (SLGS) rates for

Cash
Date Principal __ Rate Interest +Transfers Receipts Disbursements Balance
09/1212016 - - - 0.50 1.21 - 1.21
1273072016 §56,996.00 0310% 9,140.11 32,532.08 98,668.19 98,668.75 0.65
06/3072017 §3,067.00 0.520% 15,601.11 - 98,668.11 98,668.75 0.0l
1213012017 4,843412.00 0630% 15,256.74 - 4,858,668.74 4,858,668.75 -
Total 54,983,475.00 - $39,997.96 $32,532.58 §5,056,006.25 55,056,006.25 -
investment Parameters
Investment Model [PV, GIC, or Securitics] _ Securities
Nefonlt investment yield target — R _ _ _ __ Bond Yield
Cost of Investments Purchased with Fund Transfers o _ e = : e 32,502.50
Cash Deposit N = = g St i g - L 071
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Procecds 5 ) 4,983.475.00
Total Cost of [nvestments ot ety e o - o $5.015.97821
Target Cost of Investmenis ot bond yield o - R £4.906,848.5¢
Actual positive or (negative) arbitrage (76,627.20)
Yield to Receipt - (.6270057%
Yield for Arbitrage Purposes . _ X v . _ 1.8481506%
8/22/2016

Speer Financial, Inc.

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 82272016 | 1.8 PM

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Iilinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Unrestricted Money Cash Flow

Cash
Date Principal Rate Interest -Transfers Balance
09/12/2016 - - - (0.50) S
1243012016 32,502.00 0.310% 3008 (32,532.08) -
Total §32,502.00 - £30.08 (32,532.58) -
Composition Of Initial Deposit
Cash Deposit £ : 0.50
Cost of Investments Purchased with Fund Transfers . 3230200
Total Cost of [nvestments $32,502.50

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 82272016 | 1:18 PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

DSR Transfers Fund Cash Flow

Cash

Date Rate -Transfers +Transfers Balance
09/12/2016 - (0.50} 0.50 -
Total - (0.50) 50.50 -

Composition Of Initial Deposit

Total Cost of Investments

Yicld 10 Receipt

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 1:18PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consuitants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Cash Transfers Fund Cash Flow

Cash

Date Rate -Transfers +Transfers Balance
09/1272016 - {0.50) 0.50 -
Total - (0.50) 50,50 -

Composition OFf Initial Deposit

Total Cost of Investments 3 =

Yicld to Receipt b

Serles 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 1.18 PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Pricing Summary

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price
12/3012016 Serial Coupon 2.000% 0.700% 35,000.00 100.388% 35,135.80
1213072017 Serial Coupon 2.000% 0.750% 60,000.00 101.613% 60,967.80
12/30/2018 Serial Coupon 2.000% 0.830% 360,000.00 102.659% 369,572.40
12/30/2019 Serial Coupon 2.000% 0.900% 370,000.00 103.568% 383,201.60
1273072020 Serial Coupan 2.000% 1.000% 375,000.00 104.197% 390,738.75
12/30/2021 Serial Coupon 2.000% 1.150% 385,000.00 104.357% 401,774.45
12/30/2022 Scrial Coupon 2.000% 1.350% 400,000.00 103.912% 415,648.00
12/30/2023 Scrial Coupon 2.000% 1.550% 405,000.00 103.093% 417,526.65
12/30/2024 Serizl Coupon 2.000% 1.700% 420,000.00 102.312% 42971040
12/30/2025 Scrial Coupon 2.000% 1.900% 435,000.00 100.847% 438,684.45
12/30/2026 Serial Coupon 2.000% 2.050% 445,000.00 99.536% 442935.20
12/30/2027 Serial Coupon 2.000% 2.150% 465,000.00 98 501% 458,029.65
12/30/2028 Scrial Coupon 2.125% 2.250% 470,000.00 98.661% 463,706.70
12/30/2029 Scrial Coupon 2.250% 2.350% 480,000.00 98.861% 474,532.80

Tolal - - - $5,105,000.00 - §5,182,164.65

_Bid Information

_Par Amount of Bonds _ $5,105,000.00
ReofTering Premium or {Discount} L L P 77,164 65
Gross Production . $5.182,164.65

“Total Underwriter's Discount {2.301%) - $(117,466 05)
Bid (99.211%) i TR Ee e e i e e _ 5064,698.60
Totul Purchase Price Ceges i S $5,064,698.60
Bond Year Dollars ) o R o e AT '$40,801.50
Average Life ) i 7.992 Yewrs
Average Coupon _ = e = 2.0568270%
Net Interest Cost {(MIC) B e ot e o g s mose oo oy 2.1556013%
True Interest Cost (TIC} 2.1648126%

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 1:18PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois

$6,700,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009
Final

Total Refunded Debt Service

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l
12/30120%6 - 3.500% 98,668.75 98.668.75
1213072017 - 4.000% 197,337.50 197,337.50
12/30/2018 300,000.00 4.000% 197,337.50 497,337.50
12/30/2019 315,000.00 4.000% 185,337.50 500,337.50
12/30/2020 330,000.00 4.000% 172,737.50 502,737.50
12/30/2021 345,000.00 4.000% 159,537.50 504,537.50
12/30/2022 365,000.00 4.000% 145,737.50 510,737.50
1273072023 380,000.00 4.000% 131,137.50 511,637.50
12/3072024 400,000.00 4.100% 115,937.50 515,937.50

12302025 42000000 4.125% 9953750 ~ 519,537.50
12/30/2026 440,000.00 4.250% §2,212.50 522,212.50
12/3072027 465,000.00 4.250% 63,512.50 528,512.50
12/30/2028 490,000.00 4.375% 43,750.00 §33,750.00
1273072029 510,000.00 4.375% 22,312.5¢ 532,312.50

Total $4,760,000.00 - $1,715,093.75 $6,475,093.75

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupon Calcultion — 9/12/2016

Average Life e e o U e e o e — __B377 Years

Averape Coupon L _ 4.2024083%

Weighted Average Maturity (Par Basis) B S . 837Years

Weighted Average Maturity (Original Price Basis) 8.357 Years

Refunding Bond Information

Refunding Dated Date 91272016

Refunding Delivery Date 9/12/2016

Series 2009 at 3-30-16 | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8/22/2016 | 1:1BFM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1854
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

PROOF OF GROSS D/S SAVINGS @ 2.3860804%

NEW GROSS OLD GROSS Present

Date D/S DIS SAVINGS PV Factor Value
09/12/2016 - - - 1.0000000x -
12/3072016 66,166.25 98.668.75 32,502.50 0.9929094x 32,272.04
06/30/2017 51,593.75 08,668.75 47,075.00 0.9812032x 46,190.14
12/3012017 111,593.75 98,668.75 (12,925.00) 0.9696351% (12,532.53)
06/30/2018 50,993.75 98,668.75 47,615.00 0.9582033x 45,682.34
12/3072018 410,993.75 398,668.75 (12,325.00} 0.9469064x {11,670.62)
06/30/2019 47,393.75 92,668.73 45,275.00 0.9357426x 42,365.75
12/3012019 417,393.75 407,668.75 (9,725.00) 0.9247104x (8,992.81)
06/30/2020 43,693.75 86,368.75 42,675.00 0.9138083x 38,996.77
12/3012020 41869375 41636875 (2325000 09030347x  (2.099.56)
06/30/2021 39,943.75 79,708 75 19,825.00 0 8923882x 35,539.36
1243072021 424,943.75 42476875 (175.00) 0.8818672x (154.33)
06/30/2022 36,093.75 72,868.75 36,775.00 08714702x 32,048.32
12/30/2022 436,093.75 437,868.75 1,775.00 0.8611958x 1,528.62
06/30/2023 32,093.75 65,568.75 33,475.00 0.8510425x 28,488.65
12/30/2023 437,093.75 445,568.75 8,475.00 0,84 10089x 7,127.53
06/30/2024 28,043.75 57,968.75 29,925.00 0.8310936x 24 870.48
12/30/2024 448,043.75 457,968 75 9,925.00 0 B212952x 8,151.36
06/30/2025 23,843.75 49,768.75 25,925.00 0.8116124x 21,041.05
12/30/2025 458,843.75 469,768.75 10,925 00 08020437x 876233
06/30/2026 19,493.75 41,106.25 21,612.50 0.7925878x 17,129.80
12/30/2026 464,493.75 481,106.25 16,612.50 0,7832434x 13,011.63
06/30/2027 15,043.75 31,756.25 16,712.50 0,7740091x 12,935.63
12/30/2027 480,043.75 496,756.25 16,712.50 (.7648838x 12,783.12
06/30/2028 10,393.75 21,875.00 11,481.25 0.7558660x 8.678.29
12/30°2028 480,393.75 511,875.00 31481.25 0.7469545x 23,515.06
06/3072029 5,400.00 11,156.25 5,756.25 0.7381481x 4,248.97
12/30/2029 485,400.00 521,156.25 35,756.25 0.7294455x 26,082.24
Taotal $5,944,216.25 56,475,093.75 $530,877.50 - $455,999.63

Serigs 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 82272016 | 1118 PM

Speer Financial, Inc.

Public Finance Consultants Since 1954




Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Summary Of Bonds Refunded

Maturity
Issue Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Value  Call Date Call Price
Dated 67302016 | Delivered 6/30/2016

Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2018  Serial Coupon 4,000% 300,000 12/30/2017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/302019  Serial Coupon 4.000% 315,000 1273012017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2020  Scrial Coupon 4.000% 330,000 12/3072017 100.000%
Scries 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2021  Scrial Coupon 4 000% 345,000 12/30/2017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 123072022 Serial Coupon 4.000% 365,000 1213072017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2023  Serial Coupon 4.000% 380,000 1213012017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2024  Serial Coupon 4.100% 400,000 1213072017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2025  Scrial Coupon 4,125% 420,000 12/30/2017 100.000%
Scries 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2026  Serial Coupon 4.250% 440,000 123072017 160.000%
Series 2009 a1 3-30-16  12/30/2027  Serinl  Coupon 4250% 465000 123072017 100.000%
Series 2009 at 3-30-16 12/30/2028  Serial Coupon 4.375% 490,000 12/3072047 100.000%
_Series 2009 ot 3-30-16 12/30/2029 _ Serial Coupen 4.375% 510,000 12/30/2017 100.000%
Subtotal - - £4,760,000 - -

Total - - $4,760,000 - -
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A

FINAL

Refunding Summary

Dated 09/12/2016 | Delivered 09/12/2016
Sources Of Funds

Par Amount of Bonds $5.105,000.00
Reoffering Premium 77.164.65
Transfers from Prior Issue Debt Scrvice Funds 32,502.50
Total Sources $5,214,667.15
Uses Of Funds
Total Underwriter's Discoum (2.301%) 117 466 .05
Costs of lssuance 80,000.00
Deposit to Net Cash Escrow Fund 501597821
Rounding Amount 1,222.89
Total Uses $5,214.667.18

Flow of Funds Detail

State and Local Government Series (SLGS)ratesfor e o e o _B2212016
Date of OMP Candidates . o o e it
Nel Cash Escrow Fund Solution Method "o rre B ~ Net Funded
Total Costof Investments I o s 3501597821
Interest Eamings @ 0.627% — - r o SR S 399979
Transfers from Unrestricted Money Fund ST S v o . o 3253208
Total Dryws . R ) s = _55,056,00625
Unrestricted Money Fund Solution Method s s R o Transfer All
Total Cost of Investments ~ _ $32,502.50

intevest Eamings @ 0.309% R e e I e — B 30.08

Transfers 1o Net Cash Escrow Fund e ) ) (353208
Issues Refunded And Call Dates

Series 2000 at 3-30-16 T L IR PP St _ o s mrees o koot
PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net)

Net PV Cashflow Savings @ 2.386%(AIC) 455 999,63
Transfers from Prior Issue Debt Service Fund {32,502.50)
Contingency or Rounding Amount 1,222 89
Net Present Value Benefit $424,720.02
Net PV Benefit/ $4,760,000 Refunded Principal 8923%
Net PV Benefit / $5.105.000 Refunding Principal 8.320%
Bond Statistics

Average Life 7.992 Years
Averape Coupon 2.0568270%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.1556013%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.8481506%
True laterest Cost {TIC) 2.1648126%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3860804%

Series 20164 FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 8222016 | 1:18FPM
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Escrow Summary Cost

+Accrued

Maturity Type  Coupon  Yield $ Price Par Amount Principal Cost Interest = Total Cost
Bond Procceds Account

12/30/2016 SLGS-CI 0.310% 0310%  100.0000000% 56,996 56,996.00 - 56,996.00

0673072017 SLGS-CI 0.520% 0520% 100.0000000% 83,067 £3,067.00 - 83,067.00

12/30/2017 SLGS-NT 0.630% _ 0.630% 100.0000000% 4843412 4.843.412.00 - 4.843.412.00

Subtotal - - - 54,983,475 $4,983,475.00 - $4,983.475.00

Unrestricted Money Account

12/30/2016 SLGS-CI 0.310%  0.310% 100.0000000% 32.502 32.502.00 - 32.502.00

Subtotal - - - £32,502 £32,502.00 - §32,502.00
Total - - - $5,015,977 $5.015,977.00 - §5.015,977.00

Bond Proceeds Account
Cash Deposil ] _ 071
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds L o 498347500
Total Cost of Investments $4.983.475.71
Unrestricted Money Account
Cash Deposit B )
Cost of Investments - o L o 32,502.00
Total Cost of Investments PR - §32,502.50
Cash Deposit _ R _a i e 121
Cost of Investments : : 5,015,977.00
Total Deposit N . L = $5,015978.21
Delivery Date 9/12/2016

Series 2016A FINAL | SINGLE PURPOSE | 82272016 | 1:18PM
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 Genera! Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Primary Purpose Fund Proof Of Yield @ 0.6270057%

Cumulative
Date Cashflow PV Factor Present Value PV
09/1212016 - 1.0000000x - -
12/3072016 66,136.11 0.9981237x 66,012.02 66,012.02
06/30/2017 98,668.11 0.9950043x 98,175.20 164,187.21
12/30/2017 4,858,668.74 0.9918947x 4,819,287.79 4,983 .475.00
Total $5,023,472.9%6 - $4,983,475.00 -
Composition OF Initial Deposit
Cost of Investments Purchased with Bond Proceeds 4,083,475.00
4,983,475.00

Adjusted Cost of Invesiments

Series 20164 FINAL { SINGLE PURPQOSE | B/22/2016 | 1:18 PM
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A
FINAL

Proof Of UMF Yield @ 0.3085890%

Present Cumulative

Date Cashflow PV Factor Value PV
091212016 - 1.0000000x - -
12/30/2016 32,532.08 0.9990754x 32,502.00 32,502.00
Total £32,532.08 - $£32,502.00 -

Cost of [nvestments Purchased with Fund Transfers 32,502.00
32,502.00

Adjusted Cost of Invesiments
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois
$6,700,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009
Final

Current Outstanding Debt Service

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total
12/30/2016 270,000.00 3.500% 10,425.00 280,425.00 280,425.00
06/30/2017 - - 5,700.00 5,700.00 -
12/3072017 285,000.00 4.000% 5,700.00 290,700,00 296,400.00

Total $£555,000.00 - §21,825.00 $576,825.00 -

Yield Statistics

Base date for Avg. Life & Avg. Coupen Calculation | eEEe— — = e aee e cup s PH2A016,
Average Life = 0.814 Years
Average Coupon BT e e O e S WSS STy o . 4.2024083%
Weighted Average Malurity (Par Basis) ! e — — 0.814 Years
‘Weighted Average Maturity {Original Price Basis} R 8337 Years
Refunding Bond Infermation

Relunding Dated Datc . L ge e peeencros reeca son o oo ML20016
Refunding Delivery Date 9/12/2016

Series 2009 a1 3-30-16 | SINGLE PURPOSE | B/2272016 | 1:18 PM
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Village of Romeoville, Will County, Illinois

$5,105,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A

FINAL

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon interest Total P+l Fiscal Total

09/122016 e - 5 e .
12/3012016 35,000.00 2.000% 31,166.25 66,166.25 66,166.25
063072017 - - 51,593.75 5£,593.75 -
1213012017 60,000.00 2.000% 51,593.75 111,593.75 163,187.50
06/30/2018 - - 50,993.75 50,993.75 -
12/3072018 360,000.00 2.000% 50,993.75 410,993.75 461,987.50
06/3072019 - - 47,393.75 47,393.75 -
12/30/2019 370,000.00 2.000% 47,393.75 417,393.75 464,787.50
06/30/2020 - - 43,693.75 43,693.75 C
12/30/2020 375,000 00 2.000% 43,693.75 418,693.75 462,387.50
06/3072021 - - 39,943.75 39,943.75 -
12/30/2021 385,000.00 2.000% 3904375 42494375 464,887.50
06/30/2022 - - 36,093.75 36,091.75 -
12/30/2022 400,000.00 2.000% 36,093.75 436,093.75 472,187.50
06/30/2023 - - 32,093.75 32,003.75 -
123072023 405,000.00 2,000% 32,093.75 437,093.75 469,187.50
06/30/2024 - - 28,043.75 28,043.75 -
1273072024 420,000.00 2.000% 28,043.75 448,043.75 476,087.50
06302025 - - 23,843.75 23,843.75 -

_ 12/30/2025 435,000.00 2000% 2384375  458843.75 482,687.50
06/3072026 - - 19,493.75 19,493.75 -
12/30/2026 445,0060.00 2.000% 19,493.75 464,493.75 483,987.50
06/30/2027 - - 15,043.75 15,043.75 -
12/30/2027 465,000.00 2.000% 15,043.75 480,043.75 495,087.50
06/30/2028 - - 1039375 10,393.75 -
12/30/2028 470,000.00 2.125% 10,393.75 480,393.75 490,787.50
06/30/2029 - - 5,400.00 5,400.00 -
12/30/2029 480,000.00 2.250% 5,400.00 485,400.00 490,800.00

Total §5,105,000.00 - $839,216.25 $5.944,216.25 -

Yield Statistics

Bond Year Dollars $40,801.50

Average Life s oww ve oo i e e 7.992 Years

Average Coupon o _2.0568270%

Net Interest Cost (NIC} . 2.1556013%

True Interest Cost (TIC) R o o . 2.64B126%

Bond Yield fur Asbiliage Puiposes o i 1.8181506%

All Inclusive Cost (AIC) ! —— o 2.3860804%

IRS Form 8038

Net Interest Cost : T 1.8550565%

Weighted Average Maturity 7.927 Years
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QOctober 25, 2017

To the Villzage President and Members of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Romeoville

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Village of Romeoville for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2017, is hereby submitted as required by the lllincis Complied slatutes. State law
requires that the Village annually issue a complete set of audited financial stalements. The stalements
must be presented in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepled auditing standards by an
independent firm of certified public accountants. This CAFR is published to fulfill these requirements
for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2017.

The report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the Village ol
Romeoville, Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information conlained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it
has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal conirol should not exceed anticipated
benelits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statemenils are free of any material misstatements. As management, we assert that, 1o the best of our
knowledge and beligl, this financial repori is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Village's financial statements have been audited by Sikich LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the Village are {ree of material misstatement. Sikich LLP has issued an unmodified
(“clean”} opinion on the Village of Romeoville’s financial slatements for the year ended April 30, 2017
and as such are [airly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is located
at the front of the linancial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A} immediately {ollows the independent auditor's report
and provides a parrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. GAAP requires that
management provide the MD&A as a narralive introduction, averview and analysis of the basic financial
slatements.

Profile of the Village of Romeoville

The Village ol Romeoville, incorporaled in 1895, is located in Will County and is approximaltely 26 miles
southwest of Chicago. It currently encompasses 18 square miles and is bordered by the Village ol
Bolingbrook to the north, unincorporated Will County to the west, south and east, the Cily of Lockpor
to the southeast and the City of Crest Hill to the South. The Village serves a population of approximately
40,000 residents. It is a home rule community as defined by the lllinois Constitution.

The Village of Romeoville is empowered to levy a properly lax on real propery located within its
boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute 10 extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it
has done from time to time.

-V -
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The Village has a President and Board of Trustees and has a Village form of government. The Village
Board is composed of the Village Prasident and six trustees who are elected at large on a non-partisan
basis lor staggered four year lerms. The Village has an elected Clerk who is elected to a four-year term al
the same lime as the Village President.

Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the Village Board. The Village Board is responsible
for, among other things, passing ordinances and resolutions pertaining to and authorizing the wide scope
of Village activities and operations, adopting the budget, appointing members to Boards and Commissions
and appointing the Village Manager. The Village Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the Village Board and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Village.

The Village of Romeoville provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; refuse
collection; snow and leaf removal; traffic control; on-and off-street parking; building inspections; community
development; code enforcement; community relation services; licenses and permits; the construction and
mainlenance of roads, bridges, storm water systems and other infrastructure; recreational and cultural
activities including parks; and general administrative services.  In addilion to the Village's general
government activities the Village provides water and sewer services.

The Village has excelient schools, a wide variety of post high school education opportunities within the
Village including those provided by Lewis University, Joliet Junior College and Rasmussen College, a
diverse housing slock, easy access to major highways and public transportation and is home to the Lewis
University Airport.

The Village is required to adopt an initial budget for the fiscal year no later than the April 30" preceding the
beginning of the fiscal year on May 1st. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the Village of
Romeoville’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety},
and deparimenl (e.g., police).

Economic Factors

The Village became a Home Rule community in February of 2004. Home Rule communities are not subject
lo the state imposed property tax cap which limits property tax increases, excluding new development and
newly annexed property, to the lessar of 5% or the CPL. Home Rule communities have no legal debt limit,
can implement additional revenue sources not available to non-Home Rule communities and can implement
regulations not available to non-Home Rule communities. Under lllinois State Statutes a Village or City
automatically qualifies as a Home Rule community when the population exceeds 25,000.

The financial condition of the Federal and State governments has had a dramatic effect on the Village of
Romeoville during fiscal year 2016 and is expected to continue through fiscal year 2018. Grant assistance
is extremely competitive and previously reliable state shared revenues that are distributed on a per capita
basis, including the income tax, motor fuel tax and use 1ax, which may be reduced by the state as part of
the state’s elfort to balance fulure state budgets, are still economically sensitive and tend to fluctuate up
and down on a year-to-year basis. The Village continues to look internally and consider increasing other
revenue sources and/or reduce expenditures to maintain services levels unlil these larger governments get
their finances in order. However, as the economy continues to improve downward trends are slowing and
show signs of reversing course.

The Slate, after the start of the Village's FY 17-18 budget, presented four major challenges. The first
challenge was a 10% reduction in State Income tax which will reduce revenues by $330,000 in FY 17-18
and $70,000 in FY 18-19. The State claims the reduction will be for one year only. However, it the reduction
is not restored the Village will face a $400,000 annual revenue chailenge. The second is a 2% collection
tee on the Village's Home-Rule sales tax which will equal an estimated $126,400 per year. The third
challenge is the Slate will reduce FY 17-18 sales tax deductions, State and Home Rule, by $290,000 for
overpayments made by the Stale to the Village. The fourth challenge is an approximate 50%/$38,000
reduction in the High Growth Motor Fuel Tax allotment. The challenges will be met with a combination of
expenditure reductions, use of fund balance and use of additional revenues from other sources.



The Village implemented a Food and Beverage tax and increased the Home Rule sales tax of 1% 1o 1.5%
in the fall of 2009. The new rates went into effect January 1%, 2010. The sales tax increase now generates
$2.1 million on an annual basis while the Food and Beverage Tax now generates $1.4 million on an annual
basis. The taxes were implemented to ensure the Village did not have a large General Corporate Fund
shorifall for FY 2008-10, and help to balance future General Corporate Fund budgels,

Even with the additional funds from these sources the Village's 2011-12 budget was only $1 million more
than FY 2010-11 ($41 million versus $40 million). The FY 12-13 General Corporale Fund budget did
increase to the $43 million level. The FY 13-14 was at the $46 million level and included use of $1 million
in fund balance, which was not needed. The FY 14-15 and FY 15-16 Budgels increased to $47 million and
the FY 16-17 budget increased to $50 million. The FY 17-18 budget is al the 357 million level and did utilize
$1 million in fund balance. The FY 17-18 Budget includes $5 million for the construction of the Metra Station
and $4 million in grant funds. Excluding this project, the budget would be $52 million. The FY 18-19 budget
is anticipated to be $55 million.

The Village adjusted a number of taxes, fees and fines in FY 10-11. The Motor Fuel Tax rate was increased
from 4 cents to 5 cents per gallon, the nalural gas use tax from 2.5 cenls per therm to 3.5 cents, vehicle
impound fees were increased from $300 to 5400, various Pulice lickels were all increased to $30.00 which
had ranged $10.00 to $25.00 previously, business licenses and liguor license fees were increased across
all classes, and the Village implemented a Real Estate Transfer Tax Service Fee of $40.00 for lax exempt
transactions. The increases generate an additional $500,000 a year in General Corporate Fund revenues.
The Village did not adjust any fee for FY 11-12 and FY 12-13. Late during FY 13-14 the Village increased
the Hotel Tax rate from 6% to 9% and in FY 14-15 increased the Food and Beverage lax to 1.25% for the
non-alcohol portion of the tax and 3% for the alcohol portion. The increased rales generale an additional
$820,000 per year ($650,000 Food and Beverage and $170,000 Hotel Tax). No taxes and fees were
adjusted as part of the FY 15-16 budget. However the local gas tax rate on diese! fuel was increased from
5 cents {0 7 cents mid-year. The increase generates an additional $50,000 per year for the Corporate
Fund.

The Village, after the start of the FY 17-18 Budget implemented the following changes not reflecled in the
budget, Overweight/Over-width permits, self-adjudication hearings for towing, ambulance rate changes to
simplify the rates and better capture Medicare payments. The combined impact will range from $50,000 to
$100,000. Localtax rates and fees will be reviewed as part of the FY 18-19 budget and proposed increases
and/or new fees may be presented to the Village Board.

The Village implemented an annual 5% increase in the water and sewer rales. The rate increases are
reviewed every year as part of the budget process. However, the increases will be needed for several
years to ensure the proper levels of services are provided to the residents and the system is mainlained in
the proper manner. The Village anticipates decreasing the annual 5% rate increase to 3% starting in FY
19-20. However, this will be monitored on a year-1o-year basis.

The Village pursued the implementation of a Real Estats Transfer Tax. The tax, by state statute, can only
be implemented by Home Rule communities but still must be approved by the voters through the
referendumn process. The Village was able to successlully pass the referendum during the April 5, 2005
elections. The Real Estate Transfer Tax was implemented in June of 2005 and generated $1.25 miillion,
which exceeded the estimated relerendum amount of $1,073,000. In fiscal year 2007 the tax generated
$1.7 million. However, that decreased to $1.5 million for fiscal year 2008, $0.6 million for 2009, $0.5 million
for 2010 and $0.4 million in 2011, 2012 saw an increase to $0.7 million, 2013 dipped to $0.5 million, 2014
increased to $0.7 million, 2015 and 2016 increased to $0.9 million and $1.4 million was collected in 2017.
It was anticipated that 2018 will see a decrease to $0.8 million but preliminary results indicated that the
Village will received $1.0 million. The poor but improving housing market continues to alfect receipts but
sale of commaercial and industrial properties conlinue to produce the bulk of the revenue. The Village
pledged, through the referendum process, to use half the proceeds for recreational projects and open space
acquisition and the other half for growth related capital projects and public safety equipment.
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Fiscal year 2004 saw the start of a slowdown in residential growth in the Village. The trend continued
during the 2014 liscal year. The Village's housing starls have decreased from the 700 to 1,200 range to the
current 25 to 50 range. The Village has no new subdivisions planned and only three aclive subdivisions
are having new homes buwilt with increased activity up to 50 homes in FY 17-18. Also, an apartment complex
of 292 units started construction in FY 15-16, opened in FY 16-17 and will be fully occupied in FY 18-19,
A similar sized complex along Normantown Road is anticipated to break ground in 2018. There are several
other apartment projects in very early to early slages of development.

The Village continues to receive greater funds from growth related revenues including building permits and
tap-on fees, but continues to experience small annual increases in areas such as water and sewer usage,
and utility tax and recreation department revenues. The Village is seeing increases in industrial and, to a
lesser extent commercial development. The increase in industrial and commercial development does have
a positive impact on sales lax, property tax, utility tax, business licenses and water and sewer revenues.

Recent aclivity has included the Sam's Club opening in October of 2013, apening of a Deals Store in 2014,
the opening ol a TJ Maxx in 2015, and Ashley Furniture which completed a distribution facility with a retail
component that opened in 2015. Amazon opened a large distribution center in 2017 that employs over
1,000 people.

Blain's Farm and Fleet broke ground on their new store in 2015 which opened in October of 2016. The
outlols are starting 1o develop on the site, as a gas station is expected 1o break ground in 2018 and
Checkers has expressed some interest.

Toyota broke ground on a new car dealership on Weber Road and is scheduled to will open early in 2018.

Two new Mexican restaurants opened their doors in the fall of 2017. One is located in the old Fat Ricky's
site, while the other is located off of Budler Road. The Bee Brothers are working to open their doors in
2017 at the old Applebee’s site.

Presence Healthcare, afiiliated with St. Joseph's Hospital, broke ground in FY 15-16 on a 26,000 square
foot senior healthcare facility that will also include medical services currently not available in the Village
such as blood draws for medical testing and MRI's. The medical facility opened ils deors in October of
2016.

Also a large golf course renovation project, which includes a new club house, is compleied with the course
renovalions and leaming center portions of the project completed in the spring of 2013 and the club house,
which started construction in 2014, opened late in 2015. In addition, a couple of industrial spec buildings
are being developed, and a couple of large industrial businesses, including Magid Glove and Salety and
Peacock Engineering, moved into vacant sites. FY 2014-15 saw a continued return towards more typical
levels of development, while FY 15-16, FY 16-17 and FY 17-18 will continue that trend.

The Village, in hope of revitalizing what is now designated as the downtown area, formed a Tax Increment
Finance District (Downtown TIF) to provide a funding mechanism for the needed activities and projects.
The revitalization will provide an economic engine on the Village's aging North side. The revitalization is
expected to have a long-term positive impact on property taxes, sales faxes, building permits and other
revenue sources. The Village has implemented extensive design standards for properies localed within
the TIF area and wants to improve the existing structures to meet the new standards.

More importantly, the Downtown TIF is expecled to improve the quality of life for the residents. The
Downtown TIF is anticipated lo aliract new quality businesses to the area and some new housing in the
form of an apartment complex.

The downtown area is generally bounded by Normantown Road on the north, lllincis Route 53 on the east,
Alexander Circle on the south and Dalhart Avenue on the west. The area includes what currently is the
Spartan Square Shopping Center and the surrounding vacant land and various out lots. The entire
Downtown TIF area is approximately 421 acres including the Downtown Area.
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The Downtown TIF wili extend east of the Downtown area to include nearby industrial parks and open
space up to and along the Des Plaines River and south along the Route 53 fronlage properties to Romeo
Road. The Downtown TIF is contiguous to the existing Marquette TIF. Businesses include the relocation
of the Fat Ricky's restaurant from their former location within the TIF 10 a new, larger building that includes
a 4,000 square foot deli and the construction of a 7,000 square fool strip center thal includes a Subway
sandwich shop, a relocated Harris Bank and a relocated dentis! office. TIF incentives have been provided
to Fat Ricky's and 1o the developers of the retail center. The projects broke ground in early 2016 and were
completed late in 2016.

The Village acquired the Sparlan Square Shopping Plaza, located within the Downtown TIF, during fiscal
year 2008. The Village was in the process of looking at condemnation. Having control of the property
provided the Village better flexibility and flow of information in working with potential developers with regards
lo the property. The Village razed the Spartan Square Plaza in 2013.

The Village also acquired the 9 Rock Road property for §1.3 million, and demolished the main structure
with TIF funds in FY 2012-13, and will periorm additional site clean-up and improvemenits in FY 13-14 and
FY 14-15. The business located on the site was laken over by the bank. [t was a site the Village has
coveted because the business was improperly zoned, but was grandtathered in when the zoning for the
business type changed. The Village, as pan of the transaction, had an option to acquire an additional 2.3
acres adjacent 1o 9 Rock Road for $170,000. The Village exercised the option in FY 13-14 and completed
the transaction in FY 14-15.

The Village has purchased both the former Harris Bank site (FY 16-17 — Downtown TIF - $1.2 million) and
the {ormer Dentist Office site (FY 17-18 — Facility Construction Fund - $268,000). The Village also acquired
vacant land trom Harris Bank during fiscal year 2009 ($2.2 million). The combined fand may be used for
an apartment complex, hotel or additional parking.

The Village has also acquired the Route 66 used car lot located along Roule 53 in FY 17-18 (General
Corporate Fund) and budgeted Downtown TIF funds 1o acquire the other used car lot along Route 53 in FY
18-19. Both car lots are located within the Downtown TIF. The Village also purchased a small car wash in
FY 15-16 located within the downtown TIF and will convert it to a much neaded parking lot. The Edward
Hospital Athletic and Event Center hosts many events where parking is at a premium.

In 2017 a new Thorntons gas stalion and a new car wash opened on the carmner of Route 53 and Romeo
Road with additional commercial use to follow. TIF incentives were provided for this project to ofiset road
improvements required along both Route 53 and Romeo Road. The car wash relocaled from a small iot
located near Route 53 and Normantown Road. A new Checkers restaurant will go onto that location.

The Village, acling as the master developer, has worked with Harbor Construction and the Barr Group, to
help refine the Village's downtown vision. Two new restaurants opened in or near the Downtown Area in
FY 2010-11 (Mongo McMichael's Texas Barbeque and ihe Stone City Saloon). TIF incentives were
provided to both restaurants. The new McDonalds opened up in the Downtown TiF area in 2016 across the
sireet from the Edward Hospital Athletic and Event Cenler.

The Village may spend $50.0 million in prajects throughout the Downlown TIF area with the main focus in
the designated downiown area. Projects include the Edward Hospital Athlelic and Events Center, Rouie
53 landscaping islands, infrastructure improvements to storm water systems, improve and realign roadways
and property acquisition, assembly, preparation and maintenance. TIF dollars will be used to assist
property owners with property rehab, facade improvemenis, relocation expenses and other incentives.

Incentives have been or will be provided to assist the White Oak Library renovation project ($270,000),
Mickey's Goodyear renovations ($40,000}, Mongo McMichael's Restaurant improvements ($75,000),
Danny Boys site restoration ($72,605), Stone City Saloon improvemenis ($240,000), Walgreens site
improvements ($350,000), McDonalds ($100,000), Duke Realty ($700,000), the PAL Group/Orange Crush
property restoration ($30,000) and TD Romeovilie LLC (Thornlons - $115,000).
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Fat Ricky's Restaurant incentives include $750,000 in cash incentives plus free land, parking lot design and
engineering fees, reduced permit fees and landscape construction that could push the total value well over
51 million. The Retail Center incentives include $275,000 in cash incentives plus iree land, reduced permit
fees and landscape construction that could push the total value well over $0.5 million.

The Village issued, in July of 2013, $15.1 million in bonds to pay for the construction of the Edward Hospital
Athletic and Event Center and public improvemenis in the downlown area. The bonds were for 12 years
and are being paid with TIF funds. The bond issue is a mix of taxable and non-taxable bonds. The taxable
portion wilt pertain to the funding needed for the Edward Hospital Athletic and Event Center ($12.9 million)
while the remaining portion ($2.2 million) was used primarily for storm water and road improvements.

The Edward Hospilal Athletic and Event center provides the Village a presence in the downtown and serves
as an altraction to bring both a daytime and nighttime population to the downtown. The Edward Hospital
Alhletic and Event Center partially opened in the January of 2014 and fully openad in March of 2014, The
Edward Hospital Athletic and Evenl Center is {ulfilling its intended goal to act as an economic engine for
the downtown area, as it has been in near constant use for many praclices, leagues, and hosting of evenis
including several large basketball tourmnaments, featuring youth and high school male and lemale alhletes
of interest to various levels of college programs.

The Edward Hospital Athletic and Event center contains space for a performing ans center/stage, indoor
tusf practice fields, iwo permanent basketball and volleyball courts, six temporary basketball courts, and
community rooms. The Village entered into a naming rights agreement with Edward Hospilal in 2015
regarding the Athletic and Event Center. The agreement is for five years with five payments from Edward
to the Village of $100,000. Edward Hospital also operates a physical therapy center in the center.

The Village pursued a Public/Private partnership where the Village builds the facilities and provided the
building to a private group to operate the facility. The agreement, which was for S years and placed much
of the financial risk of operating losses with the operator while the Village received limited use ol the facility,
a low annual rental fee, retain revenue generaled for naming rights, a 50/50 split of certain sponsorships,
limited revenue sharing lor the last three years of the agreement and other minor considerations,

However, the Village restructured the operating arrangements of the Athletic and Event Center. Starting in
May of 2017 the Village took over operating responsibilities for the center on a day-to-day basis while
contracting with the former operator tenant to help manage the facility for the remaining length of the original
contract. The Village now bears the risk and reward for operating the facility. The revised arrangement
with the former operator was approved by the Village Board in May of 2017.

The Downtown TIF allows the Village to capture property tax dollars based upon additional equalized
assessed value (EAV) realized above 2003 values and the combined tax rate for all laxing bodies. Property
owners in the Downtown TIF will pay the property 1axes they would normally pay. The taxing bodies receive
property taxes based upon the 2002 EAV of the TIF area and the Village receives lhe remaining portion of
properly taxes for the incremental EAV above the 2003 level. The Village has the approval and support
from the laxing bodies affected by the Downtown TIF, including the Valley View 365U School District. The
Village began to receive TIF funds in the 2006-07 fiscal year. The Downtown TIF may generate an
estimated $3.5 million in property taxes over its remaining life. An additional $17 million is anticipated to
be imported from the existing Marquette TIF over its remaining life. State slatutes allow the villages to
import/export TIF Funds between TIF Districts if they are contiguous with each other. The Marquetie TIF
will be the primary funding source for the Downtown TIF.

The Village has received approval from the state legislature, which required the approval of all the taxing
bodies within the TIF to grant approval, to exiend the life of the Marquette TIF for 12 years to further support
what the Village hopes to accomplish in the Downtown area, The Village increased the Marguette TIF tax
distribution surplus from 20% to 50% during the remaining life of the original Marquette TIF and 30% for
the life of the extended portion which started with the 2013 property tax levy.
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The Village also provided the Valley View School District $1,000,000 in TIF funds for improvements for the
RC Hill School and $250,000 will be provided for Transportation Facility improvements both of which are
located in the Downlown TIF. The Village also forgave the school district $250,000 in a loan, funded through
TIF, related 1o the Transporation Facility. The area also includes a renovated library facility. The library
district completed their renovation projecl in the summer of 2012.

The Village created a third TIF in fiscal year 2008. The Romeo Road TIF is located on the North East corner
of Route 53 and Romeo Road and is 2.5 acres in size. The TIF was created to provide $350,000 in
incentives for Developers lo bring a Walgreens to the site. The Walgreens opened in October of 2008, The
site was home to a long-time closed Amoco station. The site had a number of environmental and
infrastructure challenges and would not be developed without the incentives. The Romeo Road TIF is
contiguous to the Downtown TIF. The Village may construct additional turn lane improvements at the
Walgreens, which will be funded out of the Romeo Road TIF.

The Village compileted the formation two new TiIF's in May of 2017. The TIF's are located along Route 53
and Joliel Road with properties near or adjacent to the Marquette TIF. The TIF's are separated by a strip
of ComEd land that ComEd did not wish to annex inlo the Village. The site will see the development of a
Thorntons Truck Stop and a large distribution center. Work on both projects has started.

The developer will receive 90% of the increment from the two TIF's and will include the issuance of notes
and bonds to monelize the project for the developer. The developer will construct a road, make
improvements to Roule 53 and Joliet Road, that are required by the lllinois Department of transportation,
including completion of the intersection traffic signal. In order to make the site viable, a great deal of clean-
up is required and dynamic compaction of the soil is required. The Village is also providing a local gas tax
incentive, based on the Thorntons motor fuel sales, for the project. The Village will reimburse the developer
100% of the taxes collected up to $3 million. The agreements to provide the incentives were completed in
FY 17-18.

A new Fire Station #1 was conslructed on its current sile in FY 15-16 and FY 16-17 for a cost of $4.3 million,
The new Fire Station became operable in September of 2016. The Village had purchased property in 2009
for §0.3 million for the Fire Station but will repurpose that property for another use. Funding came from
escrowed property laxes of $4.3 million pertaining o an Equalized Assessed Value challenge (See below)
between the refinery and the taxing bodies.

The Viliage has experienced decreases in Equalized Assessed Value in 2008, 2009 and 2011 through
2013, a slight 0.42% increase in 2014 a 2.66% increase in 2015 and a 7.06% increase in 2016. It is
anticipated that the EAV will increase 5% to 7% in 2017.

There was a large increase in 2010 due to a successful challenge, at the counly level, of the Citgo Refinery
EAV by a local school district. ! nol for the Citgo EAV adjustment the Village's EAV would have decreased
for 2010 as well. The 2010 Citgo EAV increase in the Village was 585 million and generates $1.2 million
in property tax for the Village.

Citgo was challenging the EAV increase and if they were successful with the challenge, the Village would
have lo repay the faxes. The case was not scheduled to be reviewed by the State Property Tax Appeals
Board for several years because of their case backiog. The Village set aside the Citgo Funds in case the
funds had to be repaid. The laxing bodies, led by the county and school district, did reach a settlement
with Citgo in 2015. The settlement required that no repayment of laxes collected by the taxing bodies be
returned to Citgo. The Village transferred the funds ($4.3 million) in FY 14-15 from the General Corporate
Fund to the Facility Construction Fund to construct a new Fire Station. The agreement sels the EAV for
the 2014 through 2018 levies. The settlement did reduce the 2013 EAV by $30 million over the 2015 and
2016 levy years but the Village no longer has to set aside the funds.

The Village lowered its property tax rate in 2017 and has modestly increased the levy over the last two
years. The tax bill {Village portion) for the homeowners has also increased slightly the last two years, after
holding steady for several years, but still remains lower than what the homeowners paid in 2008.



The Village anticipates keeping the 2017 levy and homeowner cost at similar levels to the 2016 levy. Any
increases will be based upon new growth,

The Village, in order 1o increase sewage lreatment capacity and meet EPA requirements, initiated a
wastewater consolidalion and expansion project. The tolal project costs $36 million and took several years
lo complete. The Village has secured an lllinois EPA Revolving Loan {526 million) for a low interest loan
lo fund the project. The current IEPA loan rate is 2.5%. The loan is for 20 years, with 12 years remaining.
Annual payments are $1.8 million. The loan is being repaid from water and sewer revenues.

The Village conlinues to improve infrastructure and transporiation in the Village. The State is in the process
of widening the 155 and Weber Road inlersection and includes widening the Nermantown and Weber Road
intersection as well. The State has completed the design phase and did “break ground” in FY 14-15. Some
preliminary construction has started but the State is slill in the process of securing easements and resolving
other issues associated with the project. Construction may start in 2018 but could be further delayed. The
two intersections are two of the top ten worst locations in the state for accidents. The Village may have to
contribute up to $1 million towards the project.

The Village has an 80% maiching grant lo sludy and design an interchange system at 155 and Aisport and
Route 126. The Village is working in conjunction with the Villages of Plainfield and Bolingbrook to fund the
project. All three communities would be the primary beneficiaries of the interchange. The grant portion of
the project has been completed but additional engineering to complete the study is being paid 100% by the
three communities.

The Village is working with Metra fo construct a new train station located at 135" streel and New Avenue,

The Village worked with the Citgo Refinery o have the land donated and secured a grant for design of the
station, to study the impact of the slation on the Village's eas! side, and to guide proper planning for the
area. Melra worked with the Village 1o secure a grant for the project. The Village is contributing 20% ol
the cosls (51 million) to fund the project while 80% is coming through grants (84 million). The station began
construction in spring of 2017 and will open in late 2017 or early 201B. The Village will also have to pay for
some additional landscaping and other improvements ($300,000) that were beyond the original scope of
ihe project but desired by the Village. The Village will operate the parking lot associated with the station.

The Village look several sleps to balance the FY 10-11 and future budgets by leaving ten positions vacant
through several departments, no raises for non-union staff in FY 10-11, offered an early retirement incentive
package (which expired in FY 15-16 and is reflected in the required GASB 45 reporting) and staff reductions
of 3 full-lime and 15 part-time positions. FY 17-18 continues to leave certain positions vacant and limit
expenditure increases to only what is contraclually obligated and what is deemed necessary. The FY 18-
19 budget will be prepared in a similar manner.

The Village's contracts with the Police Union (MAP) and Public Works/Clericalinspeclors/Code
Enforcement/E-911 Dispatch Union (AFSCMEY) expired al the end of fiscal year 2015. Negotiations started
during the spring of 2015 and were settled over the course of the fiscal year. COLA increases were limited
to 2.35% for both contracts, requires all new hires to belong to the less expensive HMO and a greater
premium cost for employees who do nol parlicipate in the Village's wellness program. The contract expires
at the end of FY 17-18. Negotiations are anticipated to stant during FY 17-18.

Non-Union Employees received a 2% COLA for FY 11-12, FY 12-13, FY 13-14, FY 14-15, 3% in FY 14-
15 and 2% in FY 15-16. Non-Union employees moved from a step plan lo a merit based range plan for FY
16-17 with average raises of 3.5%. There are no automatic COLA increases but the range top and bottom
are adjusted each year. Tolal raises including performance based bonuses did average 3.5% for FY 17-18,
a similar percent to the combined union Step Increase and COLA increases received by the unions (4.0%).
Starting in FY 18-19 Non-Union staff will be required to contribute 12% towards HMO premiums. New hires
are no longer able to participale in the PMO insurance plan
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The fisst Fire Union contract expired in FY 12-13 and negoliations were completed in FY 14-15, The settled
contract included a substantial pay increase in order to maintain compensation at levels similar to
surrounding and like size communities and included a 2% COLA. The settled contract expired al the end
ol FY 15-16. The new conlract was finally settled in October of 2017 with terms similar to those of the Police
and AFSCME unions with a 2.35% increase for FY 16-17, a 6% increase lor FY 17-18 and a 2,35% increase
for FY 18-19. Current Firelighlers on the HMO plan will now contribute 5% (vs. 0%) of the premium cost.
All new hires will be required to be on the HMO plan and contribute 12% of the premium costs. Current
Firefighters on the PPO plan saw no changes to contribution rate (12%).

Police and Fire Pension Fund Information

The Police Pension fund overall had a good year in 2017, Actuarial assumplions estimate that the Village
will relurn 7% annually for pension fund purposes when, in acluality, the Police Pension fund had a return
of negative 11.4% in 2017. The return was caused by an up year in the equity markets, which was reflected
in the increase of the market value in mutual funds held by the fund. Overall, the fund value increased by
$4,537,000/13%. The Police Pension fund has a diverse portfolio that includes cash, cash equivalents and
money market mutual funds (2%}, treasuries and agencies (31%) and equities (67%). The Police Pension
fund, based on FY 16-17 data and the Village's actuary calculations, is 66.7% funded and a 2.4% increase
from the prior year under the Actuarial Valuation of Assets and 66.4% funded and a 6.4% increase from
the prior year under the Market Valuation of Assets . The Village, at the time of this report, does not yet
have actuarial information based on FY 16-17 dala from the State. The Village and State use differing
methodology. The Village bases the levy on the higher actuary requirement between the two.

The Fire Pension fund had an up year in 2016. Actuarial assumptions estimate that the Village will return

% annually for pension fund purposes. However the Fire Pension fund only relurned 6.0% in 2017. Overall,
the fund value increased by $736,000/9%. The Fire Pension fund is very conservative with 65% of lhe
assels invested in money market mutual funds (1%), federal treasuries, agencies (52%) and municipal
bonds (8%). The remaining 38% is invested in mutual funds. The Fire Pension fund, based on FY 16-17
data and the Village's actuary calculations, is 96.1% funded and a 3.7% decrease from the prior year undar
the Actuarial Valuation of Assets and 92.6% funded and a 2.5% decrease from the prior year under the
Market Valuation of Assels. The Village, at the time of this report, does nol yet have actuarial information
based on FY 16-17 dala from the State. The Village and State use differing methodology. The Village
bases the levy on the higher actuary requirement between the lwo.

The Village conducled an OPEB GASB 45 actuary study in FY 15-16. The actuarial liability increased from
$2.4 million to $4.8 million. The increase was due to changes in assumptions pertaining to the length of
lime participants will remain on Village insurance upon retirement based on sick lime benefit usage, the
ages of reliree spouses, gender and sliding scale of the implicit cost as relirees age. The next study will
be based upon FY 17-18 data.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skill, effort, and dedication of the
entire staff of the Finance Department. We wish to thank all government departments for their assistance
in providing the necessary data and participation to prepare this report. Credit also is due to the Village
President and the Village Board for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the Village of Romeoville's finances.

Respectfully submitted,
Kirk Openchowski
Finance Director/Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, [llinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Village of Romeoville, Illinois (the Village), as of and for the year ended April 30, 2017 and the
related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Village’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Romeoville, Illinois
as of April 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information listed in the
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it 1o be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Sctict LLD

Naperville, Illinois
October 24, 2017
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

April 30, 2017

The Village of Romeoville's {the “Village™) management discussion and analysis {MD&A) is designed fo (1) assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues, {2) provide an overview of the Village's financial activity, (3) identify changes in the Village's
financial position (ils ability o address the next and subsequent years’ challenges), (4} identify any material deviations from the
financial plan (the approved budget), and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activilies, resulting changes
and currently known facls, please read it in conjunction with the Village's financial stalements (beginning on page 4).

Using the Financial Section of this Comprehensive Annual Report

In the past, the primary focus of local governmental financial statements has been summarized fund type information on a current
financial resources basis. This approach has been modified and now the Village's financial statements present two kinds of
statements, each with a different snapshet of the Village's finances. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow
the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year-to-year or government-to-government} and enhance
the Village's accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial stalemenls {see pages 4-6) are designed to emulate the corporate sector in Ihat all governmental
and business-type aclivilies are consolidated into columns which add {o a lotal for the primary government. The focus of the
stalement of net position (the “unrestricted nel position”) is designed to be similar lo bottom line results for the Village and its
governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates the governmenta! funds’ current financial
resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations using the accrual basis of accounting
and economic resources measurement focus.

The statement of aclivities (see pages 5-6) is focused on both the gross and net cost of various aclivities (including governmental
and business-type), which are supported by the government's general taxes and other resources. This is intended to summarize
and simplify the user's analysis of the cost of various governmental services and/or subsidies to various business-type activities.

The governmenta! acfivities reflect the Village's basic services, including general government, public safety, public works, and
cullure and recreation. Shared state sales, local ulility and shared state income taxes finance the majarity of these services. The
business-lype aclivities reflect private seclor type operalions (water and sewerage), where the fee for service typically covers all
or most of the costs of operation, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements
Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more familiar. The focus
is on major funds, rather than (the previous model's) fund types.

The governmental funds (see pages 7-12) preseniation is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources basis. This is the
manner in which the financial plan (the budget} is typically developed. The flow and availability of liquid resources is a clear and
appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are established for various purposes and the fund financial statements
allow the demonstration of sources and uses andfor budgeting compliance associaled therewith.

The fund financial statements also allow the government to address its fiduciary funds (Police Pension and Firefighters' Pension,
see pages 17-18). While these funds represent {rust responsihilities of the government, these assets are restricled in purpose and
do not represent discretionary assets of the government. Therefore, these assels are not presenied as part of the government-
wide financial stalements.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

While the business-type aclivilies column in the business-type fund financial statements (see pages 13-16) is the same as the
business-type column in the government-wide financial statements, the governmental funds total column requires a reconcifiation
because of the different measurement focus {current financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on
the page following each statement (see pages 9 and 12). The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and
interfund transfers as other financing sources as well as capila! expenditures and tond principal payments as expenditures. The
reconciliation will eliminale these transactions and incorporate capital assets and long-term obligations {bonds and others) into the
govemmental activities column {in the government-wide financial statements).

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure - roads, bridges, storm sewers, elc.) have not been reported
nor depreciated in governmental financial statements. The Governmenlal Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
{GASB 34) requires that these assets be valued and reported within the governmental column of the government-wide financial
slatements. Additionally, the government must elect to either (1) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives or
(2) develop a system of asset management designed o maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuily. If the government
develops the asset management system (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category,
measures and demonstrates its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record its cost
of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The Village has chosen to depreciate assets over their useful lives. If a road project is
considered maintenance - a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or expand ils capacily — the cost of
the project will be expensed. An “overlay” of a road will be considered maintenance whereas a “rebuild” of a road will be capitalized.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the Village, assets and
deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilifies and deferred infiows of resources by $325.7 million as of April 30, 2017,

A significant portion of the Village's net position (103.4%) reflects its investment in capital assels (i.e., land, land improvements,
streels and bridges, slorm sewers, water mains, buildings and vehicles) less any related debl used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to ils citizens; consequently, these assets are not
availabte for future spending. Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noled that the resources needed lo repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.

For more detailed information see the statement of net position {page 4).

The Village's combined net position {which is the Viliage's equity) decreased to $325.7 million from $343.6 million as a result of
decreases in the net position of both the governmental activities and business-type activities. Net position of the Village's
governmental activilies for FY 16-17 were $238.2 million, a decrease of $8.1 million from FY 15-16. The decrease can mostly be
attributed to changes in depreciable capital assets, which decreased through depreciation, asset disposal, a change in accounting
principle, and reclassification. The Village's unrestricted net position of a negative $21.8 million, slightly lower than FY 15-16
($900,000 decrease) is negalive due to the application of the GASB 68 requirements regarding pension fund liability reporting
requirements in FY 15-16. The net position of business-type activities decreased to $87.5 million from $97.3 million due mainly to
a change in accounting principle, but the unrestricted portion increased from $7.2 million to $7.6 million. The Village can use
unrestricted net position to finance the continuing operations of its waler and sewer system. Please note that Governmental
Activities assets and liabilities were both $13 million higher due to Series 2016 Bond Refunding that was slarted in FY 15-16 and
compleled in FY 16-17,

{See independent auditor's report.}
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

Table 1
Statement of Net Position
As of April 30, 2017
{In millions)
Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities  Total Primary Government

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current Assets $56.8 3 67.2 $11.1 $ 1.0 $679 $ 78.2
Noncurrent Assels - - - - - -
Capital Assels 3340 3478 997 1134 433.7 461.0
Tolal Assets 3908 4148 1108 1244 501.6 5392
Deferred Qutflows of
Resources
Pension ltems 5.0 57 06 07 5.6 6.4
Unamortized Loss on
Refunding 0.5 01 - - 0.5 01
Total Deferred Quiflows
of Resources 55 58 0.6 0.7 6.1 8.5
Total Assets and
Deferred Quiflows
of Resources 396.3 4206 14 1251 507.7 5457
Current Liabilities 76 87 1.5 2.0 9.1 10.7
Noncurrent Liabilities 1322 1494 224 25.7 1751
Total Liabilities 1398 1581 239 2717 163.7 1858
Deferred Inflows of
Resources
Pension ltems 44 2.8 - - 4.4 28
Deferred Revenue 13.7 13.2 - - 13.7 13.2
Unamortized Gain on
Refunding 0.2 0.2 - - 02 0.2
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources 183 162 - - 183 16.2
Total Liabilities and
Deferred Inflows
of Resources 1581 1743 239 217 1820 2020
Net Investment in
Capital Assets 256.8 264.5 79.9 90.1 336.7 3546
Restricted 32 27 - - 3.2 27
Unrestricted (21.8) {20.9) 7.6 7.2 14.2 {13.7)

Total Net Position

Normal Impacts
There are six basic (normal} transaclions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary presentation.

Net Results of Activities — which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net position.

Borrowing for Capital — which will increase current assels and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital Assets — which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets. There is
a second impact, an increase in the amount invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt which will not change
the net investment in capital assels.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital Assets — which will (a) reduce current assels and increase capital
assets and (b) will reduce unrestricled net posilion and increase nel investment in capital assets.

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b} reduce unrestricted net
position and incréase net investment in capital assets.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation — which reduces capital assets and net investment in capital assets.

Current Year Impacts

The Village's govemmental aclivilies net position decreased $8.1 million which can be altributed to several factors. Current assets
decreased by $24 million, which can be alfributed to a $12.7 decrease in Qther Receivables which refiects the timing of bond
proceeds related lo the Refunding GO Series 2016 Bonds, a $12.2 million decrease in Capilal Assels Being Deprecialed due to
depreciation, disposal of assels and fixed assel reclassifications and a change in accounting principle (See Note 13j and a §1.4
million decrease in Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated as land was provided as incentives to developers in the Village's
Downtown TIF. The decrease was offset by a $1.4 increase in cash and invesiments due to operation revenues exceeding
expenses and $600,000 in increase from a variety of receivables that individually do not represent any significant changes.
Deferred Culflows of Resources decreased by $300,000 due to an unamortized loss on refunding of $520,000 on the series 2016A
bonds which is offset by reduced net outflows of Police, Fire and IMRF pensions.

Liabiliies decreased by $18.3 million due to the principal payments of bonds {$4.6 million), resolution of the timing issue of the
Refunding Series 2016 Bonds ($13.2 million}. The Village partially refunded the 20078 General Obligation Refunding Bonds with
the Series 2016 bonds.  There was also a decrease of $1.1 million in current liabilities due in part to the timing of accounts
payable, ($1 million decrease) related lo capital projects and retainages at the respective year ends including Fire Station Number
1. Deposils payable increased by $0.2 million due to funds held in escrow for various development projecis and, increases in
escrows for police fines, forfeilures and seizure funds that are designated for specific uses by law. Interest payable decreased by
$0.1 million due to repayment of debt. Accrued liabilities decreased by $0.4 million due to timing with fiscal year end payrolls

Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $2.1 millien which can mainly be attributed to an increase the Differences Between
Expected and Actual Experience in the Police Pension Fund due to the sirong market gains of their equity based investments in
FY 16-17.

The Village's business-type aclivilies net position decreased $9.8 million and can be altributed to several factors. Current Assets
and Deferred Outflows decreased by $13.6 million. Capital asset decreased by $10.2 million due to depreciation, disposal of assels,
a change in accounting principle for fixed assets, and fixed asset reclassifications (See Note 13) while Current Assets and Deferred
Qutflows remained virtually unchanged. Liabilites and Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $3.8 million, which can be
attributed to decreased liabilities associated with bonds ($2.2 Million), the IEPA notes payable ($1.3 million) and reduced accounts
payable {$0.3 Million)

Current year impacts are discussed in more delail after Table 2,

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Changes in Net Position

The following chart compares the ravenue and expenses for the current and prior fiscal year.

REVENUES
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Conlributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
General Revenues
Property and
Replacement Taxes
Sales Taxes
Income Taxes
Utility Taxes
Other Taxes
Transfers
Other
Special Hem
Total Revenues

EXPENSES
General Government
Fublic Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
Debt Service

Total Expenses

CHANGE IN NET
POSITION

BEGINNING NET
POSITION

Prior Period Adjustment

BEGINNING NET
POSITION, RESTATED

ENDING NET POSITION

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2017

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

{In millions)

Governmental Activities

2017

$ 136
1.2

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2017 Governmental Activities Expenses

&

BGenerzl Government DPublic Safety DPublic Werks ODebt Service B Culture & Recreation

2017 Governmental Activities Revenue

¢

mCharges for Services €@ Operating Grants D Capital Grants DProperty Tax BOther Taxes o Other

There are eight basic impacts on revenues and expenses as reflected below:

Normal Impacts

Revenues:
Economic Condition - which can reflect 2 declining, stable or growing economic environment and has a substantial impact
on state income, sales and utility tax revenue as well as public spending habits for bullding permits, elective user fees and
volumes of consumption.

Increase/Decrease in Village Board approved rates — while certain tax rates are set by statute, the Village Board has
significant authority to impose and periodically increase/decrease rates (water, wastewater, impact fees, building fees, home
rule sales taxes, etc }

Changing Patterns in Intergovernmental and Grant Revenue (both recurring and nonrecurring) - certain recurring
revenues (state shared revenues, etc.) may experience significant changes periodically while nonrecurring (or one-time)
grants are less prediclable and often distorting in their impact on year-to-year comparisons.

Market Impacts on Investment income - the Village's investment portfolio is managed using a similar average maturity to
mosl governments. Market conditions may cause investment income lo fluctuate.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
-MDE&A 6 -



Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Expenses:
Introduction of New Programs — within the functional expense categories (General Government, Public Safety, Public

Works, Culture and Recreation, etc.) individual programs may be added or deleted to meet changing community needs.

Increase in Authorized Personnel - changes in service demand may cause the Village Board to increasefdecrease
authorized staffing. Staffing cosls (salary and related benefits) represent 41% of the Village's operating costs.

Salary Increases (annual adjustments and merit raises) - the ability to attract and retain human and infellectual resources
requires the Village to strive to approach a competitive salary range position in the marketplace.

Inflation — while overall inflation appears to be reasonably modest, the Village is a major consumer of certain commodities
such as supplies, fuels and parts. Some functions may experience unusual commodity-specific increases.

Current Year Impacts

Revenues:
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2017, revenues from all activities iotaled 3$85.2 million. The Village has a diversified revenue
structure and depends on several key revenue sources to help pay for the services provided. These sources include property
taxes, sales taxes, ulility taxes, shared revenues from the State {income tax, motor fuel tax), building permits, grants,
developer contributions, rubbish collection fees, water and sewer sales to customers and tap-on fees.

The Village saw a 7.05% increase in the equalized assessed valualion {EAV) from $1.065 billion to $1.140 billion. The tax
rate decreased from $1.2981 to $1.2594 per $100 EAV. There was virtually no change in its property tax revenue in 2017
compared {o the previous year at $16.4 million for both years. The Village did receive $0.1 million mere in Replacement Tax.
The Village, as a Home Rule community is not subject to the property tax cap laws. The Village collections and levies were
about same for both FY 17 and FY 16 for both the Village Levy and the TIF generated property taxes.

Sales Tax increased by $0.4 million or 3.4%. Sales Tax increased primarily due io the addition of Blain's Farm and Fleet to
the retail base, other additional smaller retail and a recovering economy, State sales tax increased by $0.2 million and the
Village's Home Rufe sales tax increased by $0.2. The Village last increased its home rule sales tax rate from 1.00% 10 1.5%
effective January 1, 2010.

The State Use Tax increased by $0.1 million.

State Income Tax revenue showed a decrease of $0.4 million due to a decreases in statewide income as the lilincis economy
continues to struggle.

Ulility taxes including telecommunications showed an increase of $0.5 million as revenues from these sources remained
stable. The majority of the increase came from Ihe electric utility fax,

The Village saw an increase in other tax revenue over the prior year of $0.6 million or 256%. The increases can be atlributed
to Real Estate Transfer lax {($0.4 million), Local Gas Tax ($01. Million), Hotel Tax ($0.1 million} and Focd and Beverage Tax
($0.1 million). The Real Estale Transfer Taxincrease is due to a larger number of high value industrial properties selling. The
hote! fax increase is due to greater demand for hotels generated from the Edward Athletic and Event Center and the full year
of a new exlended stay hotel {Woodspring Suites) within the Village. The food and beverage increase is also due in part to
the Edward Athletic and Event Center, the full year of a new McDonalds and the new club house at the Mistwood Golf Course
which includes a pub and fine dining restaurant.

License and permit revenue increased $1.8 million/95% in 2016, The increase in building permits is due to a greater number
of large projects having permils issued in FY 16-17. However, this is due more to project timing than a dramatic change in
building activity. Several large building projects, including & large apariment complex, had permits issued in May and June of
2016. Building Permit revenues for FY 16-17 did exceed FY 14-15 and FY 15-16.

Investment returns, excluding pension funds, decreased by approximately 53% due to market valuation changes and
decreased earnings for funds invested in government securities based investment funds.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Charges for services increased by $3.6 million or 13%. The increase from both governmental activities ($32.5 million/22%)
and business-type activities ($1.1 million/8.6%).

The governmental activities increases were generaled through business permits, engineering fees and other growth related
revenues from a variely of industrial projects, an apartment complex and commercial development.

The business-lype activities (water and sewer operations) increase was from greater water and sewer sales due to a 5% rate
increase and additional users on the system.

Cperaling Grants and Contributions saw no change, while Capital Grants and Contributions increased by $6.4 million. The
Village’s grant revenues, while the same for the last two years, will fluctuate from year to year based upon project timing and
grant availability. The increase in Capital Grants and Contributions is due to increased infrastructure contributed by
developers.

Transfer payments, starling in FY10-11, from the business-type activilies (Water and Sewer fund) fo governmental activities
{General Fund) are no longer shown as a transfer bul are reflected as an allocation between funds and are netted against
expenditures in governmental activities. The transfer of §3.2 million increased by $0.1 million/2% for FY 17.

The Police Pension Fund ended the year with $38.9 million in assets. The Fund had $6.5 million in additions, which were
provided by employer and employee confribulions, and investment income. The Fund had $2.0 million in deductions. The
bulk of the deductions were from pension benefits ($2.0 million) along with administrative costs. There net increase lo the
Fund was $4.5 million. The funds equity related investments performed strongly in FY 17,

The Fire Pension Fund ended the year with $8.6 million in assets. The Fund had $1.0 million in additions, which were provided
by employer and employee centributicns and investment income. The Fund had $0.3 million in deductions which consisted
of administrative expenses, pension benefits and refunds of contributions. The net increase to the Fund was $0.74 million.
The funds equity related investmenls performed strongly in FY 17

Expenses:

The Village's tola! expenses for all activities for the year ended April 30, 2017 were §75.9 million. Expenses decreased 2%
($1.6 million) as compared to 2016.

Govemmenla! Aclivilies costs decreased by $1.3 million. The decreases came from General Government ($0.7 millien), Public
Safety (30.9 million) and Public Works {$0.6 million). These decreases were offsel by increases {o costs related to Culture
and Recreation ($0.8 million) and Debt Service ($0.1 million).

The General Government activities decrease of $0.7 million is attributed to capital expenses related decreases of $0.8 million.
Operationa! expenses increased by $0.1 million.

Public Safety decreased by 0.9 million. The majority of the increase comes from decreased capital expenses related to the
construction of the new Fire Station Number One and the purchase of an aerial ladder fruck while operalional expenses
remained stable with an increase of $0.7 million from $18.0 million to $18.7 million due to salary increases inciuding pension
contribution increases.

Public Works expenses decreased by $0.6 million compared to the prior year. Operational expenses increased slighlly by
$0.3 million due to increased conlractuat service costs while capital outlay refaled expenses decreased by $0.9 million from
the prior year.

The Culture and Recreation increase of $0.8 million is due to increases due to timing of capital expense recognitions and
depreciation costs.

Business-type acivities (water and sewer) expenses decreased by $0.3 million from the prior year. The decreases were from
Depreciation {$0.8 million) and interest expense decrease ($0.1 million) which reflects scheduled debt service payments. This
was ofset by Operation increases ($0.7 million) which were spread through line items reflecting plans review and other
engineering aclivities. The water and sewer operations accounted for 54.9% of the total Public Werks activities.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial Analysis of the Village’s Funds

Governmental Funds

At April 30, 2017, the governmenta! funds (as presented on the balance sheel on pages 7-8) reported & combined fund
balance of $36 million. Expenditures/other financing uses exceeded Revenues/other financing sources in 2017 by $9.8
million. The Debt Service Fund Balance decreased by $13.4 million. The primary reason for this decrease was due 1o the
timing of the Refunding GO 2016 Series Bonds which straddled the end of FY 15-16 and FY 16-17. The bonds were used to
refund the GO 2007 Series B Bonds. The bond proceeds and bond premium totaling $13.4 million were recognized in FY 15-
16. The offsetting use for the 2007 B Bonds debt retirement was reflected in the FY 16-17 statemenls. The General Fund's
fund balance increased by $0.9 milion. The increase would have been $3.8 million greater but funds were transferred to
Recreation Funds ($2.8 million) and Facility Construction Funds (30.9 million) and are reflected in their respective fund
balances. The transferred funds will be used to construct Discovery Park, a road needed for the park and the purchase of
land in the Village's downtown area (also known as Uptown Square). The Facility Construction Fund still saw a decrease in
Fund Balance of $1.5 million, despite the transfer, as the Fire Station #1 project was completed. Non-Major funds saw an
increase in fund balance due to expenditure timing of salt purchases in the Motor Fuel Tax fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Prior lo or at the last Village Board meeting in April, the Mayor submits to the Village Board a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing on May 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means to finance them.
The Village had no budget amendments in 2017. Below is a table thal reflects the original budget and the aclual activity for
the revenues and expenditures for the General Fund,

Table 3
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
{In millions)
Original

General Fund Budget Actual

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Properly Taxes $ 106 $ 105
Other taxes 139 15.2
Interest - 0.1
Fines 06 0.6
Licenses and permits 25 35
Charges for services 6.2 6.6
Intergovernmental 12.2 12.2
Other 0.7 0.5
Capital leases issued . -
Sale of capital assels - —
Total 46.7 49.2

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
General government 117 10.8
Public safety 19.8 18.7
Public works 86 8.3
Capital outlay 34 3.6
Debt service 0.2 0.2
Reimbursements (3.2) (3.2)
Transfers out 6.2 89
Total 46.7 48.3

Change in Fund Balance

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeovilie, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Village collected 99.6% of budgeted property taxes.

As shown above, the General Fund was budgeled to break even, while aclual resulls were an increase of $0.9 million. Revenues
were over budget by approximalely $2.5 million while expenditures were over budget by $1.6 million.

The Village received $1.3 million more in other taxes than anticipated. The Village received $0.6 million more than anticipated in
in Home Rule Sales Tax, $0.3 million more in Real Estate Transfer Tax, $0.3 million more in electric utility tax, $0.1 million more
in Food and Beverage Tax and $0.1 million more combined in Gaming Tax and Home Rule Gas Tax. Offselting these gains were
$0.1 million less than anticipated in Telephone Utility Tax. The Home Rule Sales Tax increase was primarily due to the addition of
Blain's Farm and Fleet, a full year of both Ashley Fumiture and Magid Glove and Safely to the retail base, and olher additional
smaller retail and a recovering local economy. The electric ulility tax increase was due lo grealer than anficipated usage. Real
Estate Transfer Tax was budgeted conservatively. There were greater than anlicipated sales of industrial and commercial property.
The food and beverage increase is also due in part lo the Edward Athletic and Event Center, the full year of a new McDonalds and
the new club house at the Mistwood Golf Course which includes a pub and fine dining restauranl. The Video Gaming Tax was
due to more machines being available for the full year as venues continue to open in the Village. The telephone utility tax decreases
were due to slightly less anticipated usage.

Interest was higher than anticipated due to greater than anticipated earings on lllinois Metropolitan Investment Funds held in the
General Corporate Fund. The budget was $10,000 and receipts were $72.400.

Fines were in line with the budget of $0.6 million.

Licenses and Permits were $1.0 million over budget. Building Permits were over budget by $0.7 million, Inspection permits were
over budget by $0.3 million and Business License were over budget by $0.1 million. Large projects, including a large apartment
complex, that were anlicipated to be included in FY15-16 were slighlly delayed which resulted in the permits being issued in FY
16-17. FY 16-17 was one of the Village’s best years ever for Building Permits. Grealer than anticipated development favorably
impacled building inspections. Business Licenses increased due lo the implementation of & crime free housing program that
requires landlords to obtain a business license and attend training provided by the Village and additional businesses.

Charges for services, over budget by $0.4 million, saw $0.4 million in additional revenues in engineering reimbursements due to
greater than anticipated development activity, an increase in Police Special Detail of $0.1 millicn due to traffic control for the newly
opened Amazon facility during the holiday season and an unanticipaled investigative/security which was offsel by $0.2 million in
Fire Academy revenues which corresponds with less than budgeted expenses.

Intergovernmental Revenues were at budgeted levels. However, shorl falls in State Income tax {$0.3 million) and Federa! Grants
($0.3 million) were offset by additional State Sales Tax ($0.5 million) and shared Lockport Fire Protection District (LFPD) revenue
($0.1 miliion). The Village received $0.3 miliion less in Federal grants, due to the timing with the Metra station project and the
State Income tax was less than anticipated due to the State's uncertain economic conditions. Sales tax was greater than
anticipated by $0.3 million for similar reasons discussed above for the Home Rule sales tax. Property tax growth in the shared
LFPD area was greater than anticipated.

Other revenues were $0.3 million less than the budgeted amount of $0.78 million. Workers' Compensation Reimbursement was
$0.1 million under budget due to favorable claim experience. Flexible spending was $0.1 million under budget. The Village budgets
for the fiexible spending payments withheld from employees and distributed to the flexible spending plan, but the receipts are not
recognized as revenues for financial reporting purposes.

General Government expenditures were under budget by $0.9 million. Savings were generaled in Conlraclua! Services ($0.3
miliion), Other Expenses ($0.3 million) and Salaries ($0.2 million). Contractual savings were generated from legal fee savings ($0.2
million} due to less than anticipated Enbridge refated legal fees, Manager's Office contractual services ($0.1 million) from a variety
of items, marketing ($0.1 million) due to a delay implementing a new media marketing program, which is offset by increased
contractua! inspection services ($0.1 million) needed for an apariment complex project and other development projects Other
expenses savings were from less than anticipated sales tax incentives ($0.2 miliion) due to timing of new business opening later
than anticipated and contingency savings ($0.1 million). Salary savings were due to vacancies and flexible spending expenses
that are recognized for budgeting purposes but not for accounting purposes.

Public Safety expenditures were under budget by $1.1 million. The majority came through salary savings of $1.0 million due to
less than anticipated Worker's Compensation payments, the timing of hiring new fire and police personnel including vacant
Firefighter positions, vacant Police Officer posilions, vacant E911 Dispatcher positions and part-time Firefighter positions. The
Police and Fire Departments had a variety of savings (30.1 million) over several contractual and commodity line items.

(See independent auditor's repoit.)
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Village of Romeoville, llinois

Management’s Discussion and Analysis {Continued)

Public Works expenditures were under budget by $0.3 million. Public works realized $0.3 million in personnel savings due to
department vacancies. Landscaping and Grounds conlractual services overages {$0.2 million) and material disposal expenses
{$0.1 million} were offset by motor fuel savings ($0.1 million) and building maintenance savings ($0.1 million)

Capital outlay expenditures were over budget by $0.2 million. General Govemment capital expendilures were over budget {$0.2
million) due to the unbudgeted purchase of a used car lot {$0.3 million) located along Route 53. Public Safety were over budget
($0.3 million) due to additional police vehicles ($0.4 million) and addiliona! funds needed for a REMA command center vehicle
(80.1 million) which was offset by savings in a Fire Academy site improvement project ($0.1 million) and a variety smaller savings
in other Public Safety capital accounts. The overages were offset by savings in Public Works prajects of $0.4 million due to timing
of the Metra project ($0.3 million), road project savings {$0.1 million) and facility planning project timing ($0.1 million) which was
offset by in project timing for Landscape Islands ($0.2 million),

Debt Service payments were within budget.

Transfers to other funds were over budget by $3.7 milfon. The transfers were to the Debt Service Fund (34.7 million), The Real
Estate Transfer Tax Fund $2.8 million), Recreation Fund {$1.5 million) and the Facility Construction Fund ($0.9 million). The
unbudgeted funds transfer to the Real Estate Transfer Tax Fund will be used lo construct Discovery Park and the unbudgeted
transfer to the Facility Construction Fund will be used for a road project associated with Discovery Park and the purchase of
property in the Village's downtown area. The projects will start in FY 17-18.

The Village made a concerted efiort to keep General Fund expenditures within or under revenues for fiscal year 2016. The Village,
at the starl of fiscal year 2005, had a negative fund balance of $0.6 million. The fiscal year 2017 fund balance is now at $25.1
million. The Village's long-term goal is to have and maintain a positive fund balance equal to 25% of the General Fund budget.
The Village increased the fund balance by $0.9 million in FY16-17. The Village's targeted fund balance, based on actual
expenditures and transfers and excluding the $3.2 million in reimbursements of $51.5 million as of April 30, 2017 was $12.9 million.
The FY 18-17 budget was $49.9 million, with a targeled fund balance of $12.4 million. The Village's FY 17-18 budget of $52.1
million, excluding the $5 million grant funded Metra Station project, has a targeted fund balance of $13.0 million.

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2017, the Village had a combined total of capital assets of $433.7 million (after accumulated depreciation
of $181.5 million) invested in a broad range of capital assets including land, land improvements, buildings, vehicles, machinery
and equipment, furniture and fixiures, streels, bridges, water mains, storm sewers and sanitary sewer lines. (See Table 4 below).
This amount represents a nel decrease (including additions and deletions) of approximately $27.3 million. Detailed information
related to capital assets is included in Notes 1, 4 and 13 to the basic financial stalements.

The Net Capital Assets of the Village decreased by $27.3 million over 2016. The main reason for the decrease can be altributed
to prior period restalement of assets tolaling $27.3 million (See Note 13). Governmental aclivilies, excluding the prior period
adjustment decrease of $15.8 million increased by $2.2 million, while business-type aclivities capital assets, excluding the prior
period decrease of 11.5 million, decreased by $2.2 million. Asset additions have slowed as the Village has depleled bond and TIF
funds for their intended projects and Water and Sewer unrestricted equity balances have slowed as several large infrastructure
projects have been compleled and the balances have been depleted.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Village of Romeoville, lllinois

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Table 4
Total Capital Assets at Year End
Net of Depreciation
(In millions)

Balance 4/30/16 Net Additions/Deletions Balance 4/30/17
Land $ 1926 $17 § 1943
Construction in Progress 3.3 (2.1) 1.2
Buildings 64.2 29 67.1
Machinery and Equipment 25 41 6.6
Furniture and Fixtures 0.2 (0.2) -
Vehicles 38 (3.6 -
Infrastructure 1946 30.1 164.5
Total Capital Assets $ 461.0 8213 $ 4337

Debt Qutstanding

As of April 30, 2017, the Village had outstanding bonded debt of $101.5 million. Of this amount $3.6 million represented general
obligation bonds associated wilh business-type activities. General obligation bonds associated with governmental activilies totaled
$97.9 million.

As of April 30, 2017, the Village has a $16.3 million llinois Environmental Protection Agency Clean Water State Revolving Fund
loan.

The Village is no longer subject to the debt limit due to its Home Rule community status. However, the Village's legal debt limitation
would be $98,381,798 if it were a non-Home Rule community. The limit is based on 8.625% of the 2016 equalized assessed
valualion of $1,140,658,533.

Detailed informalion related to long-term debt is included in Nole 6 to the basic financial stalements.

Economic Factors

The fiscal year ended posilively as the Village's General Corporate Fund and Recreation Fund ended with a surplus, Cther
Governmental Funds and the Water and Sewer Fund ended with less than anlicipated decreases. The Pension Funds did recover
from the market downturn suffered in FY 15-16. The financial condition of the General Corporate Fund has slabilized significantly
over the past several years. The Village does continue to feel the effects of the slow growth economy and effects of the recession
which began to impact the Village in the fall of 2008 and will be impacted by changes implemented by the State as part of their FY
17-18 budgel. However, the Village has made many adjustments on bath the revenue and expenditure side to ensure core services
are provided while still maintaining adequate fund balances. The Village was able to prepare a FY 17-18 budget that was designed
to ensure the Village's financial position remains strong and mainiain existing service levels. The budget does utilize $1 million in
General Corporate Fund balance to provide the Village’s match for the construction of the new Metra Station being built in
Romeoville, The Village may also ulilize fund balance in future budgets as well. Use of Fund Balance in other funds are lied to
capital projects.

Contacting the Village's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the Village's
finances and to demonstrate the Village's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed 1o Kirk Openchowski, Finance Director, Village of Romeoville, 1050 West Romeo
Road, Romeoville, lllinois 60446.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
- MD&A 12 -
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
[nvestments
Receivables {net. where applicable,
of allowwances for uncollectibles)
Property taxes
Accounts
[nterest
Other
Prepaid expenses
Due from other governments
Due from fiduciary funds
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital nssets being depreciated

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Fire Pension
Unamortized loss on refunding

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrucd liabilitics
Deposits payable
Unecarned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total linbilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - Police Pension
Pension items - Fire Pension
Pension items - IMRF
Deferred revenue
LInamertized gain on refunding

Totat deferred inllows of resources
Total liabilitics znd deferred inflows of resources

NET FroSITION
Net investment in copital asscls
Restricted for
Maintenance of rondways
Economic development
Capital projects
Unrestricted

TOTALNET POSITION

I'rimary Government

Goveramental  Business-Type

Activitics Activities Total
$ 3223276008 $ 2,569,033 $  34,845.061
4.627,624 6,848,771 11,476,395
13.675,018 - 13,675.018
545,735 1,647,640 2,193,375
13.610 - 13.610
1.389.681 - 1,389,681
103,262 - 103,262
4,192,511 - 4,192,511
1,140 - 1140
194.262.047 1302747 193,564,794
139.743.746 08.455.024 238.198.770
390.830.382 110.823.235 501.653.617
1.987.681 627,689 2615370
2437975 - 2437975
561,188 - 561,188
520,307 - 520,307
5.507.151 627.689 6.134.840
396.337.533 111,450,924 507,788,457
2,495,342 933232 3,428,574
907,023 121,018 1,028,041
3,742,541 180,331 3922872
9,441 - 9,441
476,554 219,082 693,636
7.576,495 3.767.033 11,343,528
124.584.171 18.6H4.948 143.229.119
139.791.567 23.863.644 163.657.211
4.125.936 - 4,125,936
142,673 - 142,973
163.682 51,689 215,371
13,714,946 - 13.714,946
208.236 - 208.236
18.355.773 31.689 18.407.462
158.147.340 23917.333 182.064.673

256.791.259 79,933,272 336,724,531
§.359,137 - 1,359,137
1,621,900 - 1,621,900

199,857 S 199,857

(21.781.960} 7,600.315 (14.181.641)

$ 238.190.193 § 8$7.533.591 $ 325.723.784

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services  Contributions  Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General government $ 13145269 § 1376943 S 51,500 % -
Public safety 20471106 3.573.257 97.982 -
Public works 14,345,138 7.493.409 1.084,903 5.888.261
Culture and recreation 5,797,024 1,126,442 - 160.073
Interest and liscal charges on
long-term debt 4.6035.73 1 - - -
Total governmental activities 38.364.268 13.570.031 1.234.385 6.048.334
Business-Type Activities
Water and sewer 17.490.294 17.721.175 - 1.749.245
Total business-type activities 17.490.294 17.721.175 - 1.749.243
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 75854562 § 31.291.226 § 1.234.385 § 7.797.579




General Revenues
Taxes
Property
Home rule sales
Telecommunications
Lhility
Hotel/motel
Other
Intergovernmental - unrestricted
Replacement tax
State sales tax
Use tax
Income tax
Investment income
Miscellancous
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in (out)

Total
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, MAY |
Change in accounting principle
NET POSITION, MAY 1. RESTATED

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ (11.716826) $ - (11,716,826)
(16.799.867) - (16,799,867)
121,433 - 121,435
(4.510.509) - (4,.510,509)
(4.603.731) - (4.605.731)
{37.511.498) - (37.511.498)
- 1.980.126 1.980.126
- 1,980,126 1.980.126
(37.511.498) 1,980,126 (35.531.372)
16.422.851 - 16.422.851
6.306,026 - 6.306.026
957.144 - 957,144
6.370,157 - 6.370,157
551.753 - 551,753
3.010.255 - 3.010.255
182.612 - 182,612
3,729.800 - 5.729.800
976.635 - 976.635
3,750.745 - 3,750,745
111,411 20,957 132.368
221,198 8.720 229918
281.824 - 281.824
385.072 (383.072) -
43.257.483 (355.393) 44,902,088
7.745.985 1.624.731 9.370.716
246,262,607 097.385.494 343.648.101
(15.818.399) (11.476.634) (27.295.033)
230.444.208 85.908.860 316.353.068
$ 238.190.193 §  87.533.391 325.723.784

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2017

FUND BALANCES OF GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS § 35,955,296

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 334,005,793

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes,
net differences between projected and actual earnings, and contributions
subsequent to the measurement date for the [llincis Municipal Retirement
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows of resources 1,987,681
Deferred inflows of resources {163,682)

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes, and
net differences between projected and actual earnings for the Police Pension
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows of resources 2,437,975
Deferred inflows of resources (4,125,936)

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes, and
net differences between projected and actual earnings for the Firefighters' Pension
Fund are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources on the statement of net position
Deferred outflows of resources 561,188
Deferred inflows of resources (142,973)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds

Compensated absences payable (4,037,713)
Other postemployment benefit obligation (186,677)
Unamortized premium on bonds (1,950,750)
General obligation bonds payable (95,975,311)
Capital leases payable (985,965)
Notes payable (1,619,790)
Net pension liability - lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund i (7,002,648)
Net pension liability - Police Pension Plan (19,715,344)
Net pension liability - Firefighters' Pension Plan (686,468)

Gains and losses on debt refundings are capitalized and amortized at the
government-wide level
Unamortized loss on refunding 520,307
Unamortized gain on refunding (208,2306)

Accrued interest on long-term liabilities is repotted as a liability on the statement
of net position {476,554

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES § 238,190,193

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENLUES.

EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures: however, they are capitalized and
depreciated in the statement of activities

The Village aceepted and received capital contributions that are capitalized and depreciated
in the stalement of activitics

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore. are not reported as expenditures in governmenial funds
Depreciation of capital assets
Loss on disposal of capital assets

The accretion of interest on the Series 20088 capital appreciation bonds is reported as interest
expense and an increase in bonds pavable in the statement of activities

The issuance of long-term debt and related costs are shown on the fund financial statements
as other financing sources (uses) and current expenditures but are recorded as long-term
liabilities and deferred outflows and inflows of resources on the government-wide statements
Issuance of refunding bonds
[ssuance of capital leases
Premium on issuance of refunding bonds

The repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure when
due in governmental funds but as a reduction of principal outstanding in the statement of
activities

General obligation bonds
Notes payable
Capital leases

The change in accrued intercst payable on long-term debt is reported as an expense on the
stalement of activities

Ciovernmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar ilems when debt
is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amontized in the statement of

activities

The change in the llinois Municipal Retirement Fund net pension lizbility and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources is not a source or use of a financial resource

The change in the Police Pension Plan net pension liability and deferred outflows/intlows
of resourees is not a source or use of a financial resource

The change in the Firefighters' Pension Plan net pension liability and deferred outflow siinflows
of resources is not a source or use of a financial resource

Changes in compensated absences are reported only in the staiement of activities
Changes in net postemployment benefit assets are reported only in the statement of activities
CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1

$

(9.837.333)

5,614,537

4.792,489

(7.773.488)
(462.008)

(3.059.729)
(5.105.000)

(32.515)
(77.165)

23.370.606

195.548

73.512

961.137
(417.726)
(275.690)

(91.153)

48,541

(178.576)

7.745.985



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

April 30, 2017

Business-Type
Aclivitics
Water
and Sewer
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,569,053
Investrents 6,848,771
Receivables (ret where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles) 1.647.640
Total current assets 11.065.464
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,302,747
Capital assets being depreciated, net 98.455.024
Total noncurrent assets 99,757.771
Total assets 110,823,235
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOL'RCES
Pension items - IMRF 627.689
Total deferred outflows of resources 627.689

Total asscts ond deferred outflows of resources

111.450.924

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 933,232
Accrued liabilities 121,018
Accrued interest payable 219,082
Deposits payable 180,331
General obligation bonds payable 2,260,994
Note payable 1,302,440
Compensated absences payable 203,599
Total current habilitics 3.220.696
LONG-TERNM LIABILITIES
General obligation bonds payable 1,291,529
Note payable 14,969,536
Net pension liabidity - IMRF 2211362
Compensated absences payable 172,321
Total long-term liabilitics 18.644.948
Total liabilities 23.863.644
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF 51.689
Total deferved inflows of resources 51.689
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 23917333
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 79.933,272
Linrestricted 7.600.319
TOTAL NET POSITION §  87.533.591

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Activities
Water
and Sewer
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 16,230,915
Fines and fees 1,381,269
Reimbursements 108,695
Miscellaneous 2906
Total operating revenues 17,721,175
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Operations 12,916,505
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 4,804,670
Depreciation 3,866,171
OPERATING INCOME 938,499
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property tax rebate (115,424)
Gain on the sale of fixed assels 8,720
Investment income 20,957
Interest expense (592,194)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (677,941)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 260,558
Transfers (out) (385,072)
Contributions 1,749.245
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1.624,731
NET POSITION, MAY | 07,385,494
Change in accounting principle {11.476,634)
NET POSITION, MAY |, RESTATED 85.908.860
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 $ 87.533.591

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Business-Type



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Other receipts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments to other funds

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers {out)

Net cash from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital assets purchased
Capital contributions
Proceeds from the sale of capital assels
Principal payments - general obligation bonds
Principal payments - note payable
Interest paid

Net cash from capital and related
financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments
Interest received

Net cash from investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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Business-Type

Activities

Water

and Sewer

17,689,690

(6,354,333)
(3,676,195)
(3,183,000)

4,476,162

(385,072)

(385,072)

(552,670)
628,968
8,720
(2,174,393)
(1,270,481)
(664,744)

(4.024,600)

31,430
20,957

52,387

118,877

2,450,176

2,569,053




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Business-Type
Activities

Water
and Sewer

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income 3 938,499
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation 3,866,171
Property Tax Rebate {115,424)
Other expense -
(Increase) decrease in
Receivables (29,950)
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable (341,291)
Accrued liabilities (115,794)
Deposits payable (1,535)
Pension items - IMRF 213,267
Compensated absences payable 62,219
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 4,476,162
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Contributions of capital assels 3 1,120,277

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

April 30. 2017

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

U.S. Treasury and agency securities

Municipal bonds

Money market mutual funds

Equity mutual funds
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$

286,459

16,644,379
745,583
416,299

29,313,588

87,162

47,493,470

630
1,140

1,770

47,491,700




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income
Net depreciation in fair value
of investments
Interest and dividends
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits and refunds

Benefits

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION RESTRICTED

FOR PENSIONS
May 1

April 30

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2,348,207
764,717

3,112,924

3,110,274
1,698,288

4,808,562

(381,609)

4,426,953

7,539.877

25,602

2.241.856

2,267,458

5,272,419

42,219,281

$ 47.491,700



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Village of Romeoville, Illinois (the Village), is located in Will County, Illincis and
was first incorporated in 1895 under the provisions of the constitution and general statutes
of the State of Illinois. The Village operates under a Board/Administrator form of
government. The Village Board of Trustees consists of seven elected members that
exercise all powers of the Village but are accountable to their constituents for all their
actions. The Village provides the following services as authorized by it charter: public
safety (police, fire, civil defense, and emergency medical), highways and streets, culture
and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative
services.

The financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to government
units (hereinafier referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the Village’s accounting policies are described below.

a.  Reporting Entity

The Village is a municipal corporation governed by an elected board. As required by
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the
Village (the primary government) and its component units. In evaluating how to
define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component
units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was
made based upon the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the
primary government. There are no component units that are required to be included
in the Village's basic financial statements.

Joint Venture

Northern Will County Joint Action Water Agency - The Village entered into an
intergovernmental agreement with the Villages of Bolingbrook, Homer Glen,
Woodridge. and Lemont on December 13, 2011 to form the Northern Will County
Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA). JAWA is a municipal corporation empowered
to provide adequate supplies of water on an economic and efficient basis for member
municipalities, public water districts, and other incorporated and unincorporated
areas within such counties. Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised
of one appointed representative from each member. The Village does not exercise
any control over the activities of JAWA beyond its representation on the Board of
Directors. The Village has approximately 25 member water connections, which
represents 0.10% of total member water connections.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a.

Reporting Entity (Continued)
The Village’s financial statements include two pension trust funds:
Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village's police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees
Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees
and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the
Village’s President, one pension beneficiary elected by the membership, and two
police employees elected by the membership constitute the pension board. The
Village and PPERS participants are obligated to fund all PPERS costs based upon
actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and
the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund
because of the Village’s fiduciary responsibility.

Firefighters’ Pension Employee Retirement System

The Village’s sworn firefighters participate in the Firefighters® Pension System
(FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of those employees and is governed by a
five-member pension board. Two members appointed by the Village’s President, one
elected pension beneficiary, and two elected fire employees constitute the pension
board. The Village and FPERS participants are obligated to fund all FPERS costs
based upon actuarial valuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit
levels and the Village is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the
determination of contribution levels. FPERS is reported as a pension trust fund
because of the Village’s fiduciary responsibility.

Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to report on its financial position and the changes in its
financial position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and
to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain
government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds
are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental funds are used to account for substantially all of the Village's general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed
monies (special revenue funds), the funds restricted, committed, or assigned for the
acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects funds), and the funds
restricted, committed, or assigned for the servicing of long-term debt (debt service
funds). The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general
government not accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided
either to outside parties {(enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies
primarily within the Village (internal service funds). The Village does not utilize any
internal service funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. The
Village utilizes pension trust funds which are generally used to account for assets
that the Village holds in a fiduciary capacity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of
the Village. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these
financial statements, except for interfund services. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment. or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
another fund. The services which are administered by the Village and
accounted for in the General Fund include general government, public works,
culture and recreation, and public safety.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the repayment of governmental long-term
debt.

The Recreation Fund accounts for property taxes that are legally restricted for
recreation purposes as well as other taxes and charges for services that are
assigned for recreation purposes.

The Facility Construction Fund accounts for the cost of construction of new
facilities in the Village, including the new Village Hall. The Village has elected
to present this fund as a major fund.

The Downtown TIF Fund accounts for the resources that are legally restricted
for the redevelopment of the areas that fall within the TIF District boundaries
which includes the Uptown Square Center. The revenue in this fund is mainly
from funds imported from the contiguous Marquette TIF along with the
collection of the TIF property tax increment created from the increase in the
value of property within the district. The Village has elected to present this
fund as a major fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer
services to the residents of the Village. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund, including but not limited to,
administration, operations, maintenance, billing and collection, financing, and
related debt service.



VILLAGE OF ROMEQOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The Village reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Village reports pension trust funds as fiduciary funds to account for the
Police Pension Fund and the Firefighters’ Pension Fund.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded when
earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Operating
revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the operation of the proprietary
funds. Non-operating revenue/expenses are incidental to the operations of these
funds.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable™
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafier to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period.

The Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. except for sales taxes and telecommunication
taxes which use a 90-day period and income taxes which uses a 90 to 120-day period.
The Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and
available in the year intended to finance. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term debt are
recorded as expenditures when due.

Corporate personal property replacement taxes owed to the state at year-end,
franchise taxes, licenses, charges for services, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Income and motor fuel taxes and fines collected
and held by the state or county at year-end on behalf of the Village also are
recognized as revenue. Fines and permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual
because generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.e.,
federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous
individual programs are used as guidelines. Monies that are virtually unrestricted as
to purpose of expenditure, which are usually revocable only for failure to comply
with prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

The Village reports unavailable/deferred and unearned revenue on its financial
statements. Unavailable/deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not
meet both the measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the
current period. Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the
government before it has a legal claim to them such as when grant monies are
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods,
when both the revenue recognition criteria are met. or when the government has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability or deferred inflow of resources for unearned
and unavailable/deferred revenue is removed from the financial statements and
revenue is recognized.

Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village’s proprietary fund considers
its equity in pooled cash and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost or
amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year and all pension
fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Village categorizes the fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f.

Interfund Receivables/Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds”
(i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, stormwater systems), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $25,000 for machinery and equipment, $100,000 for
property or building improvements, and $150,000 for infrastructure and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Easements are defined by the Village as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $100,000. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 10-40
Equipment 5-30
Infrastructure 15-50

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and vested sick leave is reported as an expenditure
and a fund liability of the governmental (General) fund that will pay it once
retirement or separation has occurred. Vested or accumulated vacation of proprietary
funds and governmental activities are recorded as an expense and liability of those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt. and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities. or
proprietary fund financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts and gains/losses
on refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and gains/losses on
refundings. Issuance costs are reported as expenses.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances
are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

l.

Fund Balances/Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are either not in spendable form which or legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are
reported for amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for
a specific purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities or from enabling
legislation adopted by the Village. Committed fund balance is constrained by formal
actions of the Village Board of Trustees, which is considered the Village’s highest
level of decision-making authority. Formal actions include resolutions and
ordinances (equally binding) approved by the Village. Assigned fund balance
represents amounts constrained by the Village’s intent to use them for a specific
purpose. Although there is no formal policy, the authority to assign fund balance has
been delegated to the Village's Director of Finance consistent with the intentions of
the Village Board of Trustees. Any residual fund balance in the General Fund,
including fund balance targets and any deficit fund balance of any other
governmental fund is reported as unassigned.

The Village’s flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest
level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds
to be expended first followed by assigned funds and then unassigned funds.

In the government-wide financial statements. restricted net ‘position is legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net investment in capital assets
represents the book value of capital assets less any outstanding long-term debt issued
to acquire or construct the capital assets.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that
applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until that time. In addition to liabilities, the statement of
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to future period(s) and so it will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period these amounts
become available.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions. except interfund services and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers,

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,
except the pension trust funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the
financial statements as “cash and investments.” In addition. investments are separately held
by several of the Village’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds
are held separately from those of other funds.

a.

Village Deposits and Investments

The Village’s investment policy authorizes the Village to invest in all investments
allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds
with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, lllinois Funds (created by the Illinois State Legislature under
the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 per share value which is equal
to the participant’s fair value), and Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET), a



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)

not-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the Ilinois Municipal Code and
managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. IMET is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in IMET are valued
at IMET’s share price, the price for which the investment could be sold. The
Village’s investment policy does limit its deposits to financial institutions that are
members of the FDIC system and are capable of posting collateral for amounts in
excess of FDIC insurance.

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow demands of the Village and conforming to all state and local statutes governing
the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety
of principal, liquidity, and yield.

Deposits with Financial [nstitutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the
event of bank failure, the Village’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Village’s
investment policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk.

Investments

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Village’s debt
securities as of April 30, 2017:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less than Greater than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 1-5 6-10 10
Certificate of deposit -
negotiable b3 175,068 175,068 3 - 5 - 3 -
U.S. Treasury notes 1,507,559 102,747 749,978 654,834 -
U.S. agencies - FFCB 2,245,408 - 2,245,408 - -
U.S. agencies - FHLB 1,375,766 - 1,373,766 - -
U.S. agencies - FHLMC 1,898,386 179,204 648,239 - 1,070,343
U.S. agencies - FNMA 2,878,638 - 653,522 166,856 2,058,260
U.S. agencies - GNMA 59,540 - - - 59,540
Bond mutual funds 1,082,063 - 1,082,063 - -
IMET 9,974,991 - 9,974,991 - -
TOTAL $ 21,197.419 457,619 % 16,729,967 § 821,690 § 3,188,143
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2

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Village limits
its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for
cash requirements for ongoing operations in shorter-term securities, money market
funds, or similar investment pools. To the extent possible, the Village shall attempt
to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to
a specific cash flow, the Village will not directly invest in securities maturing more
than five years from the date of purchase in accordance with state and local statutes
and ordinances.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Village limits its exposure to credit risk limiting investments to the
safest types of securities; prequalifying the financial institutions, intermediaries, and
advisors with which the Village will conduct business; and diversifying the
investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual investments will be
minimized. IMET and Illinois Funds are rated AAA. U.S. agency obligations are
rated AAA. The bond mutual fund and negotiable certificates of deposit are not
rated.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that. in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the
Village's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by an independent third party custodian and
evidenced by safekeeping receipts and a written custodial agreement. [llinois Funds,
IMET, and the bond mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Village has a high percentage of its
investments invested in one type of investment. The Village limits its exposure by
limiting investments to avoid over-concentration in securities from a specific issuer
or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities); limiting investment in
securities that have higher credit risks; investing in securities with varying maturities;
and continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such
as local government investment pools (LGIPS) or money market funds to ensure that
proper liquidity is maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations.
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

a.

Village Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

The Village has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30,
2017. The U.S. Treasury notes, agency obligations. and negotiable certificates of
deposit are valued using quoted matrix pricing models (Level 2 inputs)., The bond
mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level 1 inputs). The IMET 1 to 3 Year
Fund, a mutual fund, is measured based on the net asset value of the shares in IMET,
which is based on the fair value of the underlying investments in the mutual fund
(Level 3 input).

3. RECEIVABLES

a.

Property Taxes

Property taxes for 2016 attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2016, on property
values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent
fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the
County and issued on or about May 1, 2017, and are payable in two installments, on
or about June 1, 2017 and September 1, 2017. Tax increment financing (TIF)
property tax receipts are received in two installments similar to levied taxes
described above. TIF property taxes are not levied, but are paid by the County from
the incremental property tax receipts of all taxing bodies within a TIF District. The
County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. As the 2016 tax levy is
intended to fund expenditures for the 2017-2018 fiscal year, these taxes are deferred
as of April 30, 2017.

The 2017 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1,
2017, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30, 2017 as the tax has not yet
been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December 2017 and, therefore,
the levy is not measurable at April 30, 2017.
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3. RECEIVABLES (Continued)
b. Other Receivables

Other receivables are comprised of the following at April 30, 2017:

Debt Local
Description General Recreation Service Gas Tax Total
Water utility 5 24,554 % - 5 - 5 - 8 24,554
Franchise fees 133,299 - - - 133,299
Utility taxes 754,122 - - - 754,122
Home rule gas tax 126,982 - - 126,982 253,964
Food and beverage tax 143,514 - - - 143,514
NSF checks - 450 - - 450
Hotel/motel tax - 79,778 - - 79,778
$ 1,182471 3 80,228 § - 85 126,982 § 1,389,681
4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2017 was as follows:
Restated
Balances Balances
May | Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 190,132,684 § 2939863 § - § 193,072,547
Construction in progress 3,500,363 2,493,248 4.804,111 1,189,500
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 193,633,047 5,433,111 4.804,11) 194,262,047
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 79,483,328 5,249,957 1,155,334 83,577,951
Machinery and equipment 12,618,812 1,345,342 313,200 13,630,934
Infrastructure 157,985,439 3,182,727 6,510 161,161,656
Total capital assets being

depreciated 250,087.579 9.778.026 1,475,044 258,390,561
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Restated
Balances Balances
May | Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
{Continued)
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements $ 15301907 § 2494364 § 704923 $ 17,091,348
Machinery and equipment 7,444,583 635,874 301,603 7,778,854
Infrastructure 89,139,873 4,643,250 6,510 93,776,613
Total accumulated depreciation 111,886,363 7,773,488 1,013,036 118,646,815
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 138.201,216 2.004,538 462,008 139,743,746
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 331,834,263 $ 7437649 § 5266,119 § 334,005,793

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as

follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ 487,985
1,013,286
5,115,479
1,156,738

$ 7,773,488

Restated
Balances Balances
May | Increases Decreases April 30
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land F 1,276,150 % - 8 - § 1,276,150
Construction in progress 293,710 110,308 377421 26,597
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 1.569,860 110,308 377.421 1,302,747
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 1,068,601 - - 1,068,60t
Machinery and equipment 1,752,964 108,380 - 1,861,344
Infrastructure 156.516.088 1,831,681 - 158,347,769
Total capital assets being
depreciated 159.337,653 1,940,061 - 161,277,714

-33-



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Restated
Balances Balances
May | Increases Decreases April 30
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
(Continued)
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements s 379432 % 43,623 § - § 423,055
Machinery and equipment 1,048,735 89,195 - 1,137,930
Infrastructure 57,528,352 3,733,353 - 61,261,705
Total accumulated depreciation 58,956,519 3,866,171 - 62,822,690
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 100,381,134 {1,926,110) - 98,455,024
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 101,950,994 § (1,815,802) § 377421 % 99,757,771

The Village restated capital assets during the year ended April 30, 2017. See footnote 13
for further detail.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health; and
natural disasters.

The Village is a member of the Southwest Agency for Risk Management (SWARM) which
is a public entity risk pool with eight member groups (villages and cities). The Village pays
annual premiums to SWARM for its workers” compensation. general liability, and property
coverages.

The cooperative agreement provides that SWARM will be self-sustaining through member
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of
$600,000 per occurrence for workers’ compensation and $50,000 for occurrences for
general liability and $100,000 for occurrences for property.

One representative from each member serves on the SWARM board and each board
member has one vote on the board. None of its members have any direct equity interest in
SWARM.

The Village purchases commercial insurance to cover its employees for health and accident
claims.

The Village has not had significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous
fiscal year nor did settlements exceed insurance coverage in any of the last three years.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT

a.  General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued
for both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds, therefore, are
reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary
revenues. In addition, general obligation bonds have been issued to refund both

general obligation bonds and revenue bonds.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of

the Village.

b.  Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village

associated with governmental activities for the year ended April 30. 2017:

Balances Due
May I, Balances Within
Restated Additions Reductions April 30 One Year
General obligation bonds $ 56,519,612 § 5,105,000 § 23,370,606 § 38,234,006 § 6,189,006
General obligation capital
appreciation bonds 54,661,576 3,059,729 - 57,721,305 -
Unamortized bond premiums 2,310,079 77,165 436,494 1,950,750 -
Capital leases 1,148,998 32,515 195,548 085,965 196,584
Note payable 1,619,790 - - 1,619,790 73,000
Compensated absences* 4,086,254 1,265,590 1,314,131 4,037,713 1,115,905
Net other postemployment
benefit obligation 8,101 178,576 - 186,677 -
Net pension liability - IMRF* 7,115,701 - 113,053 7,002,648 -
Net pension liability - Police* 21,496,873 - 1,781,529 19,715,344 -
Net pension liability - Fire* 402,317 284,151 - 686,468 -
TOTAL $ 149,369,301 $ 10,002,726 § 27,211,361 § 132,160,666 § 7,576,495

*The General Fund resources are used to liquidate these liabilities.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
c.  Business-Type Activities

The following is a summary of long-term obligation activity for the Village with
business-type activities for the year ended April 30. 2017:

Balances Due
May 1, Balances Within

Restated Additions Reductions April 30 One Year
General obligation bonds § 5,680,388 §$ -8 2174394 § 3,505,994 § 2,260,994
Noie payable 17,542,457 - 1,270,480 16,271,977 1,302,440
Unamortized bond premiums 77,726 - 31,198 46,528 -
Net pension liability - IMRF 2,125,470 85,892 - 2,211,362 -
Compensated absences 313,901 235,723 173,504 376,120 203,599
TOTAL $ 25739942 % 3216158 3649576 § 22411981 § 3,767,033

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within
Retired by May 1 Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds. Series 2007A. dated

November 13, 2007, provide for the

serial retirernent of bonds on

December 30, 2010 through

December 34, 2017 in amounts

between $540.000 and $675.000.

[nterest is due on June 3¢ and

December 30 of cach year at rates Water and

varying from 3.75% to 5.25%. Sewer §  1.315.000 § - $ 640000 % 675.000 § 675.000

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds. Series 2007B. dated

November 15, 2007, provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2017 through

December 30, 2020 in amounts

between $2,000.000 and

$4.750,000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of cach

year at rates varying from 4.000% Debt
o 4.375%. Service 12.900.000 - 12.900.000 - -
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund
Debt Balances

Retired by May 1 Additions

Due

Refundings/ Balances Within
Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
{Continued)

General Obligation Bonds. Series

2008A, dated June 30, 2008,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 20. 2010

through December 30, 2020 in

amounts between $400.000 and

£2.050,000. [nterest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of each

year at rates varving from 3.250% Debt

o 4.125%, Service $  3.350.000 §

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds. Series 2008C, dated

November 3, 2008, provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2010 through

December 30, 2018 in amounts

between $323.000 and $1,245.000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 cach year at rates Water and

varying from 3.5% to 4.0%. Sewer 2.750.000

General Obligation Bonds, Series

2009, dated May 4, 2009, provide

for the serial retirement of bonds on

December 30. 2010 through

December 30, 2029 in amounts

between $205.000 and $510.000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of each year at rates Debt

varying from 3.000% to 4.3753%, Service 5.315.000

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds. Series 2012A. dated

October 10, 2012, provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2012 through

December 30, 2017 in amounts

between $170.000 and $210,000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of each year at rates Debt

of 2%, Service 380,000

$ 2.050.000 $ 3300000 § 700.000

735.000 2.015.000 770,000

5.030.000 285.000 285,000

210.00¢ 170.000 170.000
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within

Retired by May | Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
(Continued)

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2012B. dated

October 10, 2012, provide for the

serial retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2012 through

December 30, 2017 in amounts

between $535,000 and $645.000.

Interest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of each year at rates Debt

of 2%. Service $ 0 1.240.000 § - 8§ 395000 S 645.000 § 645.000
General Obligation Bonds. Series

2013A. dated July 30, 2013,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 30, 2014

through December 30, 2024 in

amounts between $603.000 and

$1.380.000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of each Downtown
year at rates of 2.5% to 4.1%. TIF 10,640,000 - 1,140,000 9,500.000 1.180,000
General Obligation Bonds, Serics

2013B. dated July 30, 2013.

provide for the retirement of bonds

on December 30, 2024 and

December 30, 20235 in amounts of

$725.000 and $1,430,000. Interest

is due on June 30 and December 30 Downtown

of each yvear at rates of 4%, TIF 2.175.000 - - 2,175,000 -
General Obligation Refunding

Bonds. Series 2014, dated

November 3, 2014, provide for the

retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2015 through

December 30. 2024 in amounts

between $370.000 and $2.220.000, Debt

[nterest is due on June 30 and Service/

December 30 of cach year at rates Water and

varving from of 3% to 4%. Sewer 8.185.000 - 2.210.000 5,975,000 2.220.000
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within
Retired by May | Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

General Obligation Bonds
(Continued)

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2016, dated May 3,

2016. provide for the retirement of

bonds on December 30. 2017

through December 30, 2020 in

amounts between $1.745,000 and

$4.335.000. Interest is due on

June 30 and December 30 of cach Debt

year at a rate of 5%. Service $ 11.950.000 $ - 5 - % 11950000 $ 1.745.000

General Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2016A, dated

September 12, 2016, provide for

the retirement of bonds on

December 30, 2016 through

December 30, 2029 in amounts

between $35,000 and $480,000.

[nterest is due on June 30 and

December 30 of each year at a rate Debt

of 2.00% to 2.25%. Service - 5.105,000 35.000 5.070.000 60.000

Total General Obligation Bonds 62.200.000 3.105.000  25.545.000 41.760.000 8.450.000

General Obligation {Capital

Appreciation) Bonds, Series 2008B

Bonds, dated June 30, 2008,

provide for the serial retirement of

bonds on December 30, 2021

through December 30, 2039 in

amounts including interest between
£5.500.000 and $6.500.000.

Interest rates vary from 3.12% 1o

5.83% (includes accreted interest of Debt
$12.684.834). Service 54.66£.576 3.059.729

37.721.305 -

General/
Recreation

Capital leases Fund 1.148.998 32, 195.548 985.963 96,584

(&%)
w
w

Note Payable, dated August L.

2008, provides for retirement of

principal on December | and

June | of each year in the annual

amounis between $1.642.834 and Water

$1.701.150, including interest at and

2.5% through December 1, 2027, Sewer 17.542.457 - 1.270.480 16.271.977 1.302.440
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

d.  Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Fund Due
Debt Balances Refundings/ Balances Within
Retired by May 1 Additions Reductions April 30 One Year

Note Payable. dated March 5. 2015,

provides for retirement of principal

on December 31 of cach year in

annual amounts between $75.000

and $1.319,790, including interest General

at 0% through December 31. 2021, Fund $ 1619790 § - 8 - §5 161979 S§  75.000

TOTAL $ 137172821 § 8.197.244 $27.011.028 § 118.359.037 $10,024.024

e.  Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
Ending General Obligation Bonds Note Payable
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 § 6,189,006 $ 1,429,664 § 75,000 §
2019 6,035,000 1.219,940 75,000
2020 6,655,000 991,390 75,000
2021 6,995,000 708,578 75,000
2022 2,090,000 403,578 1,319,790
2023 2.150,000 338,178 -
2024 2,205,000 264.213 -
2025 2,190,000 185,493 -
2026 1,885,000 105,688 -
2027 445,000 38,988 -
2028 465,000 30,088 -
2029 470,000 20,788 -
2030 480,000 10,800 -
TOTAL $ 38254006 $ 5747386 $ 1,619,790 $
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
e.  Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Business-Type Activities
Ending General Obligation Bonds Note Payable
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 § 2260994 § 148,742 $§ 1,302,440 $ 398,710
2019 1.245,000 49,800 1,335,205 365,945
2020 - - 1,368,793 332,356
2021 - - 1,403,227 297,923
2022 - - 1,438,527 262,623
2023 - - 1,474,715 226,435
2024 - - 1,511,813 189,337
2025 - - 1,549,845 151,305
2026 - - 1,588,833 112,317
2027 - - 1,628,802 72,348
2028 - - 1,669,777 31,373
TOTAL $ 3505994 $§ 198,542 § 16.271,977 § 2,440,672

General Obligation Capital
Appreciation Bonds Payable

Fiscal Year from Governmental Activities
Ending Principal
April 30, Accretion Repayment
2018 $ 3.231.257 § -
2019 3412414 -
2020 3,603,743 -
2021 3,805,816 -
2022 4,019,235 5,500,000
2023 3.959.435 6,000,000
2024 3.866.,033 6,000,000
2025 3.764,213 6,000,000
2026 3.652,724 6,500,000
2027 3,503,925 6,500,000
2028 3,344,059 6,500,000
2029 3,172,353 6,500,000
2030 2,987,981 6,500,000
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6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

€.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity (Continued)

General Obligation Capital
Appreciation Bonds Payable

Fiscal Year from Governmental Activities
Ending Principal
April 30, Accretion Repayment
2031 $ 2.790,732 § 6,500,000
2032 2,579,737 6,500,000
2033 2,354,742 6,500,000
2034 2,116,166 6,500,000
2035 1,863,193 6,500,000
2036 1,594,950 6,500,000
2037 1,310,520 6,500,000
2038 1,008,928 6,500,000
2039 689,149 6,500,000
2040 347.390 6,200,000
TOTAL $ 62.978,695 $ 120,700,000

Capital Lease Obligation

The Village leases vehicles and other equipment under capital leases, which expire
between June 2017 and July 2025. Annual lease payments, including interest ranging
from 0.00% to 6.39%, range from $2,806 to $64,009. The cost of the capital assets
acquired under capital leases was $1,896,426, all of which is included in
governmental activities vehicles and machinery and equipment.

Minimum future lease payments under the capital lease together with the present
value of the net minimum lease payments as of April 30, 2017 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending
April 30, Payment
2018 $ 224,069
2019 185,173
2020 146,282
2021 120,680
2022 113,515
2023 113,515
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
f.  Capital Lease Obligation (Continued)

Fiscal Year

Ending

April 30, Payment
2024 h 64,008
2025 64,008
2026 64,009

Total minimum lease payments 1,095,259
Less amount representing interest (109,294)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 985,965
Less current portion (196,584)
LONG-TERM PORTION $ 789,381

g.  Legal Debt Margin
The Village is a home rule municipality.

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs computation
of the legal debt margin.

“The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum
approval of debt to be incurred by home rule municipalities, payable from ad
valorem property tax receipts, only in excess of the following percentages of
the assessed value of its taxable property ...(2) if its population is more than
25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one percent: ...indebtedness
which is outstanding on the effective date (July 1, 1971) of this constitution or
which is thereafter approved by referendum ...shall not be included in the
foregoing percentage amounts.”

To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities.
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6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

h.

Conduit Debt

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds to
Lewis University (the University) for the purpose of financing. These bonds are
collateralized only by the revenue of the University and are not considered liabilities
or contingent liabilities of the Village. The principal amount of the series could not
be determined; however, the original issue amount of the bonds was $44,950,000.

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Revenue Bonds to the University for the
purpose of financing. These bonds are collateralized only by the revenue of the
University and are not considered liabilities or contingent liabilities of the Village.
The principal amount of the series could not be determined; however, the original
issue amount of the bonds was $24.300.000.

On March 17, 2015, the Village issued Revenue Bonds to the University for the
purposes of financing and partially refunding $18,520.000 worth of the 2006
Revenue Bonds issued to the University. These bonds are collateralized only by the
revenue of the University and are not considered liabilities or contingent liabilities of
the Village. The original issue amount of the bonds was $38.995,000.

In a prior fiscal year, the Village issued Industrial Development Revenue Bonds to
CGI Real Estate, LLC (the Company) for the purpose of financing. These bonds are
collateralized only by the revenue of the Company and are not considered liabilities
or contingent liabilities of the Village. The principal amount of the series could not
be determined; however. the original issue amount of the bonds was $5,500,000.

Advance Refundings

On May 3, 2016, the Village issued $11,950,000 in General Obligation Bonds, the
proceeds of which were placed in an irrevocable escrow, to advance refund
$12,900,000 of the outstanding 2007B General Obligation Refunding Bonds. As a
result of the refunding, the Village realized a cash flow savings of $793,937 and an
economic gain of $751,003. The refunded bonds were called and retired on
December 30, 2016.

On September 12, 2016, the Village issued $5.105,000 in General Obligation Bonds,
the proceeds of which were placed in an irrevocable escrow, to advance refund
$4,760,000 of the outstanding 2009 General Obligation Bonds. As a result of the
refunding, the Village realized a cash flow savings of $498,375 and an economic
gain of $456,000. The refunded bonds will be called and retired on December 30,
2017.
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7.

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

a.

Interfund Transactions

Due from/to other funds at April 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Due Due
Fund From To
General $ 34,574 % -
Debt Service - 33,434
Fiduciary
Police Pension - 1,140
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 34574 § 34,574
Transfers
Transfers between funds during the year were as follows:
Transfers Transfers
Fund In Out
General $ - 5 9,942,820
Recreation 4,325,000 389,638
Debt service 4,908,762 -
Downtown TIF 2,111,696 -
Facility Construction 925,000 -
Nonmajor Governmental
Marquette Center TIF - 1,938,000
Water and Sewer - 385,072
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 12,270,458 $ 12,655,530

The purposes of significant interfund transfers are as follows:

. $4.325,000 transferred from the General Fund to the Recreation Fund to

support recreation department projects and costs.

. $925,000 transferred from the General Fund to the Facility Construction Fund
to support capital and construction projects, including the construction of a

new fire station,
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7.

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)
b.  Transfers (Continued)

. $4.692,820 transferred from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund to
lessen the property tax burden on residents.

° $389.638 transferred from the Recreation Fund to the Debt Service Fund
($215,942) to lesson the property tax burden on residents and to the Downtown
TIF District Fund ($173,696) to fund specialized sports flooring that is being
utilized by the Athletic and Event Center.

. $1,938,000 transferred from the Marquette Center TIF District Fund to the
Downtown TIF District Fund for various TIF related projects. The main
financing mechanism for the Downtown TIF District Fund will be the
Marquette TIF District Fund.

. $385,072 of capital assets transferred from the Water and Sewer Fund to
Governmental Activities.

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE

The Village has entered into various agreements with private organizations to encourage
economic development in the Village. These agreements provide for rebating a portion of
state shared sales taxes to the private organizations if certain benchmarks of development
are achieved. During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2017, approximately $929,849 in state
shared sales tax rebates were incurred under these agreements. Future contingent rebates of
approximately $14,570,121 in state shared sales taxes may be rebated if certain criteria are
met in future years.

TAX ABATEMENTS

The Village rebates local home rule sales taxes, food and beverage taxes, certain
incremental property taxes generated by a tax increment financing district to encourage
economic development in the Village. The terms of these rebate arrangements are specified
within written agreements with the business concerned as allowed under the Illinois
Compiled Statute Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-20). Certain rebates may be recaptured
if the subject development ceases to operate as intended for the periods described in the
agreements. These agreements are authorized through formal approval by the Village
Board of Trustees. The Village rebated $1,019,549 of home rule sales taxes, food and
beverage taxes, and property taxes during the year ended April 30, 2017. Future contingent
rebates of approximately $11,141,551 in home rule sales taxes, food and beverage taxes,
and property taxes may be rebated if certain criteria are met in future years.
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10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation

The Village has been sued by an entity claiming damages related to a ruptured oil
pipeline in September 2010. A motion for summary judgment in favor of the Village
was granted on August 10, 2016. This ruling is likely to be appealed by the plaintiff.
The Village intends to continue to vigorously defend the case. The likelihood of an
unfavorable outcome is estimated at less than 50% especially considering the strong
defenses that the court has already accepted in granting summary judgment.

Granis

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies. principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time; although, the Village expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Construction Contract Commitments

At April 30, 2017, the Village had the following construction contract commitments:

Remaining

Total Contract

Contract Paid to Date Amount
Forest View Park $ 131,120 % 61,468 $ 69,652
O Hara Woods Pavilion 325,323 232,650 92.673
TOTALS $ 456443 $ 294,118 § 162,325

TP o
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11.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described below, the Village provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a
single-employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels,
employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Village and
can be amended by the Village through its personnel manual and union contracts.
The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund. as an irrevocable trust has not been
established to account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The
activity of the Plan is reported in the Village’s governmental and business-type
activities.

Benefits Provided

The Village provides pre- and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses, and dependents (enrolled at time of employee’s retirement).
To be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
Village's three retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a
retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Village’s
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those
expenses that are covered under both.

Membership
At April 30, 2016 (latest information available). membership consisted of:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 34

Terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them -

Active employees 214
TOTAL 248
Participating employers 1

Funding Policy
The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of

benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the Plan until retirement,
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
e.  Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2017 was as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of

Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributions Cost Contributed  Obligation
2015 § 152866 § 156,196 102.18% 3§  (184,747)
2016 428,263 235,415 55.11% 8,101
2017 429,292 250,716 58.40% 186,677

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30, 2017 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution 3 429,249
Interest on net OPEB obligation (asset) 324
Adjustment to annual required contribution (281)
Annual OPEB cost 429,292
Contributions made (250,716)
Increase in net OPEB obligation (asset) 178,576
Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year 8.101
NET OPEB OBLIGATION (ASSET), END OF YEAR ) 186,677

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status and funding progress of the
Plan as of April 30, 2016 (latest information available) was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 4,849,663
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 4,849,663
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.00%
Covered payroll (active plan members) § 16,121,520
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 30.00%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
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11.

12,

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
e.  Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the April 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal percentage of salary
actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment
rate of return of 4.0% and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 6.5% with an
ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 4.5%. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation
assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village has not
advance funded its obligation. The Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The
remaining amortization period at April 30, 2017 was 30 years.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system;
the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan; and the Firefighters’
Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels,
employee contributions, and employer contributions for all three plans are governed by
ILCS and can only be amended by the lllinois General Assembly. None of the pension
plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly
available report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for the
plan as a whole, but not for individual employers. That report can be obtained at
www.imrf.org or by writing to [llinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite
500, Oak Brook, Hlinois 60523.
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12,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Administration

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan or the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan) hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed
annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members.

The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are
recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Plan Membership

At December 31, 2016, membership consisted of:

Inactive employees or their beneficiaries

currently receiving benefits 88
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 71
Active employees 168
TOTAL 327
Benefits Provided

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1,
2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest
after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at ape 55 (reduced
benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled
to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to
1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years,
and 2% for each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011. are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For
Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating
members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with
ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each
year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.
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12,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions are
established by state statute.

Contributions

Participating members are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary to
IMRF. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
IMRF as specified by statute. The employer contribution for the year ended April 30,
2017 was 11.8% of covered payroll.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Village’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation performed as of the same date using the following actuarial
methods and assumptions.

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Assumptions

Price inflation 2.75%

Salary increases 3.75% to 14.50%

Investment rate of return 7.50%

Cost of living adjustments 3.00%
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

For non-disabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully
generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF specific rates
were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health Annuitant Mortality Table
with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an IMRF
specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014
(base year 2012). The IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014
Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same adjustments that were applied
for non-disabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table was
used with fully generational projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012). The IMRF
specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with
adjustments to match current IMRF experience.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the Village
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the
IMRF’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
BALANCES AT
JANUARY 1, 2016 $ 46,379.288 §$ 37.138,117 § 9,241,171
Changes for the period
Service cost 1,237,003 - 1,237,003
Interest 3,455,568 - 3,455,568
Difference between expected
and actual experience (117,932) - (117,932)
Employer contributions - 1,333,740 (1,333,740)
Assumption changes (140,990) - (140,990)
Employee contributions - 500,950 (500,950)
Net investment income - 2.578.886 (2,578,886)
Benefit payments and refunds (1,600,723) (1,600,723) -
Other (net transfer) - 47.234 (47.234)
Net changes 2,832,926 2.860.087 (27.161)
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2016 $ 49212214 § 39,998,204 § 9.214,010

There was a change in assumption related to the discount rate made since the prior
measurement date. The discount rate used in the current actuarial valuation, dated
December 31, 2016, is 7.50%. The discount rate used in the prior actuarial valuation,

dated December 31. 2015, was 7.48%.
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30. 2017, the Village recognized pension expense of
$2,077,275.

At April 30, 2017, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to IMRF from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  § 441,099 § 08,096

Assumption changes 46,022 117,275
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 1,725,107 -
Employer contributions after the measurement date 403,142 -
TOTAL $ 2615370 § 215371

$403,142 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting
from village contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as
a reduction of net pension liability in the reporting year ending April 30, 2018. Other
amounts reporied as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to IMRF will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30,
2018 $ 635427
2019 635,427
2020 635,425
2021 118,260
Thereafter (27,682)
TOTAL $ 1,996,857
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Ceontinued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
calculated using the discount rate of 7.3% as well as what the Village’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6.5%) or I percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5% {8.5%)
Net pension liability $ 16894749 § 9214010 $ 3,011,664

Police Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan (the Plan). Although
this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS
5/3-1) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for
the Plan as a pension trust fund.

The Plan is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees. Two members of the
Board of Trustees are appointed by the Village’s Mayor, one member is elected by
pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active police employees.

The Plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required and benefits and refunds
are recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Administrative costs are financed through contributions and investment income.
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Membership

At April 30, 2017, the Plan membership consisted of:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 30
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet

receiving benefits 4
Active plan members I .
TOTAL B
Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits, Tier 1
employees (those hired as a police officer prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age
of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an
annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on
the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The
annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of
service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees
with at least eight years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or
after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer
who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased
annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching
the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension, and 3% compounded
annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ' of the annual change in the Consumer Price
Index or 3% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such

i
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions {Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50
and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., 2% for each month under 55). The monthly
benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60 on the
January 1% after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension
starting date, whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each
January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3% or '2 of the change in the
Consumer Price Index for the preceding calendar year.

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Plan.
If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the
Plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuvary. Effective January 1, 2011, the
Village has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past service cost for the Plan.
However, the Village has elected to fund 100% of the past service cost by 2040. For
the year ended April 30, 2017, the Village’s contribution was 34.40% of covered
payroll.

Investment Policy

The Police Pension Fund’s (the Fund) investment policy authorizes the Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, interest-bearing obligations
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies. interest-bearing bonds of the State of Illinois
or any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, direct
obligations of the State of Israel. money market mutual funds whose investments
consist of obligations of the U.S. Treasury or U.S. agencies, separate accounts
managed by life insurance companies, mutual funds, and Illinois Funds (created by
the Illinois State Legislature under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a
$1 per share value which is equal to the participant’s fair value).
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Description {Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Policy (Continued)
During the year, there were no changes to the investment policy.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds with care, skill, prudence, and
diligence, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the overall portfolio.

The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocations Rate of Return
Large Cap Domestic Equity 35% 6.5%
Small Cap Domestic Equity 20% 8.5%
International Equity 10% 6.8%
Fixed Income 35% 1.3%

Asset class returns and risk premium data are from Stocks, Bonds, Bills and Inflation
2013 Yearbook - Morningstar for the period of 12/31/1925 through 12/31/2015.
International Equity = the MSCI EAFE Index 12/31/1977 through 12/31/2015.
Long-term returns for the asset classes are calculated on a geometric mean basis.

Investment Valuations
All pension fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Investment Rate of Return
For the year ended April 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 11.42%. The

money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.  Plan Description (Continued)
Police Pension Plan (Continued)
Deposits with Financial Institutions
The Fund’s investment policy requires deposits to be insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Interest Rate Risk
The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund’s debt
securities as of April 30, 2017:
Investment Maturities {in Years)
Less Greater
Investment Type Fair Value Than | 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. agencies - FNMA $ 1,673,551 % -3 - % -$ 1,673,551
U.S. agencies - FHLMC 323,386 - - - 323,386
U.S. agencies - GNMA 10,170,394 - - - 10,170,394
TOTAL $ 12,167,331 § -3 - % - % 12,167,331

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Fund’s investment policy does not specifically address
interest rate risk. The Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the
portfolio to provide liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating requirements
while providing a reasonable rate of return based on the current market.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are
implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government. The Fund’s investment
policy does not specifically address credit risk. The U.S. agencies are rated AAA.
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. The investment policy does
not specifically address custodial credit risk for investments. However, the Fund
investment policy requires purchases by brokers reporting to the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York or local (Chicago Area) brokers meeting the standards set forth
by the Federal Reserve Bank. Pursuant to ILCS Chapter 108 1/2, Article 1-113 at
Paragraph 16, all investments of the Fund shall be clearly held to indicate ownership
by the Fund.

Fair Value Measurement

The Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30, 2017.
The equity mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level 1 inputs). The U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations are valued using evaluated pricing (Level 2 inputs).
The money market mutual funds are valued at amortized cost, which approximates
fair value.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

BALANCES AT MAY 1, 2016 $ 55,878,226 $ 34.381,353 § 21,496,873
Changes for the period

Service cost 1,411.858 - 1.411,858
Interest 3,941,538 - 3,941,538

Difference between expected
and actual experience (722,969) - (722,969)
Employer contributions - 1,991,448 (1,991,448)
Assumption changes 89,374 - 89,374
Employee contributions - 599,070 (599,070)
Net investment income - 3,929,399 (3,929,399)
Benefit payments and refunds (1.964,783)  (1.964,783) -
Other (net transfer) - (18,587) 18,587
Net changes 2.755.018 4,536,547 (1,781.529)

BALANCES AT APRIL 30, 2017 § 58.,633.244 $ 38,917,900 $ 19,715,344

There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to
reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates. The mortality rates have
been changed to the RP-2000 Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment projected
to 2017 using scale AA.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2017 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date April 30, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Asset valuation method Market value
Assumptions

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases 5.50%

Investment rate of return 7.00%

Cost of living adjustments 3.00% (1.25% for Tier 2)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment projected to 2017 using scale AA. The other non-economic actuarial
assumptions used in the April 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study conducted by the Illinois Department of Insurance dated
September 26, 2012.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
calculated using the discount rate of 7% as well as what the Village’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6%) or 1 percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity (Continued)

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6%) (7%) (8%)
Net pension liability $ 28,510,331 § 19,715,344  § 12,067,530

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 2017, the Village recognized police pension expense of
$2,267,138.

At April 30, 2017, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the Plan from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience  § - § 2924773
Changes in assumptions 695,612 -

Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 1,742,363 1,201,163
TOTAL $ 2,437,975 § 4,125,936
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the police pension will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending

April 30,
2018 $ (77.830)
2019 (77.830)
2020 (77,828)
2021 (658,616)
2022 (358,326)
Thereafter (437,531)
TOTAL $ (1,687.961)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan

Plan Administration

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters’ Pension Plan (the Plan).
Although this is a single-employer pension plan. the defined benefits and employee
and employer contribution levels are governed by ILCS (40 ILCS 5/4-1) and may be
amended only by the Illinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Plan as a
pension trust fund.

The Pian is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees. Two members of the
Board of Trustees are appointed by the Village’s Mayor, one member is elected by
pension beneficiaries and two members are elected by active firefighter employees.

The Plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized
when earned in the year that the contributions are required and benefits and refunds
are recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

Administrative costs are financed through contributions and investment income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters” Pension Plan (Continued)

Plan Membership
At April 30, 2017, the Plan membership consisted of:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits 6
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet

receiving them 3
Active plan members 19
TOTAL 28

Benefits Provided

The Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier 1
employees (those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 or older with
20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement
benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held at the date of
retirement. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each
additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of such
salary. Employees with at least ten years but less than 20 years of credited service
may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a
covered employee who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977
shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be
paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3%
compounded annually thereafter.

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last
120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Firefighters’ salary for pension purposes is capped
at $106,800, plus the lesser of ' of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index
or 3% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for
each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of
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12.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a,

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age 50 and
receive a reduced benefit (i.e.. “2% for each month under 55). The monthly benefit of
a Tier 2 firefighter shall be increased annually at age 60 on the January 1 afier the
firefighter retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is
later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The
increase is the lesser of 3% or 'z of the change in the Consumer Price Index for the
preceding calendar year.

Contributions

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the Plan.
If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest.
The Village is required to finance the Firefighters’ Pension Plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective January 1. 2011, the Village has until
the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past services costs for the Plan. However, the
Village has elected to fund 100% of the past service cost by 2040. For the year ended
April 30, 2017, the Village’s contribution was 21.08% of covered payroll.

Investment Policy

The Firefighters’ Pension Fund’s (the Fund) investment policy authorizes the Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds
with portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations. repurchase agreements, short-term
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, separate accounts that are managed by life insurance
companies, mutual funds, Illinois Funds (created by the Illinois State Legislature
under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1 per share value which is
equal to the participant’s fair value), and IMET, a not-for-profit investment trust
formed pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code and managed by a Board of Trustees
elected from the participating members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company. Investments in IMET are valued at IMET’s share price, the
price for which the investment could be sold.
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12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Policy (Continued)

During the year, there were no changes to the investment policy.

It is the policy of the Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow demands of the Fund and conforming to all state and local statutes governing
the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety
of principal, liquidity, and return on investment.

The Fund’s investment policy in accordance with ILCS establishes the following
target allocation across asset classes:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Rate of Return
Large Cap Domestic Equity 24.5% 6.3%
Small Cap Domestic Equity 7.0% 8.3%
[nternational Equity 3.5% 6.6%
Fixed Income 65.0% 1.1%

Asset class returns and risk premium data are from Stocks, Bonds, Bills and Inflation
2013 Yearbook - Morningstar for the period of 12/31/1925 through 12/31/2015.
International Equity = the MSCI EAFE Index 12/31/1977 through 12/31/2015.
Long-term returns for the asset classes are calculated on a geometric mean basis.

Investment Valuations
All pension fund investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that

would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12,

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Investment Rate of Return

For the year ended April 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on

pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 6.02%. The

money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment

expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

The Fund’s investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in

excess of federal depository insurance. The Fund shall have a perfected security

interest in such securities which shall be free of any claims to the rights to these

securities other than any claims by the custodian which are subordinate to the Fund’s

claims to rights to these securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Fund’s debt

securities as of April 30, 2017:

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Greater

Investment Type Fair Value Than | 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury notes 8 735463 & 25430 § 583,927 § 126,106 § -
U.S. agencies - GNMA 807 - 5%6 - 211
U.S. agencies - FFCB 1,475,563 - 484,635 936,852 54,076
U.S. agencies - FHLB 1,867,414 35,161 804,883 1,027,370 -
U.S. agencies - FNMA 158,885 - 85,037 73,848 -
U.S. agencies - FMCC 167,528 - 167.528 - -
U.S. agencies - Tennessee

Valley Authority 71,388 - - 71,388 -

Municipal bonds 745,583 20,124 432,985 213,230 79,244
TOTAL $ 5222631 § 80,715 § 2,559,591 § 2448.794 § 133,531

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by
structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating
requirements while providing a reasonable rate of return based on the current market.
The Fund’s investment policy requires that the average maturity and duration of the
portfolio be maintained at approximately five years and range from two to seven
years,
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Ceontinued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are
implicitly guaranteed by the United States Government. The Fund’s investment
policy does not specially address credit risk. The U.S. agencies are rated AA+ to
AAA and the Municipal Bonds have ratings from AAA to AA-.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Fund will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. The Fund’s investment policy
requires an independent third party institution to act as custodian for its securities.

Fair Value Measurement

The Fund has the following recurring fair value measurements as of April 30, 2017.
The equity mutual funds are valued using quoted prices (Level 1 inputs). The U.S.
Treasury and agency obligations and municipal bonds are valued using quoted matrix
pricing models (Level 2 inputs). The money market mutual funds are valued at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution
rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments
to determine the total pension liability.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12, DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

a.

Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Changes in Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

BALANCES AT MAY 1, 2016 $ 8240245 § 7,837928 § 402317
Changes for the period
Service cost 460,019 - 460,019
Interest 599,321 - 599,321

Difference between expected

and actual experience 223,440 - 223,440
Employer contributions - 356,759 (356,759)
Assumption changes 14,316 - 14,316
Employee contributions - 165,647 (165,647}
Net investment income - 497,554 (497,554)
Benefit payments and refunds (277.073) (277,073) -
Other (net transfer) - (7.015) 7,015

Net changes 1,020,023 735.872 284,151

BALANCES AT APRIL 30, 2017 $ 9,260,268 $ 8,573,800 % 686,468

There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to
reflect revised expectations with respect to mortality rates. The mortality rates have
been changed to the RP-2000 Mortality Table with a blue collar adjustment,

projected to 2017 using scale AA.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability above was determined by an actuarial valuation performed
as of April 30, 2017 using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost methed

Asset valuation method

April 30, 2017
Entry-age normal

Market value

Assumptions

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 5.50%
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Cost of living adjustments 3.00% (1.25% for Tier 2)
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Mortality Table with a blue collar
adjustment projected to 2017 using scale AA. The other non-economic actuarial
assumptions used in the April 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study conducted by the Illinois Department of Insurance dated
September 26, 2012.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Village
calculated using the discount rate of 7% as well as what the Village’s net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6%) or 1 percentage point higher (8%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6%) (7%) (8%)
Net pension liability (asset) $§ 2075508 % 686,468 $ (521,393)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefighters’ Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended April 30, 2017, the Village recognized firefighters’ pension
expense of $448.235.

At April 30, 2017, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the firefighters® pension plan from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $§ 203,127 § 142,973

Changes in assumptions 68,168 -
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan investments 289,893 -
TOTAL $ 561,188 § 142,973

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the firefighters’ pension will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending
April 30,
2018 $ 104,523
2019 104,523
2020 104,525
2021 23,746
2022 11,856
Thereafter 69,042
TOTAL § 418,215
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13. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
For the year ended April 30, 2017, the Village reviewed and restated their capital assets
and related accumulated depreciation based on recent outside appraisals in order to comply

with their authorized capital asset policy.

The Village recorded the following prior period restatement during year ended April 30,

2017:
Increase
{Decrease)
PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Prior period restatement
To restate capital assets § (31,536,344)
To restate accumulated depreciation 15,717,945
TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ (15,818,399)
PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Change in accounting principle
To restate capital assets $ (22,998,444)
To restate accumulated depreciation 11,521,810
TOTAL PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES $ (11,476,634)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes § 10,568,000 $ 10,529,236 $ {38,764)
Other taxes 13,863,500 15,174,002 1,310,502
Fines and forfeits 643,000 600,115 {42,885)
Licenses and permits 2,458,200 3,530,750 1,072,550
Charges for services 6,243,900 6,615,660 371,760
Intergovernmental 12,224,500 12,227,940 3,440
Investment income 10,000 79,843 69,843
Other 696,600 439,115 (257,485)
Total revenues 46,707,700 49,196,661 2,488,961
EXPENDITURES
General government 11,665,050 10,768,229 (896,821)
Public safety 19,785,950 18,697,889 (1,088,061)
Public works 8,625,000 8,323,614 (301,386)
Allocation to water and sewer fund (3,183,000) (3,183,000) -
Debt service
Principal 194,000 182,897 (11,103)
Interest and fiscal charges 30,800 28,389 2411
Capital outlay 3,435,500 3.547.453 111,953
Total expenditures 40,553,300 38,365.471 (2,187.829)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 6,154,400 10,831,190 4,676,790
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 30,000 - (30,000)
Transfers (out) (6,199.400) (9,942,820) (3,743,420)
Sale of capital assets 15,000 18,832 3,832
Total other financing sources {uses) (6,154,400) (9.923,988) (3.769,588)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 - 907,202 % 907,202
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 24,191,557
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 25,098,759

(See independent auditor's report.)

-75 -



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

RECREATION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENULS
Property taxes
Other taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Operations
Salaries
Contractual
Commodities
Other
Recreation programs
Salaries
Contractual
Commoditics
[*ark maintenance
Salaries
Contractual
Commoditics
Recreation center
Salaries
Contractual
Commoditics
Debt service
Principal
Capital outlay
Improvements

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER CXPENDITURES

OTIHER FINANCING SOURCES (L'SES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Capital lease issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE. MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and Variance
Finul Budget Actual Over (Under)
2,098,660 & 2095295 § (3.305)
796.500 1.232.863 436,365
1.034.000 1.126.442 92,442
1.318.400 160,073 (1.158.327)
400 1,981 1,581
357.000 4,385 (352.613)
3.604.900 4.621.041 (983.859)
450.900 447.891 (3.009)
34.500 26.551 (7.949)
27.330 29,638 2.288
213,100 212,720 {380)
1.340.500 1.255.237 (85.263)
188.000 144,784 (43.216)
387,700 340,509 +H7.191)
762,000 695.396 {66.604)
321,000 284,293 (36.703)
66.400 63.003 (3.397)
430.600 419.729 (10.871)
214.000 171.838 (42.162)
41.250 32.547 (8.703)
14.000 12.651 (1.349)
2.603.000 687.138 {1.915.862)
7.094.300 4.823.927 (2.270.373)
(1.489.400) (202.886) [.286.514
1.500.600 4.325.000 2.824.400
{369.300) (389.638) (20.338)
- 32515 32515
1.131.300 3.967.877 2.836.577
(358.100) 3764991 §  4.123.091
1.331.587
$ 5,096,578



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Last Six Fiscal Years

(2) UAAL
Actuarial C))] asa
Actuarial (nH Accrued (3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
April 30, Assets Entry-Age N/ (2) (2)-(1) Payroll (4) /(5)
2012 5 - S 1,964,941 0.00% $ 1,964,941 § 16,095,846 12.21%
2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2014 - 2,431,930 0.00% 2,431,930 15,742,417 15.45%
2015 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2016 - 4,849,663 0.00% 4,849,663 16,190,763 29.95%
2017 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A - actuarial valuation not performed.

For the actuarial valuation ending April 30, 2016, there were changes in assumptions with respect to mortality
tables, health care trend rates, line of duty disability rates, spousal coverage election rates, and health care
coverage election rates.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

[ast Two Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017 2016

Actuarially determined contribution $ 1333229 § 1,288,895

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,333,229 1,288,895
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ - $ =
Covered-employee payroll $ 11.255847 $ 11,103,605

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 11.84% 11.61%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of December 31,
2013 through December 31, 2015. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation
presented is as follows: the actvarial cost method was aggregate entry-age normal; the
amortization method was level percentage of payroll, closed; the amortization period was 27
years, closed until the remaining period reaches 15 years (then a 15-year rolling period); the
asset valuation method was five year smoothed market with a 20.00% corridor; and the
significant actuarial assumptions were wage growth at 3.50%; price inflation at 2.75%; salary
increases of 3.75% to 14.50%, including inflation; and an investment rate of return at 7.50%
annuaily.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten
years of information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is
available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 340, 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially determined contribution h) 1,990,487 § 1,634,774 § 1,525,992
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,991,448 1,696,960 1,526,555
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) 3 (961) $ {62,186} § (563)
Covered-employee payroll 8 5,789,093 § 3.567,300 § 5,659,915

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 34.40% 30.48% 26.97%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of the beginning of the prior
fiscal year. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial
cost method was entry-age normal; the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed; and the
amortization period was 24 years; the asset valuation method was five-year smoothing of asset gains and
losses; and the significant actuarial assumptions were an investment rate of return at 7.00% annuaily;
inflation at 2.50% annually; projected salary increases of 5.50% compounded annually; and postretirement
benefit increases of 3.00% for Tier | employees and 1.25% for Tier 2 employees, respectively, compounded
annually.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of
information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially determined contribution A 308304 % 281,582 % 294,170
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 356,759 351,767 320,115
CONTRIBUTION DEFICIENCY (Excess) $ (48.455} 3 (70,185) § (25.945)
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,692,697 $ 1,619,587 % 1,559,039

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 21.08% 21.72% 20.53%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

The information presented was determined as part of the actuarial valuations as of the beginning of the prior
fiscal year. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation presented is as follows: the actuarial
cost method was entry-age normal; the amortization method was level percent of pay, closed; and the
amortization period was 24 years; the asset valuation method was five-year smoothing of asset gains and
losses; and the significant actuarial assumptions were an investment rate of return at 7.00% annually; infiation
at 2.50% annually; projected salary increases of 5.50% compounded annually; and postretirement benefit
increases of 3.00% for Tier 1 employees and 1.25% for Tier 2 employees, respectively, compounded
annually.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of
information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

LLast Six Fiscal Years

Annual
Required
Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed
2012 $ 146,850 $ 86,162 170.43%
2013 146.850 132,273 111.02%
2014 156,196 132,273 118.09%
2015 156,196 154,076 101.38%
2016 235415 429,249 54.84%
2017 250,716 429,249 58.41%

For the fiscal year ending April 30, 2016, there were changes in assumptions with respect to
mortality tables, health care trend rates, line of duty disability rates, spousal coverage election
rates, and health care coverage election rates.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Last Two Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE DECEMBER 31, 2016 2015
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost $ 1,237,003 § 1,218,649
Interest 3,455,568 3,189,281
Differences between expected and actual experience (117,932) 655,543
Changes of assumptions (140,990) 68,396
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1,600,723) (1,447,542}
Net change in total pension liability 2,832,926 3,684,327
Total pension liability - beginning 46,379,288 42,694,961
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING $ 49212214 § 46,379,288
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer $ 1,333,740 § 1,380,697
Contributions - member 500,950 503,966
Net investment income 2,578,886 185,894
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (1,600,723) (1,447,542)
Administrative expense/other 47,234 (445,117)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,860,087 177,898
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 37.138.117 36,960,219
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING $ 39998204 § 37,138,117
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY 3 9214010 § 9,241,171
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 81.28% 80.07%
Covered-employee payroll §  1L125719 § 11,103,605

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 82.82% 83.23%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
There was a change in the actuarial assumptions for 2015 and 2016 for the discount rate.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of
information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THIE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30,

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost
Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and actual expericnce

Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer
Contributions - member
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions
Administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Ilan fiduciary net position - beginning

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING

EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY

Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability

Covered-employee payroll

Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

2017 2016 2015
1.411,858 § 1.447.846 $ 1,428,441
3,941,538 3,859,408 3,275,007

{722,969) (3,056,233) 738,525
89,374 823,214 3,149,390

(1.964.783) (1.765.114) {1.616.149)

2,755,018 1.309,121 6,975,214
55.878.226 54,569,105 47.593.891
58.633.244 § 55878226 $  54.569.103

1.991,448 § 1,696,960 $ 1,526,553

599.070 552,258 559,263

3.929.399 (480,028) 2,361,031

(1.964,783) (1.765,114) (1,616,149)
(18.587) (13.909) (17.350)

4,536,547 (11,833) 2.813,350
34.381.353 34.393.186 31.579.836
38917900 § 34381333 § 34.393.186
19.715.344 § 21496873 § 20.i173.919

66.38% 61.53% 63.03%
5.789,093 $ 5,567,300 % 5.639.915
340.56% 386.13% 356.47%

There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to reflect revised expectations with respect to

mortality rates for 2013, 2016, and 2017,

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years, However, until ten vears of information can be

compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

MEASUREMENT DATE APRIL 30, 2017 2016 2015
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY
Service cost S 460,019 $ 438,355 3§ 455,750
Interest 599,321 551,987 446,079
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difierences between expected and actual experience 223,440 (174,745) 31,952
Changes of assumptions 14,316 67,409 276,448
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions {277,073} (179,883) {91,334)
Net change in total pension liability 1,020,023 703,123 1,118,895
Total pension liability - beginning 8,240.245 7,537,122 6,418,227
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING § 9260268 5§ 8240245 § 7,537,122
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Contributions - employer 3 356,759 § 351,767 3 320,115
Contributions - member 165,647 155,201 169,091
Net investment income 497,554 124,930 439,579
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (277,073 (179,883} (91,334)
Administrative expense {7,015) {10,433} (10,826)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 735,872 441,582 826,625
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 7.837.928 7.396.346 6.569,721
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING $ 8573800 5 7837928 $  7.396,346
EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION LIABILITY 5 686.468 S 402,317 § 140,776
Plan fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total pension liability 92.59% 05.12% 98.13%
Covered-employee payroll $ 1678478 3 1,619,587 § 1,559,039
Employer's net pension liability
as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 40.90% 24.84% 9.03%

Notes to Schedule:

‘There was a change with respect to actuarial assumptions from the prior year to reflect revised expectations with respect

to mortality rates for 2015, 2016, and 2017.

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten years of information can
be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
POLICE PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 11.42% (1.40%) 7.52%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten

years of information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is
available.

(See independent auditor’s report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOYVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

Last Three Fiscal Years

FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2017 2016 2015

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense 6.02% 1.64% 6.33%

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Ultimately, this schedule should present information for the last ten years. However, until ten
years of information can be compiled, information will be presented for as many years as is
available.

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30, 2017

BUDGETS

Annual budgets are adopted for all governmental {(except for the 2002A Construction Fund),
proprietary, and pension trust funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The Finance Director submits a proposed operating budget to the governing body for review
commencing the following May 1. The governing body holds public hearings and may add to,
subtract from, or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. The budget is

legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. The budget may be amended by the governing
body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. There were no
budget amendments during the year.

During the fiscal year, expenditures exceeded budget for the following funds:

Final Budget Actual
Local Gas Tax Fund $ 1,500,000 $ 1,875,618
Debt Service Fund 5,752,200 6,078,876
Downtown TIF Fund 3.032.800 3.307.384
2004 Bond Construction Fund 80.000 195,728
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES

Property laxes
Corporate levy
Fire protection levy
Police protection levy
Ambulance levy
Audit levy
Social security levy
Street levy
Refuse disposal levy
Tort immunity levy
Police pension levy
Fire pension levy

Total property taxes

Onher taxes

Utility

Electric

Gas

Telephone

Water
Automobile
Home rule sales
Home rule gas
Real estate transler
Food and beverage
Gaming tax

Total other taxes

Fines
Court supervision fines - vehicle
Court
Administrative tickets
Parking tickets
Dog/animal
Forfeiture of Cash P.D
Falsc alarm
Health Department Fines/Fees
Vehicle impound fees
DUl
Fire alarm monitoring

Total fines

Licenses and permils
Business licenses
Liquor licenses
Business permits
Solicitor permils
Building permits
Garage sale permils
Inspection permits
Animal tags

Total licenses and permits

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actunl Over (Under)
3 1678900 $§ 2653813 § (23.087)
311,300 310,898 (-102)
370,000 369,027 (973)
690,200 689,919 (281)
50,000 49,989 (n
1,300,000 1,298,658 {1,342)
610,000 603,489 {6.511)
610,000 609,444 (556)
1,400,000 1,397,573 (2.427)
1,591,000 1,987.871 {3.129)
356,600 356,555 (45)
10.568.000 10.529.236 {38.764)
3,200,000 3,528,761 328,761
1,050,000 100,318 (48,682)
1.070,000 957,144 (1§2,856)
260,000 263,143 3,143
7.000 5.331 {1,669)
3,720,000 6,306,026 386,026
730,000 788,467 38,467
336,500 681,112 JMel2
1,350,000 1,445,997 95,997
140,000 196,703 56,703
13,863.500 15,174,002 1,310,502
35,000 - (35,000)
2235.000 239,862 14,862
6.000 4,830 (L1770
40,000 49,365 9,365
7,000 5,736 (1,264)
25,000 - (25,000)
16,500 19.300 2,800
48,200 - (48,200)
90,000 i01.600 11,600
3.000 8,000 -
142,300 171,422 29,122
643.000 600,115 {42.8835)
100,000 172,898 72,898
90,000 100,350 10,350
110,000 169,200 (800)
3,500 3,000 4,500
1,800,000 2475876 675.876
4,000 1,990 (2,010}
350,000 661,600 311,600
700 836 136
2,458,200 3.530.750 1,072,550
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDLILE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2057

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actoal Over (Uinder)
REVENUES (Continued)
Charges for services
Vacancy inspection $ 10,000 S 5100 % (4,900)
Cable TV franchise 540,000 547,745 7,743
Ambulance 515.000 560.133 45,133
NSF check charges 300 430 130
Administration 1,000 2,722 1,722
Zoning board maps/variance 40,000 69,571 29,571
Zoning code material 2,500 3.300 800
Rental inspection 90,000 70,550 (19,450)
Construction reinspection 35.000 53.605 18,605
Sprint rental 74,000 73,002 (998)
Engincering 600,000 976,794 376.794
Fire prevention service 28.000 43,317 13,317
Fire academy 1,132,300 923,807 (208,493)
Fire recovery feus 23.000 38,030 13.030
Sex offender registration act fee 1.000 770 (230}
Violent offender against youth registration fee 100 30 {70)
Rubbish collection 3,110,000 3,131,653 21,653
Portable sign/pennant permit 2,000 1.836 {164)
Fingerprint 1,000 1,722 722
Police special detail 30,000 103,270 73,270
Police accident report 6,000 7317 1,317
Fire reports 700 056 256
Total charges for services 6.243.900 £.615.660 371.760
Intergovernmental
State income tax 4.047.300 3,750,745 (296,355)
Sales 5,250,000 5,729,800 479,800
Use 932,400 076,635 44.235
Replacement tax 165,000 182,612 17.612
Auto thef 61.000 5.850 {55,150)
D.A R.E. program revenue 7.300 7,500 -
Will County grants 38,000 45,128 7,128
Federal grants 440,000 142,742 (297.258)
SWARM Safety Grant - 46,974 46,974
Lockport fire agreement 1.176,800 1,236,890 60,090
Marquetie TIF Distribution 106,500 103.064 (3.436)
Total intergovernmental 12.224.500 12.227.940 3.440
Investment income 10.000 79.843 69.843
Other
General donations 75,000 31,500 (23.500)
Fire Donation - 30 30
Training reimbuorsement 10.000 6,440 (3.560)
Community development reimbursement 15,000 30,968 15,968
Workers' compensation reimbursement 150,000 37.861 (112,139
Liaison officer reimbursement 38,000 42,657 4,657
Other reimbursements 30,000 70,008 20,098
Insurance reimbursements 20,000 3.362 (16.638)
Reimbursement of legal fees 235,000 27,390 2,390
Health insurance contributions 110,000 95,024 (14,976)
Hazardous material reimbursements 30,000 304 (29,696)
Commemorative veterans brick and plaque 300 1,340 1,040
Cobra retiree contribution 36,000 39,373 3,373
Developer's breakfast 5,000 - (5,000}

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Finnl Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES (Continued)
Other {Continued)
Village building rent s - 3 10,750 $ 10,750
Miscellancous income 8,500 12,585 4,085
Advertising 30,800 1,084 (49,716)
Flexible spending 66,000 1.269 (64,731)
Sales tax replacement fees 7.000 7.000 -
Property Tax Rebate - 80 80
Total other 696.600 439,115 (257.483)
TOTAL REVENUES § 46707700 8§ 49.196.661 § 248896l

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENLERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor
Salarics s 141,700 § 138391  § (3.309)
Contractual services 20.000 11.325 (8.675)
Commoditics 8.100 6.071 {2.029)
Total mayor 169.800 155.787 (14.013)
General village board
Salaries 241,100 323.330 {17.770)
Contractual services 4.500 3.698 {802)
Commoditics 91.500 82.182 (9.318}
Total general village board 337.100 309.210 {27.890)
Village administration
Salaries 542,400 492,471 (49.929)
Contractual services 1.384.000 1.031.211 (332,789)
Commodities 18.000 9.201 (8.799
Total village administration 1.944.400 1.552.883 (391.517)
Personnel
Salaries 337.800 260,075 (77.725)
Contractual services 2.261.000 2.251.154 (9.846)
Commodities 3.500 812 (2.688)
Other 70.000 38.896 (31.104)
Total personnel 2.672.300 2.550.937 {121.363)
Community media production
Salaries 120,100 115,149 {4.951)
Contractual 3.000 772 (2.228)
Commoditics 10.000 6.139 (3.861)
Total community media production 133.100 122.060 {11.040)
Operations
Salaries 68,100 71.382 10,282
Contractual services 121.000 44.965 (76.035)
Commodities 10.800 8,573 (2.227)
Other 2.262.500 1.966.867 {295.633)
Total operations 2.455.400 2.091.787 (363.613)
Commissions and committees
Salaries 18.200 13.261 (4,939)
Contractual 200 - (200)
Commoditics 12.500 11.49] (1.009)
Total commissions and commitices 30.900 24,752 {6.148)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Varinnce
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Village Clerk
Salarics $ 115900 § 115284 § (616)
Contractual services 20.000 16,650 {3.350)
Commodities 400 75 (325)
Total village clerk 136.300 132.009 {4.291)
Finance department
Administration
Salaries 963,950 932373 (41.577)
Contractual services 4.000 3319 {681)
Commoditics 200,500 231.204 30.704
Other expenditures 21.000 17.595 (3.405)
Total administration 1.189.450 1.174.491 (14.959)
General services
Contractual services 194,000 179,203 (14,797)
Commodities 13.000 10,143 (2.857)
Other expenditures 3,000 320 (2.680)
Total general services 210.000 189.666 (20.334)
Inlormation services
Salaries 325,300 321.359 (3.941)
Contractual services 710,900 757,383 46,483
Commodities 21.500 19.918 {1.582)
Total information services 1.057.700 [.098.660 40.960
Total finance department 2.4357.150 2.462.817 5.667
Community services and development
Administration
Salaries 650,400 624,293 {26,107)
Contractual services 117.500 162,669 45,169
Commoditics 21.500 14.138 {7.362)
Total administration 789.400 80:1.100 11.700
Inspectional services
Salaries 483.100 438.858 (44.242)
Contractual services 39,600 113,185 73.585
Commoditics 16,500 12.844 (3.656)
Total inspectional services 539.200 564,887 25.687
Total community services and development 1.328.600 1.365.987 37.387
Total general government 11.665.050 10.768.229 (896.821)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF CXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

TFor the Year Ended April 30, 2017

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police and fire commission
Salaries
Contractual services
Commodities

Total police and fire commission

Paolice department
Administration
Salaries
Contractual services
Commaodities

Total administration

Operations
Salaries
Contractual services
Commoditics
Other expenditures

Total operations

Support services
Salaries
Contractual services
Commodities

Total support services
Total police department

Fire and ambulance department
Administration
Salaries
Contractual services
Commodities

Total administration

Fire academy
Administration
Salaries
Contractual services
Commoditices

Total fire academy

Total fire and ambulance department

Original and Variance

Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
240 $ 8.941 (13.459)
48.000 22,170 {25.830)
2.000 828 (1,172)
72,400 31.939 {40.461)
3.305.200 3.274.272 (30,928)
8.500 7.980 (5200
3.000 2,074 (926)
3.316.700 3.284.326 (32.374)
8.580.950 8.234.3% (346.5560)
336.800 290.224 {46,576)
186.500 174,374 (12,126)
9,500 8.477 (1.023)
9.113.750 8.707.46% (406.281)
935.000 872.356 (62.644)
12.000 9.162 (2.838)
5.000 3.026 (1.974)
952.000 884,544 {67.436)
13.382.450 12.876.33% (506.111)
4.662.500 4.229 882 (432.618)

355.200 381.878 26,678
166.800 157.434 (9.366)
3.184.500 4.769.194 {415.306)
707.600 628.746 (78.854)

22,500 35071 12.571
311500 264.417 (47.083)
1.04 1,600 028.234 (113.366)
6.226.100 5.697.428 (528.672)

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEQVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE O EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30. 2017

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Romeoville Emergency Management Agency
Administration
Salaries
Contractual services
Commodities

Total administration

Operations
Contractual services
Commodities

Total operations

Communications
Contractual services

Total Romeoville Emerpency Management Agency
Total public safety

PUBLIC WORKS
Administration
Salarics

Buildings and grounds
Salaries
Contractual scrvices
Commuodities

Total buildings and grounds

Motor pool
Salaries
Contractual services
Commoditics

Total motor pool
Streets and sanitation
Salaries
Contractual services

Commodities

Total streets and sanitation

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)

15500 $% 13.130 (2.370)
15,500 11.538 (3.962)
11.500 11,087 {413)
42,500 35.755 (6.743)
35.000 31.980 (3.020)
7.500 7.044 {456)
42,500 39.024 {3.476)
20.000 17.404 (2.596)
105,000 92.183 (12.817)
19.7835.950 18.697.889 {1.088.061)
448.200 426,783 (21.417)
918.400 810.715 {107.685)
248,000 151.975 {96.0235)
69,500 57.429 {12.071)
1.235.900 1.020.119 {215.781)

114,300 144.082 19,782

132.000 146.992 14.992
371,500 264.134 {107.366)
617.800 555.208 {62.590)
1,175,100 954,015 (221.08%)

3.580.000 3.669.252 89.252
261.000 194.613 {66.387)
5.016.100 4.817.880 (198.220)

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)



YILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULLE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continucd)
GENLRAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
PUBLIC WORKS (Continued)
Landscape and grounds
Salaries b 606.500 $ 617.720 § 11.220
Contractual services 672.000 846,935 174,935
Commaodities 28.500 38.969 10.469
Total landscape and grounds 1.307.000 1,503,624 196.624
Total public works 8.625.000 8.323.614 {301,386}
ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS
Allocations to water and sewer fund {3.183.000) (3.183.000) -
DEBT SERVICE
Principal 194.000 182,897 (11,103}
Interest and fiscal charges 30.800 28.389 (2411
Total debt service 224.800 211.286 {13.514)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
General government 124,500 473,206 248,706
Public safery 673.000 968.932 295,932
Public works 2.538.000 2.105.315 (432.683)
Total capital outlay 3.435.500 3.547.453 111.953
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 40553300 & 38365471 §  (2.187.829)

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FACILITY CONSTRUCTION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30,2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income $ - 3 15214 % 15214
Total revenues - 15,214 15,214
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 2,566,000 2,396,501 (169,499)
Total expenditures 2.566,000 2,396,501 (169,499)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,566,000) (2,381,287 184,713
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 925,000 925,000
Total other financing sources (uses) - 925,000 925,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $  (2.566,000) (1,456,287 § 1,109,713
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 3,232,101
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,775,814

{See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 200,300 $ 217953 § 17,653
Investment income 100 85 (15)
Charges for services 62,300 18,260 (44,040)
Other 100,000 151,568 51,568
Total revenues 362,700 387.866 25,166
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual services 1,153,000 369,614 (783.386)
Debt Service
Principal 1,140,000 1,140,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 439,800 439,790 (10)
Capital outlay 300,000 1,357,980 1,057,980
Total expenditures 3,032,800 3,307,384 274,584
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (2.670,100) (2.919.518) (249.418)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,015,700 2,111,696 95,996
Sale of capital assets - 725,000 725,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,015,700 2,836,696 820,996
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 (654,400) (82,822 § 571,578
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 166,795
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 83,973

(See independent auditor’s report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Yariance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes 5 837400 § 835994 § (1,406)
Investment income - 159 159
Total revenues 837,400 836,153 (1,247)
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal 4,535,700 4,570,606 34,906
Interest and fiscal charges 1,216,500 1,508,270 291,770
Total expenditures 5,752,200 6.078.876 326,676
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (4,914,800) (3,242,723) (327.923)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued - 5,105,000 5,105,000
Premium on bonds issued - 77,165 77,165
Transfers in 4,914,800 4,908,762 {6,038)
Payment to escrow agent - {18,264,202) (18,264,202)
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,914,800 {8,173.275) (13,088,075)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - (13,415,998) $§ (13.415,998)
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 13,415,998
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ -

(See independent auditor's report.)



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30, 2017
Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,338,301 § 2,466,309 § 3,804,610
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property taxes - - -
Other - 126,982 126,982
Due from other governments 86,878 328.939 415,817
TOTAL ASSETS 5 1,425,179 § 2,922,230 § 4,347,409
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ) 66,042 § 381,195 % 447,237
Due to other funds - - -
Total liabilities 66,042 381,195 447,237
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenues - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - = =
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 66,042 381,195 447,237
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Maintenance of roadways 1,359,137 - 1,359,137
Economic development - 1,537,927 1,537,927
Capital projects - 199,857 199,857
Unrestricted
Assigned
Maintenance of roadways - 237,214 237,214
Capital projects - 566,037 566,037
Total fund balances 1.359.137 2,541,035 3,900,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 5 1,425,179 § 2,922,230 § 4.347.409

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES
Taxes
Property
Other
Intergovernmental
Investment income

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public works
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds issued
Premium on bonds issued
Tranfers in
Transfers (out)
Payment to escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Special Capital
Revenue Projects Total
$ - 2,744,373 2,744,373
- 788,467 788,467
1,084,903 421.366 1,506,269
7.985 6,144 14,129
9,030 916.737 925,767
1.101.918 4,877,087 5,979,005
- 817,044 817,044
686,444 - 686,444
- 2,091,936 2,091,936
686,444 2,908,980 3,595,424
415,474 1,968,107 2,383,581
- (1,938,000) (1,938,000)
- (1,938.000) (1,938,000)
415474 30,107 445,581
943,663 2,510,928 3,454,591
$ 1.359,137 § 2541035 § 3,900,172



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over {Under)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $  1,106200 $ 1,084903 §$ (21,297)
Investment income 500 7,985 7,485
Other - 9,030 9,030
Total revenues 1,106,700 1,101,918 (4,782)
EXPENDITURES
Public works
Contractual 665,000 569,780 {935,220)
Commodities 500,000 116,664 (383.336)
Total expenditures 1,165,000 686,444 (478.,556)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (58,300) 415,474 473,774
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) (30.000) - 30,000
Total other financing sources (uses) (30,000) - 30,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 (88.300) 415474 § 503,774
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 043,663
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,359,137

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

April 30, 2017
Local Marquette
Road Gas Center
Improvements Tax TIF District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 199,857 § 162,488 % 1,301,995
Receivables
Other - 126,982 -
Due from other governments - 328,939 -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 199.857 $§ 618409 § 1,301,995
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 381,195 § -
Total liabilities - 381,195 -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Economic development - - 1,301,995
Capital projects 199,857 - -
Unrestricted
Assigned
Maintenance of roadways - 237,214 -
Capital projects - - -
Total fund balances 199,857 237.214 1,301,995
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 3 199857 $ 618409 § 1,301,995

- 102 -



Romeo

2004 2002A Road

Construction Construction TIF District Total
3 565,078 § 959 § 235932 § 2,466,309
- - - 126,982
- - - 328,939
$ 565,078 § 959 §% 235932 § 2922230
b - b - $ - $ 381,195
- - - 381,195
- . 235,932 1,537,927
- - - 199,857
= = = 237,214
565,078 959 - 566,037
565.078 959 235,932 2,541,035
5 565,078 §% 959 § 235932 $ 2922230

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAIOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Local Marquette
Road Gas Center
Improvements Tax TIF District
REVENUES
Property taxes 3 - $ - $ 2,711,685
Other taxes - 788,467 -
Intergovernmental - 421,366 -
Investment income 282 - 4,985
Other 163,921 75,846 -
Total revenues 164,203 1,285,679 2,716,670
EXPENDITURES
General government - - 817.044
Capital outlay 20,000 1,875,618 590
Total expenditures 20,000 1,875,618 817,634
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 144,203 (589,939) 1,899,036
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) - - {1,938,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - (1,938,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 144,203 (389,939) (38,964)
FUND BALANCES, MAY 1 55.654 827,153 1,340,959
FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 b 199,857 § 237214 § 1,301,995
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Romeo

2004 2002A Road
Construction Construction TIF District Total

3 - 3 - 3 32,688 2,744,373
- - - 788,467
- - - 421,366
42 5 830 6,144
676,970 - - 916,737
677,012 5 33,518 4,877,087
- - - 217,044
195,728 - - 2.091,936
195,728 - - 2,908,980
481,284 5 33,518 1,968,107

- - - (1,938.000)

- - = (1.938.000)
421,284 5 33,518 30,107
83,794 954 202,414 2,510,928
$ 565,078 § 959 % 235,932 2,541,035

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income 5 - 282 282
Other - 163,921 163,921
Total revenues - 164,203 164,203
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 50,000 20,000 (30,000)
Total expenditures 50,000 20,000 (30,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (50,000) 144,203 194,203
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 55,654
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 199,857

(See independent auditor's report.)




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL GAS TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Yariance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Home rule gas tax $ 730,000 $ 788,467 § 58,467
Intergovernmental 40,000 421,366 381,366
Other 6,000 75.846 69,846
Total revenues 776,000 1.285,679 509,679
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 1,500,000 1,875,618 375,618
Total expenditures 1,500,000 1,875,618 375,618
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (724,000) (589,939) $ 134,061
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 827.153
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 237,214

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MARQUETTE CENTER TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES
Property taxes
[Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources {uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY |

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
$ 2720000 $ 2,711,685 § (8,315)

500 4,985 4,485
2,720.500 2,716.670 (3,830)
818,100 817,044 (1,056)
40,000 590 (39,410)
858,100 817,634 (40,466)
1.862.400 1,899,036 36,636
(1,862,400) (1,938,000} (75,600)
(1,862,400) {1.938.000) (75,600)
$ - (38,964) § (38,964)
1,340,959
$§ 1,301,995



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2004 CONSTRUCTION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30. 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Investment income $ - $ 42 3 42
Developer contributions - 676.970 676,970
Total revenues - 677.012 677,012
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 80.000 195,728 115,728
Total expenditures 80,000 195,728 115,728
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 (80,000) 481,284 § 561,284
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 83,794
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 565,078

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROMEQ ROAD TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and Variance
Final Budget Actual Over (Under)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 66,800 §$ 32688 % (34,112)
Investment income - 830 830
Total revenues 66,800 33,518 (33,282)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Contractual 66.800 - (66,800)
Total expenditures 66,800 - (66,800)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - 33,518 § 33,518
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 202,414
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 b 235,932

(See independent auditor's report.)



MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENSES.
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and
Final Budget Actunl
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Water sales § 7350000 § 7.450,054
Scwer sales 8.730.000 8,780.861
Fines and fees
Late charges 370.000 351.878
Other fees - 4,440
Tap on fees 400.000 977.296
Recapture fees - -
Reconnection fees 55.000 43,700
NSF charges 3.000 3.955
Reimbursements 70.000 108.695
Misceltancous - 296
Total operating revenues 16.980.000 17.721.175
OPERATING EXPENSES
Finance administration
Salaries 381.000 384.850
Contraciual services 148,700 147.204
Commodities 47.000 44,296
Other 4.000 498
Total finance administration 580.700 576.848
Public works administration
Contractual services 444,500 746,608
Commoditics 11.500 9.284
Capital outlay 12,000 14,206
‘Total public works administration 468.000 770.098
Public works water distribution
Salaries 1.669.600 1.696.§32
Contractual services 1.217.500 1,019.857
Commodities 825.000 895.735
Capital outlay 1.786.000 1.214.378
Total public works water distribution 5.498.100 4.826.102
Public works sewage treatment
Salaries 1.071.500 1.083,734
Contractual services 1.273.500 1,292,742
Commodities 186.500 183,349
Capital outlay 220.000 23.403
Total public works sewage treatment 2.751.500 2.583.228

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENSES.

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

WATER AND SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended April 30. 217

OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)
Public works sewage cotlection
Salaries
Contractual services
Commoditics
Capital outlay
Total public works sewage collection
Subtotal
Administration and other charges
Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property tax rebate
Gain on the sale of fixed assets
Investment income
Interest. fiscal charges and principal expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Transfers (out)
CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - BUDGETARY BASIS

ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS

Debt principal payments

Pension expense - IMRF

Capitalized assets

Depreciation expense

Totad adjustments to GAAP basis

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GAAP BASIS
NET POSITION. MAY |

Change in accouting principle

NET POSITION. MAY |1, RESTATED

NET POSITION, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

Original and
Final Budget Actual

$ 719400 § 385279

348.000 247.711
53.000 24.067
796.000 459.574
1.916.400 1.316.631
11.214,700 10.072.907
3.183.000 3.183.000
14.397.700 13.255.907
2.582.300 4.465.268
(116,000} (115.424)
- 8.720
15.000 20.957

(4.110.700) {4.037.068)

{4.211.700) {4.122.815)

(1.629.400} 342,453
- (385.072)

- 1.749.245

§  (1.629.400) 1.706,626

3.444.874
(213.268)
552,670
(3.866.171)
(B1.895)
1.624.731
97.38549%4
{11.476.634)
85.508.860

§ 87.533.391



FIDUCIARY FUNDS



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
April 30,2017
Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents % 286,459 § - 3 286,459
Investments
U.S. Treasury and agency securities 12,167,331 4,477,048 16,644,379
Municipal bonds S 743,583 745,583
Money market mutual funds 381,070 35,229 416,299
Equity mutual funds 26,038,386 3,275,202 29,313,588
Accrued interest receivable . 45,794 41,368 87,162
Total assets 38,919,040 8,574,430 47,493,470
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - 630 630
Due to other funds 1,140 - 1,140
Total liabilities 1,140 630 1,770
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS $ 38917900 $ 8.573,800 $ 47,491,700

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in
fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits and refunds

Benefits

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION RESTRICTED

FOR PENSIONS
May |

April 30

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total
1,991,448 § 356,739 § 2,348,207
599,070 165,647 764,717
2,590,518 522,406 3,112,924
2,729,715 380.559 3,110,274
1.547,004 151.284 1,698,288
4,276,719 531,843 4,808,562
(347.320) (34,289) (381,609)
3,929,399 497.554 4,426,953
6.519.917 1,019.960 7,539,877
18,587 7,013 25,602
1,964,783 277,073 2,241,856
1,983.370 284.088 2,267,458
4,536,547 735,872 5,272,419
34,381.353 7,837,928 42,219,281
$ 38917900 3§ 8,573,800 §$ 47,491,700

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee

Total contributicns

Investment income
Net appreciation in
fair value of investments
Interest

Total investment income

Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Administration
Benefits and refunds

Benefits

Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET POSITION RESTRICTED

FOR PENSIONS
May |

April 30

Original and

Final Budget Actual
$ 1.991,000 § 1,991,448
600,000 599,070
2,591,000 2,590,518
900.000 2,729,715
450,000 1,547,004
1,350,000 4,276,719

- (347,320)

1,350.000 3,929,399
3,941,000 6,519,917
20,000 18,587
3,921,000 1,964,783
3,941,000 1,983,370
$ - 4,536,547
34,381,353
$ 38,917,900

(See independent auditor's report.)




VILLAGE OF ROMEOYVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Original and
Final Budget Actual
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ 356,600 $ 356,759
Employee 160,000 165,647
Total contributions 516,600 522,406
Investment income
Net appreciation in
fair value of investments 125,000 380,559
Interest 140,000 151,284
Total investment income 265,000 531,843
Less investment expense {35.000) (34,289)
Net investment income 230,000 497,554
Total additions 746,600 1,019,960
DEDUCTIONS
Administration 16,000 7,015
Benefits and refunds
Benefits 730,600 277,073
Total deductions 746,600 284,088
NET INCREASE 5 - 735,872
NET POSITION RESTRICTED
FOR PENSIONS
May 1 7.837,928
April 30 $ 8,573,800

(See independent auditor's report.)



SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

For the Year Ended April 30,2017

Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
General Obligation Bonds
Dated November 15, 2007 2018 S 675,000 § 35438 3 710,438
Refunding Series 2007A
Interest due on June 30 S 675,000 $ 35438 § 710,438
and December 30 at rates
ranging from 3.75%to 5.25%
General Obligation Bonds
Dated June 30, 2008 3018 b 700,000 $ 132,563 % 832,563
Series 2008A 2019 1,150,000 104,563 1,254,563
Interest due on June 30 2020 1,000,000 58,563 1,058,563
and December 30 at rates 2021 450,000 18,563 468,563
ranging from 3.250% to 4.125%
3 3,300,000 $ 314,252 & 3,614,252
General Obligation
{Capital Appreciation) Bonds
Dated June 30, 2008 2022 $ 2,779425 § 2,720,575 % 5,500,000
Series 2008B 2033 2,846,160 3,153,840 6,000,000
Interest due on December 30 and 2024 2,675,040 3,324,960 6,000,000
at rates ranging from 5.12% 2025 2,506,740 3,493,260 6,000,000
10 5.85% 2026 2,545,205 3,954,795 6,500,000
2027 2,390,830 4,109,170 6,500,000
2028 2,243,605 4,256,395 6,500,000
2029 2,103,400 4,396,600 6,500,000
2030 1,974,180 4,525,820 6,500,000
2031 1,851,460 4,648,540 6,500,000
2032 1,739,010 4,760,990 6,500,000
2033 1,640,210 4,859,790 6,500,000
2034 1,546,740 4,953,260 6,500,000
2035 1,458,275 5,041,725 6,500,000
2036 1,374,620 5,125,380 6,500,000
2037 1,295,515 5,204,485 6,500,000
2038 1,220,765 5,279,235 6,500,000
2039 1,136,460 5,363,540 6,500,000
2040 1,008,244 5,191,756 6,200,000
36,335,884 84,364,116 120,700,000
Accreted Interest 21,385,421 (21.385,421) -

$ 57,721,305 $  62978,695 § 120,700,000

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
General Obligation
Refunding Bonds
Dated November 3, 2008 2018 h) 770,000 § 79,830 § 849,830
Refunding Series 2008C 2019 1,245,000 49 800 1,294,800
Interest due on June 30 and
December 30 at rates of 3.5%
to 4.0% $ 2015000 $ 129,630 $ 2,144,630
General Obligation Bonds
Dated May 4, 2009
Series 2009 2018 $ 285.000 $ 11,400 § 296,400
Interest due on June 30
and December 30 at rates $ 285000 8 11,400 § 296,400
ranging from 3.000% to 4.375%
General Obligation Bonds
Dated October 10, 2012 2018 3 170.000 § 3,400 § 173,400
Refunding Series 2012A
Interest due on June 30 and $ 170,000 § 3400 % 173,400
December 30 at rates of 2%
General Obligation Bonds
Dated October [0, 2012 2018 5 645,000 § 12900 § 657.900
Refunding Series 2012B
Interest due on June 30 and ) 645,000 § 12900 § 657,900
December 30 at rates of 2%
General Obligation Bonds
Dated July 30, 2013 2018 $ 1,180,000 $§ 323290 § 1,503,290
Series 2013A 2019 1,200,000 290,840 1,490,840
Interest due on June 30 2020 1,225,000 254,840 1,479,840
and December 30 at rates 2021 1,255,000 215,028 1,470,028
ranging from 2.5% to 4.1% 2022 1,310,000 174,240 1,484,240
2023 1,345,000 128,390 1,473,390
2024 1,380,000 78,625 1,458,625
2025 603,000 24,803 629,805

M) 9.500,000 % 1,490,058 & 10,990,038

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

General Obligation Bonds
Dated July 30, 2013
Series 20138
Interest due on June 30

and December 30 at rates
of 4%

General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Dated November 3, 2014
Series 2014
[nterest due on June 30
and December 30 at rates
ranging from 3% to 4%

General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Dated May 3, 2016
Series 2016
Interest due on June 30
and December 30 at a rate of 5%

Year
Ending Principal Interest Tatal

2018 - 87,000 §$ 87,000
2019 - §7,000 87,000
2020 - 87,000 87,000
2021 - 87,000 87,000
2022 - 87,000 87,000
2023 - 87,000 87,000
2024 - 87,000 87,000
2025 725,000 87,000 812,000
2026 1,450,000 58,000 1,508,000
2,175,000 754,000 § 2,929,000
2018 2,220,000 191,900 $ 2,411,900
2019 1,345,000 125,300 1,470,300
2020 370,000 84,950 454,950
2021 380,000 73,850 453,850
2022 395,000 62,450 457,450
2023 405,000 50,600 455,600
2024 420,000 34,400 454,400
2025 440,000 17.600 457,600
5,975,000 641,050 $ 6,616,050
2018 1,745,000 397,500 $§ 2,342,500
2019 1,980,000 510,250 2,490,250
2020 3,690,000 411,250 4,101,250
2021 4,535,000 226,750 4,761,750
11,950,000 1,745,750 $  13.695.750

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVYILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
Gencral Obligation Refunding Bonds
Dated September 12, 2016 2018 b 60,000 $ 103,188 § 163,188
Series 2016A 2019 360,000 101,988 461,988
Interest due on June 30 2020 370,000 94,788 464,788
and December 30 at a rates 2021 375,000 87,388 462,388
ranging from 2.00% to 2.25% 2022 385,000 79,888 464,888
2023 400,000 72,188 472,188
2024 405,000 64,188 469,188
2025 420,000 56,088 476,088
2026 435,000 47,688 482,688
2027 445,000 38,088 483,988
2028 463,000 30,088 495,088
2029 470,000 20,788 490,788
2030 480,000 10,800 490,800
$ 5,070,000 § 308,056 $ 2,017,240
Note Payable
Dated August 1, 2008 2018 $ 1,302,440 § 398,710 S 1,701,150
llinois Environmental Protection 2019 1,335,205 365,945 1,701,150
Agency Loan 2020 1,368,793 332,356 1,701,149
Interest due on June 1 and 2021 1,403,227 297,923 1,701,150
December 1 at a rate of 2.5% 2022 1,438,527 262,623 1,701,150
2023 1,474,715 226,435 1,701,150
2024 1,511,813 189,337 1,701,150
2025 1,549,845 151,305 1,701,150
2026 1,588,833 112,317 1,701,150
2027 1,628,802 72,348 1,701,150
2028 1,669,777 31373 1,701,150
§ 16271977 § 2440,672 $ 18,712,649
Note Payable
Dated March 5, 2015 2018 $ 75000 § - $ 75,000
Will County Note Payable 2019 75,000 - 75,000
Principal due on December 31 2020 75,000 - 75,000
at a rate of 0% 2021 75,000 - 75,000
2022 1,319,790 - 1,319,790

3 1,619,790 % o $ 1,619,790

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Capital Lease
Dated August 23, 2009
2009 Fire Training Facility
Principal and Interest due on August 25
at rates of 6.39%

Capital Lease
Dated August I, 2012
2012 Pierce Arrow XT Pumper
Principal and Interest due on August |
at rates of 2.41%

Capital Lease
Dated December 14, 2012
2012 Elgin Eagle Street Sweeper
Principal and Interest due on December 14
at rates of 1.37%

Capital Lease
Dated February 1, 2013
2013 Medtec Ford F450 Ambulance
Principal and Interest due on February |
at rates of 1.37%

Capital Lease
Dated January 27, 2014
2014 Five (5) Treadmills
Principal and Interest due on August | and
February 1 at rates of 0%

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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Year
Ending Principal Interest Total

2018 21,260 4,342 25,602
2019 22,619 2,983 25,602
2020 24,065 1.538 25,603
67.944 3.863 76,807
2018 42,925 6,582 49,507
2019 43,957 5,549 49,506
2020 45,015 4,492 49,507
2021 46,098 3,409 49,507
2022 47,208 2,299 49,507
2023 48,345 1,163 49,508
273,548 23,494 297,042
2018 35,116 969 36,085
2019 35,597 488 36,085
70,713 1.457 72,170
2018 35.596 438 36,084
35,596 488 36.084
2018 5,618 - 5,018
2019 2,804 - 2,804
8.422 - 8.422




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS {(Continued)

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

Capital Lease
Dated September 4, 2015
2014 Smeal 105" Fire Truck
Principal and Interest due on July 1
at a rate of 2.75%

Capital Lease
Dated July 21, 2016
Fitness Equipment
Principal and Interest due on October 22
at a rate of 5.33%

Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
2018 3 50,146 § 13,862 S 64,008
2019 51,523 12,484 64,009
2020 32,941 11,067 64,008
2021 34,396 2,612 64,008
2022 35,892 8116 64,008
2023 57,428 6,580 64,008
2024 59,007 3,001 64,008
2025 60,629 3,379 64,008
2026 62,296 1,713 64,009
3 504,260 § 71,814 § 576,074
2018 3 5923 § 13,862 5 19,785
2019 6,212 12,484 18,696
2020 6,515 11,067 17,582
2021 6,832 9.612 16,444
3 25482 8 47025 § 72,507

(See independent auditor's report.)
2



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Village of Romeoville, [llinois’ comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Village’s overall financial
health.

Contents Page(s)

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Village’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 123-132

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village’s
property tax. 133-136

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
the Village's current levels of outstanding debt and the Village’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future, 137-140

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Village's financial activities take
place. 141-142

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Village’s financial report relates to the
services the Village provides and the activities it performs. 143-147

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2017 2016* 2015 2014
$ 256791259 § 264541515 § 263.931.875 266.143.014
3.180.894 2.709.485 3.288.122 4.815,450
(21.781.960}) {20.988.393) 4.856.829 1.024.779
$ 238.190.193 5 246.262.607 § 272.076.826 271.983.243
$ 79933272 8 90.127.058 5 90.261.49] 90.952.810
7.600.315 7.258.436 8.885.135 9.484.421
$ B87.333.591 8§ 97385494 §  99.146.626 100.437.231
$ 336.724.531 § 354.668.573 § 354.193.366 357,095.824
3.180.8M4 2,709.485 3.288,122 4.815.450
(14.181.641) (13.729.957) 13.741.964 10.509.200
$ 325.723.784 § 343,648.101 § 371.223.452 372420474

*Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No, 68 was implemented at April 30, 2016.



2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
256.950,797 251491187 250.373.273 254.221.831 249.592.572 247.693.990
2.513.686 7.228.622 12.901.961 164.830 993.014 1.484.645
4.517.245 11.093.994 5.802.877 10.044.146 17.887.749 21.974.302
263.981.728 269.815.803 269.078.E11 264.430.807 268.473.335 271.152.937
86.897.837 85,140,129 82.814.080 75.306.997 74.356.474 69.796,0935
12.410.766 15.350.507 19.521.288 24.898.401 28.761.335 34.869.525
99.308.603 100.490.636 102.335.368 100.205.398 103.117.809 104.665.620
343.848.634 336.631.316 333.187.353 329.528.828 323,949,046 317.490.085
2.513.686 7.228.622 12.901.961 164.830 993.014 1.48.645
16.928.01 ¢ 26.446.501 23.324.163 34.942.547 46.649.084 56.843.827
363.290.331 370.306.439 371.413.479 364.636.205 371.591.144 375.818.557
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
CHANGL IN NET POSITION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017 2016* 2015 2014
EXPENSES

Governmental activities
General government $  13,145269 $ 13853044 3 16251079 S 16.119.829
Public safety 20.471.100 21,462,453 19.131.969 19.536.832
Public works 14,345,138 15.020.236 15.310.857 12.093.817
Culture and recreation 5.797.024 5026478 4277124 4.193.048
Interest and fiscal charges on long-term debt 4,603.731 4.575.340 4.794.913 4.959.369
Toltal governmental activities expenses 58.304.268 59.937.65) 59,765,942 56.902.895

Business-type activities
Water and sewer 17.490.294 17.759.434 17.496.743 16.763.602
Total business-type activities expenses 17.490.294 17.759.434 17.496.743 16.763.602

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT EXPENSES $ 75854562 § 77697085 § 77262685 $  73.666.497

PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmenial activities
Charges for services

General government s 1.376.943  § 1.366.788 § 1.268.676 $ 1.269.554
Public safety 3.573,257 3.248.233 3.274.051 3.093.646
Public works 7.493.409 5.507.244 3,541.431 5,484,531
Culture and recreation 1.126.442 1.040.173 970,556 895,577
Operating grants and contributions 1.234.385 1.162.335 1.248.429 1.364.140
Capital grants and contributions 6.048.334 976.637 2.330.934 7.505.925

Total governmental activities
Program revenues 20.852.770 13.301.410 14.634.077 19.613.373

Business-type activities
Charges for services

Water and sewer 17.721.175 16.579.382 15,524,548 15.411.379
Operating grants and contributions - - 136,620 -
Capital grants and contributions 1.749.245 399.658 211426 2.430.283

Total business-type activitics
ProOgrim revenues 19.470.420 16.979.040 15.872.594 17.841.662
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVENUES $ 40323190 $  30.280.450 § 30,506,671 5 37.455.035
NET REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Governmental activities $ (37511498) § (46.636.241) § (45.131.865) § (37.289.522)
Business-type activities 1.980.126 (780.394) (1.624.149) 1.078.060

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
NET REVENUE (EXTENSE) $ (35.531.372) § (47.416.635) § (46.756.014) $ (36.211.462)




2013 2012 2011 2010 2000 2008

L 16820623 § 12435151 $ 12,632,798 § V1028906 § 11.890.523 §  12.924.376

17,977,351 17.685.337 16.816.092 18.573.007 18,270,997 16.969.357
11,677,451 13.274.353 10.596,797 11.092.991 11.789.375 11,371,939

3,934.308 3.844.491 3.469.413 4.345.424 4,296,423 3.845.945

4.289.449 4,342,536 4.264.035 4.320.124 2.991.639 1.576.678
34.699. 182 51.601,868 47.779.135 49.360.452 49.239.157 46.888.295
15.935.142 16.468.462 15.623.988 13.072.465 13.145.150 11.782.676
15.935.142 16,468,462 15.623.988 13.072.463 13.145.150 11,782,676

$ 70634324 5 68070330 § 63.403.143 § 62432917 § 62384307 §  38.670.971

3 1.407.156 3 1.588.325 % 1.257.540 § 1,998,582 § 2.709.581 § 3.600.123

3.186.635 3.095.784 2.976.097 1.463.849 1.341.973 2.457.148
4,751.868 3.608.476 3.843.912 2.782.267 2711254 3.105.538
792.802 795,660 741.042 860.826 909.796 878.175
1,287,635 1,238,064 1.461.476 2.244.206 2.696.283 1.813.614
£.998.465 4,358,314 5.600.719 220.000 147.816 6.201.633
13.424.561 14.684.823 15.880.786 9.569.730 10.516.703 18.056.231
14,732,396 13.467.211 12.968.546 12,298,995 13.071.390 13.743.313
33.175 744.821 2.342.204 1.233 144.228 3.470.541
14.785.771 14.212.032 15.310.750 12.300.230 13.215.618 17.213.854

£ 28210332 $ 28.896853 $ 31191336 $ 21869960 $ 23732321 $  35270.083

$ (1.274621) § (36.917.045) $ (31.898.369) § (39.790.722) $ (38.722.4534) § (28.832.064)
(1.149.371) (2.256.430) (313.238) (772.233) 70.468 5431178

$ (42423592) § (39.173.475) § (32.211.607) § (40.562.957) § (38.650.986) § (23.400.886)
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VILLAGE OF ROMLEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
CILANGE IN NET POSITION (Continued)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017 2016* 2015 2014
GENERAL REVENUES AND OTIER
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental activitics
Taxes
Property $ 16422851 $ 16423304 § 15269571 § 15,346,578
Home rule sales 6.306.026 6.146.634 10.955.120 9.893.380
Telecommunications 957.144 993,552 1,142,883 1.323.373
Utility 6,370,157 5.929.117 6.022.872 5.959.246
Hotel/Motel 551.753 475.098 400.345 200,454
Other 3.010.255 2.405.204 22106101 1.425.637
Intergovernmental - unresiricted
Replacement tax 182.612 109,584 - -
State sales tax 3,729,800 3.520.622 - -
Use tax 976.635 920.714 818410 696,169
Income tax 3.750.745 4.228.795 3.886.045 3.866.664
Investment income 11411 128.845 64,959 35,369
Miscellaneous 221,198 328.096 165,667 130.520
Sale of capital asscts 281.824 - - -
Transfers 385.072 - - -
Special item - - 4.288.963 -
Total governmental activities 45.257.483 43.609.565 43,225,448 39.167.390
Business-iype activities
Investment income 20.957 150.909 300.876 (16,177
Miscellancous 8.720 77.500 32.668 66,745
Transfers {385.072} - - -
Total business-1ype activities {355.393) 228,409 333.544 50.568
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT § 44902088 § 43.837.974 § 45558992 5 39.217.958
CIHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities $ 7745985 §  (3.026.676) § 93583 $ 1.877.868
Business-type activities 1.624.731 (551.98% 1.290.603) 1.128.628
Total primary governmental change in
net position 9.370.716 {3.578.661) {1.197.022) 3.006.496
Prior period adjustment (27.295.033) {23.996.690) - 6,123,647
NET POSITION - BEGINKING OF YEAR 343.648.101 371,233,452 372420474 346.059.894
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $§ 325723784 § 343.648.101 § 371223452 § 355.190.037

*Replacement, state sales, use, and income taxes are presented as unrestricted intergovernmental revenue beginning in fiscal year
2016.



2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£ 15722079 § 15279544 5 15032052 $ 14820536 S 13707382 § 12,823,603

9.146.375 9.363.911 9.025.865 7.356.280 7.491.063 7.138.892
1.298.127 1,492,567 1.443.900 1.460.674 1.487.257 1.589.861
5.477.963 4.764.214 4.920.460 3554078 3874144 3.630.110
247.872 247,557 242,785 252 844 300.235 471,946
1,183,935 2.077464 1.677.997 1.919.200 1.910.096 3.255,146
636.785 579.133 337.844 439,689 521,046 408,546
3.575.982 3.204.848 2.862.078 2.785.961 3,172,690 3451028
40.976 45.020 246,285 367.726 871,833 1.673.281
80.452 550,066 78.056 191.106 227.086 250.875

- - - 2.600.000 2.480.000 2.385.000
37.410.546 37.606.324 36.067.322 35.748.194 36.042.852 37.078.288
136,471 403,586 437.201 4539.824 §46.147 1.229.074
29,060 6.112 374.684 - 15.5M4 1.054.233
- S e (2.600.000) (2.480.000) (2.383.000)
165,531 411.698 811.885 (2.140.176) (1.618.279) (101.693)

§ 37576077 § 38.018.022 § 36.879.207 § 33.608.0018 $ 34424373 $  36.976.595

5 120024 §  (3.608.297) $ (849.723) § 3.849.825 §  (3.747.870) $  (1.644.166)
1.243.591 (737.673) {1.444.543) {2.453.414) (2.390.514H (31.233)
1.364.615 {4.405.970) (2.294.268) 1.396.411 (6.138.384) (1.675.391)

(2.168.193) 48,413 2.109.674 - - -

346.863.472 351.221.029 351.403.623 350.009.212 356.147.596 357.822.987

§ 346039894 S 346863472 § 351.221.029 § 351.405.623 § 350.009.212 § 356.147.596




VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2017

2016

2015

2014

GENERAL FUND
Unassigned s
Reserved
Unreserved

25,098,759

3

24,191,557

20,675,671

$

17,996,239

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 3

25,098,759

5

24,191,557

20,675.671

17,996,239

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Nonspendable 5
Restricted
Assigned
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in

Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital project funds

3,180,894
7,675,643

16,125,483
3.475,589

3,288,122
6,915,001

4,815,450
1,751,815

TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $

10,856,537 §

21,601,072

10,203,123

8

6.567,265

Note: Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 was implemented at April 30, 2012,

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

$ 16406975 5§ 14971672 § - 3 - s - 3 e
- e o 472,853 817,514 220,472

- - 12,913,655 8,903,411 10,200,416 10,828,117

$ 16406975 § 14971672 3 12913655 S 9376264 S 11.017.930 § 11,048,589

b 499,033 § 760,333 § - 5 o 5 & 3 e
2,513,686 7,228,622 - - - -
3,040,094 4,436,631 e o s S

S - 13,923,594 20,553,771 43,624,815 17,573,339
- - (20,221 419,111 (763,806) (167,332)
- - - (2,392) - -

= = g (7534 c S

$ 6052813 § 12425586 § 13,903,373 § 20,131,514 35 44,861,009 § 17,406,007
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fizcal Years

REVENUES
Property taxes
Other taxes
Fines and lorfeits
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Pubic works
Recreation
Allocations to water and sewer fund
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENLIES
OVER EXPENDITLURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of bonds
Premium on bonds issued
Issuance of refunding bonds
Premium on refunding bonds
Payments to escrow agent
Capital leases issued
Notes payable issued
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)
SPECIAL ITEM

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF

NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES

2017 2016* 2015 2014
$ 16422851 5 16423305 § 14.899310 § 15,186,189
17.195.334 15,949,605 2E.553.488 19.608.305
600.115 329.171 525.809 652.242
3.5330.730 1.803.939 2.239.902 2.246,099
7.760.362 7.241.283 6.570,453 6.239,227
13.894.282 13.731.160 6.876.406 7.151.987
111411 128.843 64,959 35,369
1.520.835 904.270 2.843.481 2.170.564
61.035.940 36.711.578 33.573.808 33.289.982
11.954.8387 11.815.013 11.679.424 13.277.239
18.697.889 18.034.341 17.878.688 17.657.940
9.010.058 8.709.845 9.336.352 9.149.870
4.124,138 3,964,791 3.964.195 3.600,130
{3.183.000) (3.121.000) (3.060.000) (3.000.000)
10.081.008 9.321.709 8.543.839 20.163.557
5.906.154 5.375.593 3.874.571 3.550.370
1.976.449 1.870.307 2.093.303 1,948.524
: - 125,748 335.669
58.567.583 33.970.599 36.436.120 66.687.299
2.468.357 740.979 (862.312) (13.397.317)
5.105.000 11,950,000 7.308.233 15.045.000
77.165 1.463.998 677.639 299.329
(18.264.202} S (7.860.124) -
32,515 - - 114.828
- 355.500 2747915 -
743.832 201,358 14,975 41.876
12.270.458 9.423.063 11.673.868 6.630.6635
(12.270.458) (9.423.063) {11.673,868) (6.630.663)
(12.305.690) 14.172.856 2.888.638 15.501.033
- - 4.288.963 -
$ (9.837.333) § 14913835 § 6313291 5 2.103.716
14.9% 14.1% 14.7% 11.3%

* Sales and use tax presented as intergovernmental revenue beginning in fiscal year 2016,
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

i5.081.826 § 15.135.292 $§ 14815103 § 14.820,536 § 13.707.382 § 12.823.603

17.970.958 18,526,587 17.846.841 14.824.767 15.418.734 16,305,127
623118 853.511 842,300 752.175 645.190 819.899
1.540.449 761.008 901.880 797.229 1.568.431 2.499.630
5.973.911 5.448.356 5.383.469 4,877.269 4.888.901 5.106.576
6,572,704 6,763,999 6.593.743 3.889.79%0 6.034.080 3.454.016
40.976 45.020 246,285 367.726 871.853 1.673.281
2.842.872 1.718.868 1.032.134 1.089.937 944.984 3.137.9635
50.646.814 49.252.641 47.661.757 41,419.449 44.079.5535 47.820.117
15.200,174 10,276,541 10.279.604 9.337.741 9.764.037 10.016.681
16,884,123 16,439,782 16.104.041 15.574.310 15.233.202 14.210.531
8.829.149 8.743.358 8.478.126 8.264.865 7.989.078 7.826.204
3.408.063 3.215.149 3.112.875 3.650.743 3.610.345 3.199.821
(2.845.000) (2,790,000} (2.710.000) {2.600.000) (2.480.000) (2.385.000)
10.037.710 8.225.834 12.437.256 36.172.185 25.003.027 20.835.085
2,984,621 2.630.149 2.553.378 1.882.280 1.451.205 1.210.033
1.954.015 1.960.867 2.107.977 2.310.980 1.690.968 1.343.505
- - - 32.506 1.701.082 186.914

36.452.855 48.725.650 52.363.057 74.675.610 63.962.944 56.443.774

(5.806.041) 526.991 {4.701.300) (33.256.161) (19.883.389) (8.623.637)

- - - 6.700.000 47.135.884 12.900.000

- - - - - 23.147
2.750.000 - 2.460,000 - - -
89.846 - 38.946 - - -
{2.803.963) - (2.391.196) - - -
818.206 - - 185.000 171.848 -

14.482 4.826 37.691 - - 1.953.776

8.222.204 7.090.363 5.501.664 4.725.139 4.684.145 11.781.318

(8.222.204) {7.090.363) (5.501.664) (4.725.139) {4.684.1435) (11.781.318)

868.571 4.826 145.441 6.885.000 47.307.732 14.878.923

(4.937.470) $ 331817 3 (4.355.859) § (26371.161) § 27424343 §  6.255.266

10.6% 11.3% 1. 7% 10.9% B.1% T.2%
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYLRS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Villuge Villnge
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Type of Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Business Value Rank  Valuation Y alue Rank  Valuation
PDV Midwest Refinery Citgo Retinery-Petroleum Products $ 127018403 1 I 14% §  50.138.500 H 4 45%
Duke Secured Fin 2009-1ALZ LLC  Real Property 16,743,750 2 147%
Hart 153 Industrial LLC Real Property 16,208,154 3 1.42%
PLDAB LLC Real Property 14912963 4 1.31%
Prologis-lllinois LLC Owner, Operator and Developer 14,612,297 5 1 28% 17,394,910 2 1 54%
of Industnal Real Estate
Romeo Pinnacle 16 LLC Real Propenty 13231178 6 1.16%
J&.F Romeoville Property Real Property 9.879.673 7 0 87% 11,006,200 4 0.98%%
Pacuv Corp Foed Services. Direet Sales 9.591,571 8 G §4%
BAEV LaSalle Real Propeny 9.384.640 9 (0 84% 10.035,705 5 0 8%
JRC Remington/Et Al LEC's Real Propeny 8.885,019 10 0.78%
Prudential Ins. Co. of America Insurance 14,607 935 3 1 3i7s
James Campbell Co LLC Real Property 9,300,000 6 (83%
DCT/SPF Pinnacle IX LLC Real Property 9,203,800 7 082%
CRP-IILP KCDC LLC Real Property 9,089,700 8 081%
Hart I35 Industrial LLC Real Property 8,908,000 9 0.79%
RREEF Amer REIT 1t Corp Industrial Properties 8.796.000 10 0 78%
§  240.669.648 21.11% % 148,500,750 13 19%

Note. Every effort has been made to seck out and report the Jargest 1axpayers. However, many of the taxpayers contain multiple parcels, and it is possible that

some parcels and their valuations have been overlooked. The 2016 EAV s the most current avimlable

Data Source

Will County Clerk



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Levy Years

Percentage Percentage
Tax of Collections Total of
Levy Tax Tax Extensions for Tax Extensions
Year Extensions Collections Collected Previous Yrs.  Collections Collected
2016 $ 13,675,019 § - 0.00% $ - $ - 0.00%
2015 13,193,894 13,171,863 99.83% - 13,171,863 99.83%
2014 13,160,007 13,147,707 99.91% - 13,147,707 99.91%
2013 12,924,565 12,891,285 99,74% - 12,891,285 99.74%
2012 12,852,253 12,767,370 99.34% - 12,767,370 99.34%
2011 12,852,637 12,791,222 99.52% 5 12,791,222 99.52%
2010 12,852,966 12,803,539 99.62% - 12,803,539 99.62%
2009 11,777,090 11,715,947 99.48% - 11,715,947 99.48%
2008 11,878,398 11,830,360 99.60% - 11,830,360 99.60%
2007 10,885,221 10,831,515 99.51% - 10,831,515 99.51%

Naote: Includes separate agency of Romeoville Fire but excludes Road and Bridge Levy.
N/A - Information not available
Data Source

Will County Treasurer
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Less Amounts

Percentage of

Estimated

General Available Actual Taxable

Fiscal Obligation In Debt Value of Per
Year Bonds* Service Fund Total Property** Capita*¥**
2017 $ 101,478,583 § - § 101,478,583 2.97% 2,668.01
2016 119,249,381 13,415,998 105,833,383 3.31% 2,668.01
2015 110,203,388 8,129 110,195,259 3.54% 2,777.10
2014 113,645,718 8,129 113,637,589 3.66% 2,863.85
2013 101,252,784 8,129 101,244,655 3.08% 2,551.53
2012 103,542,717 2,248 103,540,469 2.96% 4,894.84
2011 103,643,192 19,476 103,623,716 2.71% 4,898.77
2010 105,137,268 - 105,137,268 2.87% 4,970.32
2009 99,518,409 652,850 08,565,559 2.67% 4,659.65
2008 48,525,000 2,058,780 46,466,220 1.38% 2,196.67

Notes: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements. Increase
in Amounts Available in Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 2016 due to the General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2016 issuance receivable. Proceeds will be used to refund the General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2007B in fiscal year 2017.

* This is the general bonded debt of both governmental (including capital appreciation bonds) and
business-type activities.

** See the schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 133 for property

value data.

*** See the schedule of Demographic and Economic Indicators on page 141 for population data.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

April 30, 2017

Percentage
of Debt
Gross Applicable to Government's
Bonded Debt* Government** Share of Debt
DIRECT DEBT
Village of Romeoville $ 100,531.816 100.00% § 100,531,816
OVERLAPPING DEBT
Schools:
School District Number 88-A 23,360,000 18.65% 4,356,640
School District Number 92 6,640,000 18.61% 1,235,704
School District Number 202 272,805,000 9.04% 24,661,572
School District Number 363-U 132,965,165 28.12% 37,389,804
High School District Number 203 13,410,000 7.84% 1,051,344
Community College District Number 525 185,645,000 6.02% 11,175,829
Total Schools 634,825,165 79,870,893
Others:
Will County*** - 0.00% -
Will County Forest Preserve District 117,788,575 5.88% 6,925,968
Fountaindale Library District 33,015,000 0.16% 52,824
Bolingbrook Park District 28,855,000 0.05% 14,428
Lemont Park District 11,151,000 0.06% 6,691
Lockport Park District 6,103,000 27.08% 1,652,692
Plainfield Park District 2,583,000 7.33% 189,334
Total Others 199,495,575 8,841,937
Total Overlapping Debt 834,320,740 88,712,830
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 934,852,556 5 189,244,646

Notes
* Qutstanding principal of general obligation bonds as of April 27, 2017. 100% of the principal of outstanding
general obligation bonds of overlapping taxing districts have been displayed in this schedule.
** Overlapping debt percentages based on 2016 EAV, the most current available.
*** Will County debt of $289,885,000 is self supporting, so it is not included in the table,

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk - Will County, [llinois
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

April 30, 2017

Under the 1970 Illinois Constitution, there is no legal limit for home rule municipalities except
as set by the General Assembly. To date, the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule
municipalities.
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Estimated
Per Capita Total Personal Level in

Fiscal Personal Income of Median Years of Unemployment
Year Population Income* Population Age* Schooling Rate*
2017 39,680 3 30,199 & 1,198,296,320 354 14 4.70%
2016 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 6.70%
2015 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 6.50%
2014 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 35.4 14 8.50%
2013 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.30%
2012 39.680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.00%
2011 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 9.80%
2010 39,680 30,199 1,198,296,320 354 14 10.50%
2009 21,153 30,199 638,799,447 333 14 10.30%
2008 21,153 30,199 638,799,447 333 14 6.20%

Data Sources

Bureau of Census
*Will County
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2017 2016 2015 2014
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Village clerk (support) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Village administration
Administration 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Personnel 2.00 2.00 245 245
RPTV i.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Marketing 0.73 0.63 0.63 0.63
Information services 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Finance 9.94 9.94 9.94 9.94
Community services and development
Administration 5.45 6.40 6.00 6.00
Inspectional services 4.84 4.26 4.26 4.26
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Administration 9.50 9.50 9.50 9.50
Operations 73.40 72.40 74.40 73.38
Support services 13.59 10.28 12,79 12.52
Fire and ambulance 60.30 58.80 57.00 55.80
Fire academy 10.60 11.00 7.00 5.25
Romeoville Emergency Management Agency 0.72 0.72 0.72 0.72
PUBLIC WORKS
Administration 4.00 4.00 5.00 5.00
Buildings 925 925 11.86 11.86
Motor pool 1.00 242 1.00 1.00
Streets and sanitation 10.73 9.00 9.00 9.00
Landscape and grounds 5.00 6.00 7.00 7.00
RECREATION
Operations 5.26 5.17 5.17 5.17
Recreation programs 34.84 31.09 31.09 2892
Park maintenance 927 943 9.43 9.75
Recreation center 9.27 5.00 5.00 5.00
WATER AND SEWER
Finance administration 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Public works water distribution 13.00 11.00 12.00 12.00
Public works sewage treatment 9.00 7.00 10.00 10.00
Public works sewage collection 5.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
TOTAL VILLAGE EMPLOYEES 319.69 306.28 312.23 306.14

Data Source

Operating Budget
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 - s
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
245 1.38 1.08 1.75 1.75 1.75
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.50 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
3.00 3.00 3.00 4.00 4,50 3.00
9.38 9.25 8.73 8.00 8.42 8.70
6.00 6.50 6.70 8.65 8.65 9.65
4.08 4.07 4.00 7.50 7.00 6.00
10.00 10.52 10.92 7.50 8.50 7.50
72.02 71.52 73.25 80.00 78.58 77.25
15.29 15.29 15.04 20.02 19.79 19.19
49.07 53.80 57.21 63.92 65.72 65.65
5.25 4.25 3.43 3.50 3.50 2.00
0.72 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.87
5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
11.50 10.00 17.00 14.00 14.00 13.00
1.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
9.00 9.00 6.00 10.50 11.00 12.00
7.00 7.00 - - 1.00 -
507 5.17 5.7 5.61 5.52 6.12
28.33 33.41 30.63 30.49 24.96 18.60
9.60 8.20 8.19 9.46 9.07 8.76
5.80 5.80 5.80 8.36 3.80 7.61
4.00 4.00 4.00 6.00 6.00 570
12.00 12.00 11.00 12.00 12.00 12.00
10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00

301.16 307.03 304.02 336.13 331.63 317.35
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

OPERATING INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 017 2016 2015 2014
CENERAL GOVERNMENT
Community Development
Permits issued*® 2,077 2,101 2,195 2,031
Inspections conducted* 6,296 4,666 2,785 2,923
Business licenses issued* 690 731 848 711
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Personnel - civilian** 34 32 32 34
Personnel - sworn ** 64 61 6l 63
Traffic accidents 1,573 1,439 1,400 1,330
Calls for service 43,516 41,097 38,886 41,069
Traffic citations 6.263 3,815 6,486 8,446
Parking citations 2,057 1,737 1,161 1,006
Written warnings 2.267 2025 018 611
Administrative wamning tickels 211 137 163 330
Atrrests 1.198 875 870 1,292
DUI arrests 133 63 66 90
Written reports 3.5375 3,500 3,459 3,687
Domestics 647 513 494 486
False alarms 1,213 1.236 1.311 1,147
Fire
Calls
EMS 1,348 1,239 1,917 1,690
Fire 2.045 2,060 1.312 1.267
Total 3,393 3,299 3,229 2937
PUBLIC WORKS
Streets (miles) 170 170 170 170
RECREATION
Program offcrings
Youth 770 733 580 544
Adult 240 238 232 23
Senior citizen 19 15 15 33
WATER AND SEWER
Number of Active meters 16,924 16,831 16,698 16,604
Gallons of water pumped 1.539.240,400 1,532,814.900 1,478,703,000 1,525,850,300
Gallons of water sold (billed) 1,268.506,000 1,260.283,300 1.216,020,300 1,330,730,900
Utilization 82% §2% 82% 87%

N/A - Information not available
[Data Source

Various village departtnents

*Figures based on prior calendar year approximating current fiscal year.
**Does not include Co-Op Students, Crossing Guards, or Kennel Helper.
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2013 2012 201 2010 2009 2008

1,376 1.250 2.021 1.168 1,305 1,311

7,076 6,220 6,889 6,521 8.750 9.712

683 692 684 628 613 630

34 i3 33 29 34 34

61 63 63 67 68 63

1,245 1,304 1,397 1,332 1,480 1,579

41,754 45,184 46,591 55,297 35,166 55,507

8,330 9.202 1.797 9,593 8,608 9,110

629 1,188 1.572 2,295 2,530 2,066

494 791 989 1.430 1,021 786

181 299 441 810 620 440

1,526 1,616 1.493 1,972 1,807 2.326

115 17 98 113 121 124

4,094 4,409 4,323 5,212 5,458 5,547

519 637 385 649 610 698

1,039 1,121 1,153 1,095 1,379 1,343

1,837 1.890 1,733 1,615 1,693 1,734

1.266 1.246 1.112 1.192 1.307 1.224

3,103 3.136 2,845 2.807 3,000 2,958

170 170 170} 170 170 170

530 475 527 436 308 389

42 42 30 52 57 61

38 29 38 41 70 63

16,335 16,570 16,557 16,597 16,566 16,655

1.708,115,500 1,635,515,000 1,480,389,191 1,509.647.875 1.466.014,000 1,621,183,000

1,382.636,900 1,322,234,690 1,334,422,900 1,317,100.300 1,252.073,800 1,304,285,800
§1% 81% 90% 87% 85% 80%
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC ACT 85-1142

ROMEO ROAD TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended
April 30,2017
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1415 W, Diehl Road, Suite 400 Certifiad Public Accountants & Advisors
Naperville, lllinois 60563 Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON
MANAGEMENT’S ASSERTION OF COMPLIANCE

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, Illinois

We have examined management’s assertion that the Village of Romeoville, Illinois (the Village),
complied with the provisions of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the [llinois Tax Increment
Redevelopment Aliocation Act (Illinois Public Act 85-1142) during the year ended April 30, 2017.
Management is responsible for the Village’s assertion. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on management’s assertion about the Village’s compliance with the specific requirements based
on our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with the standards established by the American Institute
of Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether management’s assertion about compliance with the specified
requirements is fairly stated, in all material respects. An examination involves performing
procedures to obtain evidence about whether management’s assertion is fairly stated, in all material
respects. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of management’s assertion, whether
due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village's compliance with the
specified requirements.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the Village of Romeoville, Illinois, complied with the
aforementioned requirements for the year ended April 30, 2017, is fairly stated in all material
respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, management
and the Illinois Department of Revenue, lllinois State Comptrollers office and the Joint Review
Board and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Scheet LLD

Naperville, Illinois
October 24, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Honorable Village President
and Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Romeoville, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Romeoville, Illinois (the Village) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2017, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the Village and have issued our report thereon dated
October 24, 2017, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts, and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements. The supplementary financial
information (balance sheet and schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance)
is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The supplementary financial information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole,

Sctoict LLD

Naperville, Illinois
October 24, 2017
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VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS

BALANCE SHEET
ROMEO ROAD TIF DISTRICT FUND

April 30, 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 235932

TOTAL ASSETS $ 235932

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
None $ -

Total liabilities 5

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for economic development 235,932
Total fund balance 235,932
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $ 235932

(See independent auditor's report.)



VILLAGE OF ROMEOVILLE, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ROMEO ROAD TIF DISTRICT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2017

REVENUES
Property taxes
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
None

Total expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.)

32,688
830

33,518

33,518

202,414

235,932
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